
Agenda Print Date: 3/12/2020  1 

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

Tuesday, March 17, 2020 
5:00 p.m. 

In the Upland City Hall Council Chambers 

 Call to Order
 Salute to the Flag

1. Recognitions and Presentations:

2. Additions-Deletions to the Agenda:

3. Shareholder-Public Testimony:
This is the time for any shareholder or member of the public to address the board members on
any topic under the jurisdiction of the Company, which is on or not on the agenda.  Please
note, pursuant to the Brown Act the board is prohibited from taking actions on items not listed
on the agenda. For any testimony, speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more
than four (4) minutes, including the use of any visual aids, and to do so in a focused and orderly
manner. Anyone wishing to speak is requested to voluntarily fill out and submit a speaker’s
form to the manager prior to speaking.

4. Consent Calendar Items:
All items listed hereunder are considered to be routine and there will be no separate
discussion of these items unless members of the board request specific items to be removed
from the consent calendar for separate action. All items listed or remaining will be voted upon
in a single action.

A. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes
Regular Meeting Minutes of February 18, 2020.

B. Planning, Resources, and Operations Committee (PROC) Meeting Minutes
Meeting minutes of November 26, 2019

C. Administration and Finance Committee (AFC) Meeting Minutes
No meeting minutes to approve.

D. Financial Statement
Income Statement and Balance Sheet for January 31, 2020 and year-to-date and Company State
and Federal tax returns for 2019. 

E. Investment Activity Report
Monthly Report of Investments Activity.

F. Water Production and Consumption
Monthly water production and consumption figures.

G. Prominent Issues Update
Status summaries on certain on-going active issues.

H. Projects and Operations Update
Status summaries on projects and operations matters.

I. Groundwater Level Patterns [Quarterly in January, April, July, and October]
Tracking patterns of groundwater elevations relative to ground surface.

J. Correspondence of Interest
Letters to Chino Basin from Cucamonga Basin Parties



Agenda Print Date: 3/12/2020  2 

5. Board Committee – Delegate Report:
A. PVPA Representative Report

Verbal report on activities at the Pomona Valley Protective Association that have an impact on
the Company. 

B. Six Basins Representative Report
Verbal report on activities at the Six Basins Watermaster that have an impact on the Company.

C. Chino Basin Representative Report
Verbal report on activities at the Chino Basin Watermaster that have an impact on the
Company. 

D. Cucamonga Basin Representative Report
Verbal update by staff.

E. Administration and Finance Committee (AFC) Chairman’s Report
No meeting to report.

F. Planning, Resources, and Operations Committee (PROC) Chairman’s Report
Report on meeting held February 25, 2020.

G. Office Feasibility Study Ad Hoc Committee
No meeting to report.

6. General Manager’s Report on Activities
A. Statements of Proposal – Comprehensive System Master Plan & Asset Mgmt Program

Discussion and possible award of contract
B. Request for Proposals – Professional Design & Project Mgmt for Capital Projects

Discussion of process and possible additional Board meeting in March
C. Share Requirement to Receive Will-serve Letter

Discussion of process and possible action by Board

7. Closed Session: None.

8. Director’s Comments and Future Agenda Items:

Adjournment:

The next regular Board Meeting will be held on Tuesday, April 21, 2020 at 5:00 p.m.

 NOTE:  All agenda report items and back-up materials are available for review and/or acquisition at 
the Company Office (139 No. Euclid Avenue, Upland, CA) during regular office hours, Monday 
through Thursday [7:00 am – 11:30 am & 12:30 pm – 5:00 pm] and alternating Fridays [7:00 am – 
11:30 am & 12:30 pm – 4:00 pm].  The agenda is also available for review and copying at the Upland 
Public Library located at 450 N. Euclid Avenue. 

POSTING STATEMENT:  On March 12, 2020 a true and correct copy of this agenda was posted at 
the entry of the Company Office (139 No. Euclid Avenue), and on the Company Website. On February 
18, 2020 a copy of the agenda was posted on the public bulletin board at 450 No. Euclid Avenue 
(Upland Public Library) 



SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 
MINUTES OF THE SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 

Tuesday, February 18, 2020 

An open meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Antonio Water Company (SAWCo) was called to 
order at 5:00 p.m. on the above date at the Upland City Hall Council Chambers, 460 North Euclid Avenue, 
Upland, California. Directors present were Tom Thomas, Jose Sanchez, Will Elliott, Gino Filippi, Bob Cable, 
Martha Goss, and Rudy Zuniga. Also in attendance were SAWCo’s General Manager Brian Lee, Assistant 
General Manager Teri Layton, and Senior Administrative Specialist Kelly Mitchell. Director Thomas 
presided.   

 Salute to the Flag by Director Goss

1. Recognitions and Presentations: Mr. Lee recognized City of Upland’s new Interim Public Works
Director, Steve Nix, in the audience.

2. Additions-Deletions to the Agenda: Mr. Lee requested approval to add Item 6F, San Antonio Heights
Citizen’s on Patrol Donation to the agenda.

Director Zuniga moved and Director Elliott seconded to approve the addition of San Antonio Heights
Citizen’s on Patrol Donation as Item 6F to the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Shareholder-Public Testimony: None.

4. Consent Calendar Items:
A. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes

     Regular Meeting Minutes of January 21, 2020. 
B. Planning, Resources and Operations Committee (PROC) Meeting Minutes

 No meeting minutes to report. 
C. Administration and Finance committee (AFC) Meeting Minutes

Meeting minutes of October 22, 2019 and November 13, 2019. 
D. Financial Statement

Income Statement and Balance Sheet for December 31, 2019 and year-to-date. 
E. Investment Activity Report

 Monthly Report of Investments Activity. 
F. Water Production and Consumption

  Monthly water production and consumption figures. 
G. Prominent Issues Update

 Status summaries on certain on-going active issues. 
H. Projects and Operations Update

 Status summaries on projects and operations matters. 
I. Groundwater Level patterns [Quarterly in January, April, July, and October]

 Tracking patterns of groundwater elevations relative to ground surface. 
J. Correspondence of Interest

Letter of appreciation from shareholder. 

Director Filippi moved and Director Goss seconded to approve the Consent Calendar. Motion carried 
unanimously.  

Director Thomas inquired about the letter of appreciation received from J.T. Waller. He gave thanks 
for the kind words. 

Mr. Lee stated there was not a single encounter or request from SAWCo that brought about the letter; 
just great work provided by all staff. 

Item 4A



February 18, 2020 

2 

5. Board Committee – Delegate Report:
A. Pomona Valley Protective Association (PVPA) Representative’s Report – Director Thomas

stated the PVPA held their February meeting the previous week.

Not much water spreading is taking place due to the lack of rainfall. PVPA is attempting to
coordinate with Los Angeles County Flood Control District regarding the amount of water that is to
stay behind the dam and the amount that is to go into the spreading ponds.

PVPA is awaiting clarification from the City of Claremont regarding the request to provide a plaque
or elevated bird perch in honor of Marilee K. Scaff near the Thompson Creek Trail.

There has been some progress made regarding H.R. 2215 – 116th Congress: San Gabriel
Mountains Foothills and Rivers Protection Act. If the item goes to the Senate, Senator Harris is
willing to consider removing PVPA private land from inclusion in the bill.

PVPA is moving forward with discussions with Six Basins to put a 50-acre recharge basin in the
north-west portion of the San Antonio Spreading Grounds. The item will be brought to Six Basins at
their next meeting.

PVPA will again be a sponsor at the Forever California event for Rancho Santa Botanical Gardens.
California native plants and water conservation are a main focus of this event.

B. Six Basins Representative Report – Mr. Lee reported on the Six Basins January meeting. Storm
Water Management continues to be the focus. Grant opportunities are being looked into to help
fund construction for storm water management projects.

Due to the amount of rainfall received in 2019, SAWCo was able to store a significant amount of
water in Six Basins. SAWCo has over 600 acre feet (AF) of water it needs to sell in order to return
to the 2,000 AF maximum storage capacity in the basin.

Officer elections also took place during the Six Basins January meeting. Director Thomas was
named President of the Board of Directors for Six Basins Watermaster.

C. Chino Basin Representative Report – Mr. Lee reported work is being done on the Safe Yield in
the basin. A peer review recently took place at the Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (WEI) office in
Lake Forest. WEI is looking at conducting a single run for the Operating Safe Yield (OSY). The
Appropriative Pool questions why different scenarios can’t be looked into however, the contract with
WEI states a single run will be conducted.

The Appropriative Pool is holding a special meeting later in the week to discuss the Storage
Management Plan.

D. Cucamonga Basin Representative Report – Ms. Layton reported the working group met on
February 4th. The terms of reference is currently being reviewed by legal counsel.

TKE Engineering is finishing revisions to the Judgment and updating the working group’s
comments. The group will review the revisions and begin working with legal and technical
assistance to move further in revising the Judgment.

In January, SAWCo issued a letter via their legal counsel regarding WEI’s insistence on utilizing the
Cucamonga Basin modeling to determine Chino Basin’s safe yield. City of Upland sent a letter for
West End Consolidated Water Company via their legal counsel to the same affect. SAWCo
anticipates Cucamonga Valley Water District to follow suit.



February 18, 2020 

3 

The parties continue to meeting and revise the Judgment. The next meeting is scheduled for March 
3, 2020. 

E. Administration and Finance Committee (AFC) Chairman’s Report – Director Sanchez stated all
items discussed at the AFC meeting are included on the agenda under the General Manager’s
Report. The Committee will continue to look at some financial policies. A request for qualifications
(RFQ) was considered for investment management pending approval of the investment policy. The
Committee will continue to look at financial reporting and financial policies.

F. Planning, Resources, and Operations Committee (PROC) Chairman’s Report – No meeting to
report.

G. Office Feasibility Study Ad Hoc Committee – No meeting to report.

6. General Manager’s Report on Activities:
A. SB998 – Policy and Procedure – Mr. Lee explained SB998 is Sacramento’s answer to ensuring all

Californian’s have access to water. If a customer is unable to pay their water bill, there are now
several additional steps a water company must take before they are able to legally disconnect water
service for nonpayment.

Mr. Lee advised this item was previously brought to the AFC and was recommended for approval by
the Board. He then recommended the Board approve the proposed policy and procedure drafted to
comply with the new law.

Director Sanchez moved and Director Elliott seconded to approve the proposed policy and
procedure to comply with SB998.

Director Sanchez alerted staff of a grammatical error for correction on page 4-4. He also inquired
about the shut off fees during work hours and after hours. He felt referring to the fee schedule in the
policy would be beneficial. These items were included in Director Sanchez’s original motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

B. Employee Recognition Policy Amendment– Mr. Lee advised this item is presented to tighten up
the policy to adhere to current federal tax law.

Director Goss moved and Director Sanchez seconded to approve amending the current employee
recognitions rewards program to remove gift cards and instead include the monetary amount in the
employee’s paycheck. Motion carried unanimously.

C. Investment Policy – Mr. Lee stated the draft investment policy is included in the Board meeting
packet. The AFC has reviewed and revised the policy with the included being the final draft of the
policy.

Director Sanchez advised the policy includes the process the Company will follow and the
responsibilities of certain positions in the Company. It describes the priorities with investing and how
they will be achieved. These policies will be up for annual review within the AFC.

Director Sanchez moved and Director Goss seconded to approve the proposed investment policy
regarding financial investments. Motion carried unanimously.

D. Reserves Policy – Mr. Lee advised this policy is designed to clarify where the Company is with
regards to financial reserves. One fairly significant change requested is to change the Depreciation
and Obsolescence Reserves Fund to the Capital Investment and Depreciation Reserves Fund.
SAWCo currently has three funds for its reserves; Operating Reserves, Capital Reserves, and Debt



February 18, 2020 

4 

Service Reserves. The goal is to carry 3 to 6 months of reserves in the Operating Reserves 
account, a percentage of capital stock in the Capital Reserves account. Estimated amount needed 
in reserves at this time is $6 to $7 million dollars. SAWCo’s reserves are right in line with what is 
needed. 

Director Cable moved and Director Filippi seconded to approve the proposed policy regarding 
financial reserves. Motion carried unanimously. 

E. General Liability Insurance Renewal – Director Thomas advised the premium in 2019 was
$28,891 and for 2020 it is proposed at $29,894 for a difference of $1,003. He stated the proposed
amount is under budget and felt the increase was insignificant for the current market.

Director Thomas moved and Director Elliott seconded to approve the premium update with JPRIMA
for the General Liability renewal as presented by EPIC at the annual premium of $29,894. Motion
carried unanimously.

F. San Antonio Heights Citizens on Patrol Donation – Mr. Lee informed the Board that staff has
received a request from the San Antonio Heights Citizens on Patrol for what has become an annual
donation to the organization. The Citizens on Patrol provide services to the Company by regularly
patrolling the San Antonio Heights area and advising of any happenings taking place at SAWCo
sites.

Director Goss moved and Director Cable seconded to approve a donation of $1,000 to the San
Antonio Heights Citizens on Patrol. Motion carried unanimously.

7. Closed Session: None.

8. Director’s Comments and Future Agenda Items: Director Sanchez spoke about the availability of the
meeting minutes prior to the meeting in which they are approved in order to aid in recalling items that
were discussed. He asked that this be discussed in the next AFC meeting.

Adjournment:
With no further business to discuss, Director Thomas adjourned the meeting at 5:25 p.m.

____________________________ 
         Assistant Secretary 

          Brian Lee 



1 

MINUTES OF THE SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 
PLANNING, RESOURCES, and OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

November 26, 2019 

An open meeting of the Planning, Resources, and Operations Committee (PROC) of the 
San Antonio Water Company (SAWCo) was called to order at 3:00 p.m. on the above 
date at the company office located at 139 N. Euclid Avenue, Upland, California. 
Committee members present were Gino Filippi, Martha Goss, and Tom Thomas. Also in 
attendance were SAWCo’s General Manager Brian Lee, Assistant General Manager Teri 
Layton, and Senior Administrative Specialist Kelly Mitchell. Mr. Filippi presided. 

1. Recognitions and Presentations – None.

2. Additions-Deletions to the Agenda – None.

3. Public Comments – None.

4. Approval of Committee Meeting Minutes:
A. Regular Committee Minutes of September 24, 2019 – Mr. Thomas moved and

Ms. Goss seconded to approve the meeting minutes of September 24, 2019 as
presented. Motion carried.

5. Planning and Operational Issues:
A. Request for Proposals – Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset

Management Program – Mr. Lee prepared a request for proposal (RFP) for a
Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program he hopes to
release. The project will provide SAWCo with a list of all of its facilities, where
they are at in their life cycle, and what the company should be spending on a
yearly basis to ensure facilities are well maintained. A source waterloss risk
review is included in the RFP.

The cost estimate for the project is roughly $240,000 with $160,000 allocated to
domestic and $80,000 allocated to irrigation.

The Committee desired to bring the item to the Board at the Board Budget
Workshop for their review and possible approval to release the RFP.

Mr. Thomas requested incorporating language in the RFP to allow for meetings
with the Committee.

Mr. Thomas moved and Ms. Goss seconded to bring the item to the Board at the
Board Budget Workshop for discussion and possible approval. Motion carried.

6. Planning and Operational Update -
A. Project Status Report –

o Holly Drive Reservoir Phase II – Ninety percent complete design plans are
being reviewed. This project will go to bid next year and is to be constructed
next year.

Item 4B



November 26, 2019 

2 

o Reservoir 7 – Reroofing – The reservoir liner has been installed. Final
inspection took place at the end of the previous week. Wash down,
disinfection, and pressure reducing valve will be set shortly before the
reservoir is put back in to service.

o Campus Avenue Waterline – The waterline is currently being installed. The
majority of the work will be completed in December with the remaining work
to be finished in January.

o Cucamonga Crosswalls – Repair of the damage from last year’s rainy season
is complete. Environmental mitigation will begin in the springtime.

7. Basin Issues and Updates
• San Antonio Canyon Watershed – Ms. Layton reported a meeting is scheduled

for the first part of December. The Committee will be discussing the Water
Sanitary Survey with the consultant. Costs are shared with the City of Upland and
the City of Pomona.

• Chino Basin – Ms. Layton reported on an attempt by the Agricultural Pool to
change the pooling amendment which included verbiage from the Peace II
Agreement regarding the Appropriative Pool paying the Agricultural Pool’s costs.
There is a possibility of legal action being taken by the Appropriative Pool.

• Six Basins – Mr. Lee reported the budget was approved at the most recent Board
meeting. The Pomona Valley Protective Association (PVPA) has committed
$150,000 towards the costs of projects in the basin. Operating Safe Yield remains
at 13,000 acre feet (AF).

• Cucamonga Basin – The Judgment has been reviewed in its entirety. TKE
Engineering is now using the comments from all of the parties involved and
combining them into one document. No meeting was held in November to allow
TKE more time to compile the information.

8. Closed session: None.

9. Committee’s Comments and Future Agenda Items: Mr. Lee noted the budget will
drive the future agenda items for the PROC as there is an aggressive capital
improvement plan for 2020.

Adjournment: –The meeting adjourned at 3:26 p.m. 

__________________________________ 
  Assistant Secretary 

Brian Lee 



3/12/2020 8:27:38 AM Page 1 of 3

Income Statement
San Antonio Water Company, CA Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2020 Period Ending: 01/31/2020

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingIncomeStatement
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

Category: 4 - Income
SubCategory: 40 - Shareholder Revenue

31.45 31.45301,000.00 301,000.00 300,968.551185 - Domestic Water Income (Base)
0.00 0.00148,000.00 148,000.00 148,000.001215 - Domestic Water Income (Supplemental)
0.00 0.00104,000.00 104,000.00 104,000.001220 - Domestic Water Income (Tier 3)

39.66 39.66200,000.00 200,000.00 199,960.341230 - Domestic Water Income (Readi/Chrg)
7.06 7.0660,000.00 60,000.00 59,992.941235 - Domestic Water Availability Charge (WAC)

176,762.38 176,762.383,073,000.00 3,073,000.00 2,896,237.621245 - Municipal Water Income (Base)
6,900.00 6,900.0080,000.00 80,000.00 73,100.001268 - Municipal Water Income (Readi/Chrg)
7,024.40 7,024.40224,000.00 224,000.00 216,975.601274 - Misc Water Income (Base)
3,468.54 3,468.54126,000.00 126,000.00 122,531.461275 - Misc Water Income (Supplemental)

39,730.00 39,730.00477,000.00 477,000.00 437,270.001276 - Munnicipal Water Availability Charge (WAC)
0.00 0.0015,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.001280 - Misc Water Income (Tier 3)

1,860.00 1,860.0023,000.00 23,000.00 21,140.001288 - Misc Water Income (Readi/Chrg)
1,922.00 1,922.0024,000.00 24,000.00 22,078.001290 - Misc Water Availability Charge (WAC)

0.00 0.0054,000.00 54,000.00 54,000.001295 - Dormant Water Availability Charge (WAC)
210.00 210.005,000.00 5,000.00 4,790.001400 - Stock Transfer

0.00 0.004,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.001410 - Late/Re-establishment Fee
237,955.49 237,955.49 4,680,044.514,918,000.00 4,918,000.00SubCategory: 40 - Shareholder Revenue Total:

SubCategory: 42 - Non-Shareholder Revenue
0.00 0.002,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.001725 - Misc. Income

122.70 122.700.00 0.00 -122.701750 - Service/Litigation Agreements
6,957.84 6,957.8454,000.00 54,000.00 47,042.161753 - Ground Lease Income

13,836.55 13,836.5590,000.00 90,000.00 76,163.451755 - Interest Earned
0.00 0.00344,000.00 344,000.00 344,000.001785 - Gain on Sale of Asset

20,917.09 20,917.09 469,082.91490,000.00 490,000.00SubCategory: 42 - Non-Shareholder Revenue Total:

258,872.58 258,872.58 5,149,127.425,408,000.00 5,408,000.00Category: 4 - Income Total:

Category: 5 - O & M Expense
SubCategory: 50 - Operating Facilities

13,041.81 13,041.81221,000.00 221,000.00 207,958.192175 - Facility Related Field Labor
12,961.60 12,961.60305,000.00 305,000.00 292,038.402235 - Repairs to Facilities and Equipment

3,981.14 3,981.14600,000.00 600,000.00 596,018.862265 - Power-Gas & Electric (utilities)
29,984.55 29,984.55 1,096,015.451,126,000.00 1,126,000.00SubCategory: 50 - Operating Facilities Total:

SubCategory: 51 - Operating Activities
4,692.94 4,692.9486,000.00 86,000.00 81,307.062475 - Customer Service

14.59 14.5930,000.00 30,000.00 29,985.412498 - Conservation
4,707.53 4,707.53 111,292.47116,000.00 116,000.00SubCategory: 51 - Operating Activities Total:

SubCategory: 52 - Other Operating Expense
3,676.19 3,676.1983,000.00 83,000.00 79,323.812205 - Non-Facility Related Labor

0.00 0.001,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.002210 - O & M - All Other
1,099.84 1,099.8410,000.00 10,000.00 8,900.162295 - Supplies (Inventory & Tools Expense)

76,921.24 76,921.24901,000.00 901,000.00 824,078.762565 - Depreciation/Amortization
0.00 0.00220,000.00 220,000.00 220,000.002715 - Property Taxes

18,479.12 18,479.12220,000.00 220,000.00 201,520.882805 - Water Resource Mgmt.
100,176.39 100,176.39 1,334,823.611,435,000.00 1,435,000.00SubCategory: 52 - Other Operating Expense Total:

134,868.47 134,868.47 2,542,131.532,677,000.00 2,677,000.00Category: 5 - O & M Expense Total:

Category: 6 - G & A Expense
SubCategory: 60 - Personnel

20,565.78 20,565.78295,000.00 295,000.00 274,434.222115 - Administrative Services
20.49 20.491,000.00 1,000.00 979.512130 - Development/Water Svc. App.

7,300.15 7,300.1578,000.00 78,000.00 70,699.852325 - Payroll Taxes

Item 4D



Income Statement For Fiscal: 2020 Period Ending: 01/31/2020

3/12/2020 8:27:38 AM Page 2 of 3

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingIncomeStatement
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

1,517.00 1,517.0016,000.00 16,000.00 14,483.002355 - Worker's Compensation Insurance
26,314.24 26,314.24147,000.00 147,000.00 120,685.762385 - Benefit Pay (Vac., sick, etc.)
18,227.33 18,227.33241,000.00 241,000.00 222,772.672415 - Benefit Insurance (Pension,Life,Medical,Vision etc

0.00 0.001,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.002430 - Benefit Administrative Services
73,944.99 73,944.99 705,055.01779,000.00 779,000.00SubCategory: 60 - Personnel Total:

SubCategory: 61 - Other
4,414.53 4,414.5370,000.00 70,000.00 65,585.472445 - Office/IT Support
2,169.36 2,169.3632,000.00 32,000.00 29,830.642505 - Directors Fees & Expense

0.00 0.0039,000.00 39,000.00 39,000.002535 - Liability Insurance
4,570.99 4,570.99106,000.00 106,000.00 101,429.012595 - Communication
1,277.95 1,277.953,000.00 3,000.00 1,722.052625 - Dues & Publications

153.42 153.4269,000.00 69,000.00 68,846.582655 - Outside Services
0.00 0.008,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.002745 - Income Tax Expense

2,870.80 2,870.8076,000.00 76,000.00 73,129.202775 - Accounting
19,005.95 19,005.95180,000.00 180,000.00 160,994.052776 - Legal

3,100.91 3,100.9142,000.00 42,000.00 38,899.092790 - Human Resources Expense
2,007.17 2,007.1742,000.00 42,000.00 39,992.832865 - All other

39,571.08 39,571.08 627,428.92667,000.00 667,000.00SubCategory: 61 - Other Total:

113,516.07 113,516.07 1,332,483.931,446,000.00 1,446,000.00Category: 6 - G & A Expense Total:

10,488.04 10,488.04Total Surplus (Deficit): 1,285,000.001,285,000.00



Income Statement For Fiscal: 2020 Period Ending: 01/31/2020

3/12/2020 8:27:38 AM Page 3 of 3

Fund Summary

MTD Activity YTD Activity
Budget

RemainingFund
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
10 - 10 10,488.04 10,488.04 1,274,511.961,285,000.001,285,000.00

Total Surplus (Deficit): 10,488.04 10,488.041,285,000.001,285,000.00



3/12/2020 8:27:59 AM Page 1 of 2

Balance Sheet
San Antonio Water Company, CA Account Summary

As Of 01/31/2020

Account Name Balance
Fund: 10 - 10
Assets

BalSubCategory: 10 - Cash
10-00-00-10100-00000 Petty Cash 250.00
10-00-00-10200-00000 Checking Account 1,126,322.07
10-00-00-10300-00000 Savings-Money Market 2,201,450.98
10-00-00-10400-00000 Savings-CD Accounts 20,000.00
10-00-00-10415-00000 D&O Checking Account 809,461.78
10-00-00-10438-00000 Depre/Obsolescene Res (LAIF) 2,303,521.12

Total BalSubCategory 10 - Cash: 6,461,005.95

BalSubCategory: 11 - Accounts Receivable
10-00-00-11100-00000 Accounts Receivable-Domestic 19,433.61
10-00-00-11200-00000 Accounts Receivable-Municipal 249,954.57
10-00-00-11250-00000 Accounts Receivable-Misc. 14,264.94
10-00-00-11260-00000 Accounts Receivable - Dormant 2,950.00
10-00-00-11275-00000 Contra Accounts Receivable - Unapplied Credits-18,771.25
10-00-00-11300-00000 Accounts Receivable-Other 215,689.18
10-00-00-11301-00000 Note Receivable 1,376,000.00

Total BalSubCategory 11 - Accounts Receivable: 1,859,521.05

BalSubCategory: 12 - Inventory
10-00-00-12100-00000 Inventories-Materials & Supply 87,818.01

Total BalSubCategory 12 - Inventory: 87,818.01

BalSubCategory: 13 - Prepaid
10-00-00-13100-00000 Prepaid Insurance 8,868.75
10-00-00-13105-00000 PREPAID POSTAGE 369.00

Total BalSubCategory 13 - Prepaid: 9,237.75

BalSubCategory: 14 - Investments
10-00-00-14150-00000 P.V.P.A. Investment 1.00
10-00-00-14151-00000 457B Plan Investment 17,454.91

Total BalSubCategory 14 - Investments: 17,455.91

BalSubCategory: 15 - Property, Plant, & Equipment
10-00-00-15100-00000 Land & Water Rights 920,161.26
10-00-00-15110-1507J Work in Progress "Proj J" 49,384.15
10-00-00-15110-1601N Work in Progress 25,090.11
10-00-00-15110-1602U Work in Progress 465,784.96
10-00-00-15110-1701A Work in Progress 1,246,843.23
10-00-00-15110-1806K Work In Progress 14,968.94
10-00-00-15110-1807P Work In Progress 270,094.37
10-00-00-15110-1808D Work In Progress 118,172.84
10-00-00-15110-1901 Work In Progress 400.00
10-00-00-15110-1903 Work in Progress 24,138.08
10-00-00-15110-1904 Work in Progress-GIS 31,541.65
10-00-00-15150-00000 Buildings & Site Improvements 1,746,624.52
10-00-00-15200-00000 Wells-Shafts, Bldgs, & Equip 4,879,915.22
10-00-00-15250-00000 Boosters-Bldgs & Equip 2,448,690.30
10-00-00-15300-00000 Reservoirs 1,712,021.73
10-00-00-15350-00000 Tunnels, Forebay, & Ponds 1,587,111.19
10-00-00-15400-00000 Spreading Works-Cucamonga Wash 54,859.53
10-00-00-15410-00000 Spreading Works-SanAntonio Wsh 50,235.18
10-00-00-15450-00000 Pipelines 15,922,083.13
10-00-00-15500-00000 Autos & Equipment 511,050.56
10-00-00-15550-00000 Tools 101,416.39
10-00-00-15600-00000 Telemetry System 482,714.06

Item 4D



Balance Sheet As Of 01/31/2020

3/12/2020 8:27:59 AM Page 2 of 2

Account Name Balance
10-00-00-15650-00000 Office Equipment 505,661.56
10-00-00-15990-00000 Accumulated Depreciation -12,708,144.68

Total BalSubCategory 15 - Property, Plant, & Equipment: 20,460,818.28

BalSubCategory: 16 - Other Assets
10-00-00-16100-00000 Documents & Studies 867,778.67
10-00-00-16990-00000 Accumulated Amortization -636,001.45

Total BalSubCategory 16 - Other Assets: 231,777.22

29,127,634.17Total Assets: 29,127,634.17

Liability
BalSubCategory: 13 - Prepaid
10-00-00-20650-00000 Deferred Revenue Deposit 6,432.00

Total BalSubCategory 13 - Prepaid: 6,432.00

BalSubCategory: 20 - Short-term less than 1 year
10-00-00-20100-00000 Trade Accounts Payable 50,873.86
10-00-00-20115-00000 D&O Trade Accounts Payable 10,989.44
10-00-00-20410-00000 State Franchise Tax Payable 2,005.00
10-00-00-20600-00000 Water Hydrant Meter Deposit 1,700.00
10-00-GN-20820-00000 Accrued Vacation Payable 20,404.60
10-00-OP-20820-00000 Accrued Vacation Payable 24,818.57

Total BalSubCategory 20 - Short-term less than 1 year: 110,791.47

BalSubCategory: 21 - Long-term more than 1 year
10-00-00-20152-00000 457B Deferred Comp Liability 17,454.91
10-00-00-21500-00000 Unclaimed Credits 541,561.76
10-00-00-22100-00000 Deferred Gain 1,372,237.78

Total BalSubCategory 21 - Long-term more than 1 year: 1,931,254.45

2,048,477.92Total Liability:

Equity
BalSubCategory: 30 - Stockholder equity
10-00-00-30200-00000 Contributed Capital - Ext. Fee 447,258.02
10-00-00-30210-00000 Contr. Property, Plant & Equip 2,426,040.00
10-00-00-30300-00000 Capital Account 1,500,000.00
10-00-00-30310-00000 Unissued Capital Stock -861,100.00
10-00-00-30400-00000 Retained Earngs-Brd Designated 2,656,215.35
10-00-00-30410-00000 Retained Earnings-Unrestricted 20,900,254.84

Total BalSubCategory 30 - Stockholder equity: 27,068,668.21

27,068,668.21Total Beginning Equity:
258,872.58Total Revenue
248,384.54Total Expense

10,488.04Revenues Over/Under Expenses

Total Liabilities, Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit): 29,127,634.17

27,079,156.25Total Equity and Current Surplus (Deficit):



Net income (loss) before state adjustments

Total deductions

Net income

Business income

Total additions

Adjustments
Preferences

California non-business income

Tax

Tax credits
Alternative minimum tax

Use tax

Apportioned income

NOL deduction

Taxable Income

Total payments / penalties

Overpayment credited to next year's estimated tax

Refund

Payments / Penalties

Tax Computation

Taxable income

Alternative minimum taxable income

Tax due

Average

Failure to pay penalty

Sales

Failure to file penalty

Payroll

Interest

Property

5806 penalty
Payments

Total

Total tax

4th quarter
3rd quarter
2nd quarter
1st quarter

and endingFor calendar year 2019 or fiscal year beginning

Apportionment PercentageNext Year's Estimates

California Form 100 Return Summary

Alternative Minimum Taxable Income

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 0138200

122,768
318,765
306,860

134,673

134,673

134,673

11,905

11,905

9,900

9,900

2,005

12,000

12,000
100.000000

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM
Item 4D



Form at bottom of page.

Corporation Estimated Tax 100-ES

Installment 1 –

WHERE TO FILE:

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD
PO BOX 942857
SACRAMENTO CA  94257-0531

IF NO PAYMENT IS DUE, DO NOT MAIL THIS FORM

 TAXABLE YEAR  CALIFORNIA FORM 

DETACH HERE DETACH HERE

File and Pay by the 15th day of the 4th month of the taxable year. When

Installment 1

the due date falls on a weekend or holiday, the deadline to file and pay
without a penalty is extended to the next business day.

Make all checks or money orders payable in U.S. dollars and drawn against a
U.S. financial institution.

on the check or money order. Detach form below. Enclose, but do 
and CA SOS file number, if applicable, and "2020 Form 100-ES" 

6101206 Form 100-ES 2019

2020

Using black or blue ink, make the check or money order payable
to the "Franchise Tax Board." Write the corporation number, FEIN, 

20

ftb.ca.gov/pay for more information.

Businesses. Corporations can make an immediate payment 
Corporations can make payments online using Web Pay forONLINE SERVICES:

or schedule payments up to a year in advance. Go to

Caution:  The corporation may be required to pay electronically. See instructions.

not staple, the payment with this form and mail to:

Est Tax Amt QSub Tax Amt
Total Payment Amt

034

• •
•

If no payment is due, do not mail this form.

0138200 SANA **-***3990 000000000000 FORM 1
TYB 01-01-2020 TYE 12-31-2020
SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY

139 NORTH EUCLID AVENUE
UPLAND CA 91786 (909) 982-4107

12000
12000

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM

DO N
OT 

FIL
E



DO NOT MAIL THIS FORM TO THE FTB
FORMTAXABLE YEAR

8453-CCalifornia e-file Return Authorization for Corporations2019
Corporation name California Corporation No., CA SOS file no., or FEIN

Part I Tax Return Information (whole dollars only)
1
2
3
4
5 5

4
3
2
1Total income (Form 100, line 9; Form 100S, line 8; Form 100W, line 9 or Form 100X, line 6)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Taxable income (Form 100, line 22; Form 100S, line 20; Form 100W, line 22 or Form 100X, line 10)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total tax (Form 100, line 30; Form 100S, line 29; Form 100W, line 30 or Form 100X, line 18) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Tax due (Form 100, line 39; Form 100S, line 38; Form 100W, line 36 or Form 100X, line 20)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Overpayment (Form 100, line 40; Form 100S, line 39; Form 100W, line 37 or Form 100X, line 27)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Settle the Account Electronically for Taxable Year 2019Part II

7
6 Direct deposit of refund (For Forms 100, 100S, and 100W only.)

Electronic funds withdrawal 7a 7bAmount Withdrawal date (mm/dd/yyyy)
Part III Schedule of Estimated Tax Payments for Taxable Year 2020 (These are NOT installment payments for the current amount the corporation owes.)

9
8 Amount

Withdrawal Date

First Payment Second Payment Third Payment Fourth Payment

10
11

Routing number
Account number

Banking Information (Have you verified the corporation's banking information?)Part IV

Type of account:12 Checking Savings

For Privacy Notice, get FTB 1131 ENG/SP. FTB 8453-C  2019

Paid
Preparer
Must
Sign

Firm's name (or yours
if self-employed)
and address

Paid
preparer's
signature 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined the above corporation’s return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my
knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. I make this declaration based on all information of which I have knowledge.

ZIP code

Firm's FEIN

Date Paid preparer's PTIN

Date

Firm's FEIN

ZIP codeand address
if self-employed)
Firm's name (or yours

signature
ERO's

ERO's PTIN

Sign
Must
ERO also paid

preparer

Part V Declaration of Officer

Here
Sign  

Signature of officer Date Title

Part VI Declaration of Electronic Return Originator (ERO) and Paid Preparer. See instructions.

Check if Check
employed
if self-

if self-
employed

Check



034

Date Accepted



I authorize the corporate account to be settled as designated in Part II. If I check Part ll, Box 6, I declare that the bank account specified in Part IV for the direct
deposit refund agrees with the authorization stated on my return. If I check Part ll, Box 7, I authorize an electronic funds withdrawal for the amount listed on line 7a
and any estimated payment amounts listed on Part III, line 8 from the bank account specified in Part IV.

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I am an officer of the above corporation and that the information I provided to my electronic return originator (ERO), transmitter,
or intermediate service provider and the amounts in Part I above agree with the amounts on the corresponding lines of the corporation’s 2019 California income tax
return. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the corporation’s return is true, correct, and complete. If the corporation is filing a balance due return, I understand that
if the Franchise Tax Board (FTB) does not receive full and timely payment of the corporation’s tax liability, the corporation will remain liable for the tax liability and all
applicable interest and penalties. I authorize the corporation return and accompanying schedules and statements be transmitted to the FTB by the ERO, transmitter, or
intermediate service provider. If the processing of the corporation’s return or refund is delayed, I authorize the FTB to disclose to the ERO or intermediate service
provider the reason(s) for the delay or the date when the refund was sent.

I declare that I have reviewed the above corporation’s return and that the entries on form FTB 8453-C are complete and correct to the best of my knowledge. (If I
am only an intermediate service provider, I understand that I am not responsible for reviewing the corporation’s return. I declare, however, that form FTB 8453-C
accurately reflects the data on the return.) I have obtained the corporate officer’s signature on form FTB 8453-C before transmitting this return to the FTB; I
have provided the corporate officer with a copy of all forms and information that I will file with the FTB, and I have followed all other requirements described in
FTB Pub. 1345, 2019 Handbook for Authorized e-file Providers. I will keep form FTB 8453-C on file for four years from the due date of the return or four years from
the date the corporation return is filed, whichever is later, and I will make a copy available to the FTB upon request. If I am also the paid preparer, under penalties
of perjury, I declare that I have examined the above corporation’s return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief,
they are true, correct, and complete. I make this declaration based on all information of which I have knowledge.

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 0138200

441,533
134,673
11,905
2,005

03/03/2020 GENERAL MANAGER

CRAIG B. MILLER 03/03/2020 X *********

BOWEN, MCBETH, INC.
10722 ARROW RTE STE 110
RANCHO CUCAMONGA CA 91730-4840

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



Employer Identification NumberCalifornia Corporation Number

I consent to allow my ERO, Intermediate Service Provider, and/or my Transmitter to send this business return

and endingFor calendar year 2019 or fiscal year beginning

CA Consent to Disclosure
2019

to the FTB.  Additionally, I consent to allow FTB to send my ERO, Intermediate Service Provider, and/or my
Transmitter an acknowledgment of receipt of transmission and an indication of whether or not this business return
is accepted, and, if rejected the reason(s) for the rejection.  If the processing of the return or refund is delayed,
I authorize the FTB to disclose to my Intermediate Service Provider and/or Transmitter the reason(s) for the delay,
or when the refund was sent.

By using this system to prepare and submit this tax return, I consent to the disclosure to the FTB of all information
pertaining to my use of this system, including the Internet Provider address.

8453-CForm

Name

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 0138200 **-***3990

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



DETACH HERE

FTB 3586   2019

.

Corporations - File and Pay by the 15th day of the 4th month WHEN TO FILE:

SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0531
PO BOX 942857
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD

WHERE TO FILE:

and Exempt Organizations e-filed Returns 3586 (e-file)2019

Voucher at bottom of page.

DO NOT MAIL A PAPER COPY OF THE CORPORATE OR EXEMPT ORGANIZATION TAX RETURN 

If the amount of payment is zero, do not mail this voucher.

When the due date falls on a weekend or holiday, the deadline to file and pay

institution.

without penalty is extended to the next business day.

Make all checks or money orders payable in U.S. dollars and drawn against a U.S. financial 

IF NO PAYMENT IS DUE, DO NOT MAIL THIS VOUCHER

order. Detach voucher below. Enclose, but do not staple, payment 
CA SOS file number and “2019 FTB 3586” on the check or money 
the “Franchise Tax Board.” Write the corporation number, FEIN, 
Using black or blue ink, make check or money order payable to 

6181196

19

 CALIFORNIA FORM   TAXABLE YEAR 

DETACH HERE

Payment Voucher for Corporations 

with voucher and mail to:

ONLINE SERVICES: Corporations can make payments online using Web Pay for
Businesses. Corporations can make an immediate payment or
schedule payments up to a year in advance. Go to ftb.ca.gov/pay
for more information.

CAUTION: You may be required to pay electronically, see instructions.

WITH THE PAYMENT VOUCHER.

Amount of Payment

S corporations – File and Pay by the 15th day of the 3rd month
following the close of the taxable year.

034

following the close of the taxable year.

Exempt organizations – File and Pay by the 15th day of the 5th
month following the close of the taxable year.

0138200 SANA **-***3990 000000000000 FORM 1
TYB 01-01-2019 TYE 12-31-2019
SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY

139 NORTH EUCLID AVENUE
UPLAND CA 91786

(909) 982-4107
2005

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM

DO N
OT 

FIL
E



FINAL RETURN?

Wholly within CA (R&TC 25101.15)

California Corporation
2019 Franchise or Income Tax Return 100

1 1
2 2
3 3
4 4
5 5
6 6
7 7
8 8
9 9

Net income (loss) before state adjustments. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amount deducted for foreign or domestic tax based on income or profits from Schedule A  . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amount deducted for tax under the provisions of the Corporation Tax Law from Schedule A . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest on government obligations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net California capital gain from Side 6, Schedule D, line 11  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income from corporations not included in federal consolidated return. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other additions. Attach schedule(s)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total. Add line 1 through line 8  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Form 100      2019  Side 1

  TAXABLE YEAR       FORM     

Surrendered (withdrawn) Merged/ReorganizedDissolved IRC Section 338 sale QSub election

Enter date (mm/dd/yyyy)

1. Yes No

Within and outside of CA

2.

Depreciation and amortization in excess of amount allowed under California law. Attach form FTB 3885  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

3601194

A

B

Schedule Q Questions (continued on Side 2)

3.

Yes Nol

4.

Enter the number of members (including parent or key corporation) listed in the Schedule R-7, Part I, Section A,
subject to income or franchise tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . l

Is there a change in the members listed in Schedule R-7 from the prior year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

00

Is income included in a combined report of a unitary group?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” indicate:

00

00
00

00

00
00

00
00

Is form FTB 3544 attached to the return? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . NoYesl

TYB TYE

RP

St
at

e 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts

1.C

During this taxable year, did this corporation or any of its subsidiaries acquire control or majority ownership 

property for a term of 35 years or more, or leased such property from a government agency for any term?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

for a term of 35 years or more, or leased such property from a government agency for any term?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
2.

l NoYes
3. During this taxable year, has more than 50% of the voting stock of this corporation cumulatively transferred in one or more 

transactions after an interest in California real property (i.e., land, buildings) was transferred to it that was excluded from 
property tax reassessment under R&TC Section 62(a)(2) and it was not reported on a previous year’s tax return?  . . . . . . . .
(Yes requires filing of statement, penalties may apply – see instructions.)

Yes Nol

During this taxable year, did another person or legal entity acquire control or majority ownership (more than a 50% interest) 
of this corporation or any of its subsidiaries that owned California real property (i.e., land, buildings), leased such property 

Yes Nol

(more than a 50% interest) in another legal entity that owned California real property (i.e., land, buildings), leased such 

034034

0138200 SANA **-***3990 000000000000 19
01-01-2019 12-31-2019

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY

139 NORTH EUCLID AVENUE
UPLAND CA 91786

X

X

122,768

11,905

306,860

441,533

X

X

X

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



3602194

E

F

Overpayment. If line 37 is more than line 30, subtract line 30 from line 37  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

38
37
38

39

Use tax. This is not a total line. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36

41

42a. 42b. 42c.
43

b
43a

44 Total amount due. Add line 38, line 39, line 41, and line 43a. Then, subtract line 40 from the result 44

Amount of line 40 to be credited to 2020 estimated tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

See instructions to have the refund directly deposited.

Routing number Type

Checking
Savings

Account number

Check if estimate penalty computed using Exception B or C on form FTB 5806. See instructions.

l

l

Refund.  Subtract line 41 from line 40  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

l

a Penalties & interest  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If the corporation filed on a water’s-edge basis pursuant to R&TC Sections 25110 and 25113 in previous years, enter the date the
water’s-edge election ended  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Was the corporation’s income included in a consolidated federal return?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

l

l

D

Schedule Q Questions (continued from Side 1)

Re
fu

nd
 o

r 
Am

ou
nt

 D
ue

Side 2  Form 100      2019

Principal business activity code. (Do not leave blank):  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Business activity

Product or service

l

l

l

l

l

00

00

00

00

00
00

36

Franchise or income tax due. If line 30 is more than line 37, subtract line 37 from line 30  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

l

37

00

24

00
00
00
00
00

00
00
00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

l

l

l

l

l

l

Pa
ym

en
ts

code

Ta
xe

s
CA

 N
et

 In
co

m
e

l

l

amountCredit name code
Credit name amount

Net operating loss (NOL) deduction. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total payments. Add line 31 through line 34  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amount paid with extension of time to file tax return  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2019 Withholding (Form 592-B and/or 593). See instructions . . . .

2019 Estimated tax payments. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Overpayment from prior year allowed as a credit  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Alternative minimum tax. Attach Schedule P (100). See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Add line 24 through line 26  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

To claim more than two credits, see instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

% x line 22 (at least minimum franchise tax, if applicable). See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Tax.

Disaster loss deduction. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

EZ, LARZ, TTA, or LAMBRA NOL carryover deduction.

3535
3434
3333
3232
3131

30Total tax. Add line 28 and line 29  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .30
2929
28Balance.  Subtract line 27 from line 23 (at least minimum franchise tax, if applicable)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .28
2727

2626
25
24
23 23

2222
2121
20

20
1919

1818 Net income (loss) for state purposes. Complete Schedule R if apportioning or allocating income. See instructions  . . . .

l

l

l

Net income for tax purposes. Combine line 19 through line 21. Then, subtract from line 18  . . . . . . . . . . .

l

l

l

l

l

00
25

l l

¡•

(mm/dd/yyyy)

Schedule Q Questions (continued on Side 3)

l

l

10 10
11 11
12 12
13 13
14 14
15 15
16 16
17 17

Intercompany dividend elimination. Attach Schedule H (100)  . . . .
Dividends received deduction. Attach Schedule H (100)  . . . . . . . . .

Capital gain from federal Form 1120, line 8  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Charitable Contributions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add line 10 through line 15  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net income (loss) after state adjustments. Subtract line 16 from Side 1, line 9 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Additional depreciation allowed under CA law. Attach form FTB 3885  . . . . .

Other deductions. Attach schedule(s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

S
ta

te
 

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 (c
on

t.) 00
00
00
00
00
00

00
l 00

00
00

39

42

Payments balance. If line 35 is more than line 36, subtract line 36 from line 35  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Use tax balance. If line 36 is more than line 35, subtract line 35 from line 36  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

40 40

42
41

l

l

034

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY
0138200

306,860

306,860
134,673
134,673

134,673
11,9058.840

0
11,905

0
11,905

9,900

9,900

9,900

2,005

2,005

X
221300

WATER PROD & DELIV
WATER

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



Form 100      2019  Side 33603194

l NoYesMay the FTB discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

and address Telephone

if self-employed)

Firm's FEINFirm's name (or yours,

PTINDate
Check if self-Preparer's

of officer 
Signature TelephoneDateTitle

and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Use Only
Preparer's
Paid

Here
Sign Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge

l



l

l

l

signature employed 

BB

l

l

$

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

NoYesIs this corporation apportioning or allocating income to California using Schedule R?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYesHas the corporation included a reportable transaction or listed transaction within this return? (See instructions for definitions)
If the owner(s) is an individual, provide the SSN/ITIN and see FTB 1131, for more information.

NoYes

If 1 or 3 is “Yes,” enter the country of the ultimate parent  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYesOf this and one or more other corporations owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by the same interests?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

N/A NoYes
NoYesIs the corporation under audit by the IRS or has it been audited by the IRS in a prior year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYesIs this corporation to be treated as a credit union?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYesIs this corporation an LLC or limited partnership electing to be taxed as a corporation for federal purposes?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYesIs this corporation a REIT for California purposes?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYesIs this corporation treated as a REMIC for California purposes?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYesIs this corporation or any of its subsidiaries a RIC? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYes
If “Yes,” enter the total balance of all DISAs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Does this corporation or any of its subsidiaries have a Deferred Intercompany Stock Account (DISA)?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other(3)Accrual(2)Cash(1)Accounting method:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Outside of the U.S.(3)Outside of California, within the U.S.(2)Within California(1)Corporation headquarters are:  . . . . . . . . . . . .

How many affiliates in the combined report are claiming immunity from taxation in California under Public Law 86-272?

Location of principal accounting records

Does the taxpayer (or any corporation of the taxpayer’s combined group, if applicable) own 80% or more of the stock of an insurance company?  . . . .

If 1, 2, or 3 is “Yes,” furnish a statement of ownership indicating pertinent names, addresses, and percentages of stock owned.

Yes Nol

Does any member of the combined report own an SMLLC or generate/claim credits that are attributable to an SMLLC?  . . . . . .

Did the corporation file the federal Schedule UTP (Form 1120)?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .AA

If “Yes,” complete and attach federal Form 8886 for each transaction.
M

L

Z

3.

Y
X
W

V
U
T
S

R
Q
P
O
N

l

l

l

l

l

Have all required information returns (e.g. federal Forms 1099, 5471, 5472, 8300, 8865, etc.) been filed with the Franchise Tax Board?  . . .

NoYesOf another corporation owned by this corporation?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NoYesOf the corporation owned by any single interest? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

At any time during the taxable year, was more than 50% of the voting stock:

2.
1.

K

l

l

Officer’s email address (optional)





l

If "Yes", enter the effective date of the election (mm/dd/yyyy):  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

“Doing business as” name. See instructions:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . lJ

l

l

Other(5)Corporation(4)Joint venture(3)Partnership(2)(1) Sole proprietorship

If “Yes” and this corporation is a successor to a previously existing business, check the appropriate box.NoYesFirst return?  . . . . .

(Attach statement showing name, address, and FEIN/SSN/ITIN of previous business.)

I

(mm/dd/yyyy) l

l

Date business began in California or date income was first derived from California sources  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

State CountryDate incorporated (mm/dd/yyyy): Where:

H

G

034

CC Did this corporation, or any corporation in a combined reporting group, receive any qualified health care service plan
income that is excluded from gross income for state purposes (R&TC Section 24330)? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1.

2. Is this corporation’s, or any corporation in a combined reporting group’s, only source of income qualified health care
service plan income that is excluded from gross income under R&TC Section 24330 for the taxable year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

l

l

Yes No

NoYes

Yes No

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY
0138200

10/01/1882 CA
10/01/1882

X

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY

X
X
X

USA

STMT 1
X

X

X
SEE STMT 2

X
X

X
X
X
X

X
X

X
X
X
X

X

X

GENERAL MANAGER
909-982-4107

CRAIG B. MILLER 03/04/20 *********

BOWEN, MCBETH, INC.
10722 ARROW RTE STE 110
RANCHO CUCAMONGA, CA 91730-4840 909-944-6465

X

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



¡

¡
¡

¡

Salaries and wages (not deducted elsewhere)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Computation of Net Income. See instructions.
1 a)

b) c) 1c
2 2
3 3

In
co

m
e

4 4
5 a) 5a

b) 5b
6 6
7 7
8 8
9 9

10 10
11 Total income. Add line 3 through line 10  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
12

12
13 13
14 14
15 15
16 16
17 17
18 18
19 19
20

20
21

21a 21b
22 22
23 23
24 24
25 25
26 a)

b) 26b
27 27
28

28
29 Total deductions. Add line 12 through line 28  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29
30 30

Gross receipts or gross sales
Less returns and allowance Balance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Cost of goods sold. Attach federal Form 1125-A (California Schedule V)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Gross profit. Subtract line 2 from line 1c  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total dividends. Attach federal Schedule C, (California Schedule H (100))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Interest on obligations of the United States and U.S. instrumentalities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other interest. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross rents  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Gross royalties  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Capital gain net income. Attach federal Schedule D (California Schedule D)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Ordinary gain (loss). Attach federal Form 4797 (California Schedule D-1)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other income (loss). Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Repairs and maintenance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Bad debts  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Rents  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Taxes (California Schedule A). See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Charitable Contributions. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

elsewhere on return . . . . . . . . . .
Depletion. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Advertising  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Pension, profit-sharing plans, etc.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Employee benefit plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Deductible amounts  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Nature of tax Taxing authority Total amount Nondeductible amount

Compensation of officers. Attach federal Form 1125-E or
equivalent schedule . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Depreciation. Attach federal

Total travel and entertainment

Net income before state adjustments. Subtract line 29 from line 11. Enter here and on Side 1, line 1

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

3604194

(b) (c) (d)(a)

Total.  Enter total of column (c) on Schedule F, line 17, and total of column (d) on Side 1, line 2 or line 3.

Schedule J Add-On Taxes and Recapture of Tax Credits. See instructions.
1 1
2 2
3 a 3a

b 3b
4 4
5 5
6

6

LIFO recapture due to S corporation election, IRC Sec. 1363(d) deferral: $ .  . . . . .
Interest computed under the look-back method for completed long-term contracts (Attach form FTB 3834)
Interest on tax attributable to installment: Sales of certain timeshares and residential lots  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Method for nondealer installment obligations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
IRC Section 197(f)(9)(B)(ii) election  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Credit recapture name:
Combine line 1 through line 5, revise Side 2, line 39 or line 40, whichever applies, by this amount. Write
“Schedule J” to the left of line 39 or line 40  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Section 23701r or 23701t. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

De
du

ct
io

ns

.  . . . . .

Other deductions. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Specific deduction for organizations under R&TC

Less depreciation claimed
Form 4562 and FTB 3885  . . .

Schedule A

Schedule F

Taxes Deducted. Use additional sheet(s) if necessary.

00
00

00

00
00
00
00

00
00
00
00

00
00
00
00

00
00
00
00

00
00
00
00

00
00
00
00
00

00
00

00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

00

If the corporation uses California computation method to compute the net income, see instructions.

•
¡•

Side 4  Form 100      2019

¡•

•
•
•

034

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY
0138200

STATE INCOME TAX FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 11,905 11,905
PROPERTY AND PAYROLL COUNTY, IRS AND EDD 285,491

297,396 11,905

4,771,432
4,771,432

4,771,432

SEE STMT 3 78,349
57,684

306,860

SEE STMT 4 4,127
5,218,452

650,105
15,943

297,396

917,344

917,344

66,723
312,877

SEE STMT 5 2,835,296

5,095,684
122,768

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



¡

¡
¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

If the LIFO inventory method was used for this taxable year, enter the amount of closing inventory under LIFO
Do the rules of IRC Section 263A (with respect to property produced or acquired for resale) apply to the corporation?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

l

Balance Sheet Beginning of taxable year End of taxable year
Assets (a) (b) (c) (d)
1
2 a

b
3
4
5
6
7
8
9 a

b
10 a

b
11
12 a

b
13
14 Total assets.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
15
16
17
18
19
20
21 a

b
22
23

24
25

26
27

Cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Less allowance for bad debts  . . . . . . ( ) ( )
Inventories  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans to stockholders/officers.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Mortgage and real estate loans  . . . . . . .

Less accumulated depreciation  . . . . ( ) ( )
Depletable assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Less accumulated depletion  . . . . . . . ( ) ( )

Land (net of any amortization)  . . . . . . . .

Less accumulated amortization  . . . . ( ) ( )
Other assets.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Accounts payable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans from stockholders.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other liabilities.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Capital stock: Preferred stock . . . . .

Common stock  . . . . .

Less cost of treasury stock . . . . . . . . . . . . ( ) ( )

Trade notes and accounts receivable  . . .

Federal and state government obligations  . .

Other current assets.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other investments.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Buildings and other fixed depreciable assets

Intangible assets (amortizable only)  . . . .

Mortgages, notes, bonds payable in less than 1 year
Other current liabilities.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Mortgages, notes, bonds payable in 1 year or more  . .

Paid-in or capital surplus. Attach reconciliation  . . . . .
Retained earnings -

Retained earnings - Unappropriated  . . . . . .
Adjustments to shareholders'
equity.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

l

l

l l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l l

l

3605194

Schedule V Cost of Goods Sold
1 1
2 2
3 3
4 a 4a

b 4b
5 5
6 6
7 7

Inventory at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Purchases  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cost of labor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Additional IRC Section 263A costs. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other costs. Attach schedule  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add line 1 through line 4b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Inventory at end of year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cost of goods sold. Subtract line 6 from line 5. Enter here and on Side 4, Schedule F, line 2  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Method of inventory valuation 
Was there any change in determining quantities, costs of valuations between opening and closing inventory?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
If "Yes," attach an explanation.

Yes No

Enter California seller's permit number, if any 
Check if the LIFO inventory method was adopted this taxable year for any goods. If checked, attach federal Form 970  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  . . . . . .

The corporation may not be required to complete Schedules L, M-1, and M-2. See Schedule M-1 instructions for reporting requirements.
Schedule L

00
00

00
00

00
00

00
00

l

l

•
¡•

•

¡•

•
¡•
•
¡•
•
¡•
¡•

•
¡•

•
¡•
•

¡•
•
¡•
•
¡•
•

¡•
•

¡•
•

¡•
• ¡• ¡•

Form 100      2019  Side 5

Appropriated.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

034

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY
0138200

6,212,354 6,611,620
295,481 482,237

295,481 482,237
93,446 87,775

STMT 6 9,238 9,238

STMT 7 16,496
30,223,040 32,209,866
11,851,502 18,371,538 12,635,360 19,574,506

924,864 920,161

STMT 8 293,754 1,611,914
26,200,675 29,313,947

740,599 848,413

STMT 9 850 8,132

STMT 10 1,388,734

638,900 638,900 638,900 638,900
2,851,528 2,873,298

STMT 11 3,529,386 2,656,215
18,439,412 20,900,255

26,200,675 29,313,947

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



¡
¡

¡

Expenses recorded on books this year

(f)(e)(d)(c)(b)(a)

l

l

Total lines 9 and 10. Enter here and on Form 100, Side 1, line 5.

Net long-term capital gain (loss). Combine line 5 through line 7  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(d) less (e)basis plus(mm/dd/yyyy)(mm/dd/yyyy)(Example, 100 shares of Z Co.)
Gross sales Gain (loss)Cost or otherDate soldDate acquiredKind of property and description

Net capital gain. Enter excess of net long-term capital gain (line 8) over net short-term capital loss (line 4)  . . . .

Enter excess of net short-term capital gain (line 4) over net long-term capital loss (line 8) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Long-term capital gain from installment sales from form FTB 3805E, line 26 or line 37  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter gain from Schedule D-1, line 9 and/or any capital gain distributions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net short-term capital gain (loss). Combine line 1 through line 3  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Unused capital loss carryover from 2018  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Short-term capital gain from installment sales from form FTB 3805E, line 26 or line 37  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

11
11

1010
99
88
77
66

5

Long-Term Capital Gains and Losses – Assets Held More Than One Year. Use additional sheet(s) if necessary.Part II
44
33
22

1

Short-Term Capital Gains and Losses – Assets Held One Year or Less. Use additional sheet(s) if necessary.Part I
California Capital Gains and LossesSchedule D

If the corporation completed federal Schedule M-3 (Form 1120/1120-F), see instructions.

l

l

l

l

ll

ll

l

l

l

l

l

l

Balance at end of year.

Net income per return.

State tax refunds

not deducted in this return (itemize)

Excess of capital losses over capital gains . . . .

Income recorded on books this year not

Total. Add line 1 through line 3 . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add line 5 and line 6  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other decreases (itemize)
Property  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Other increases (itemize)
Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Net income per books  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Cash  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Distributions:Balance at beginning of year  . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add line 1 through line 5e  . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add line 7c and line 8d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

$$
$Depreciation$

against book income this year (itemize)
Deductions in this return not charged

$

Federal income tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income per books  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

8
4

7

6
c3
b2
a51

Analysis of Unappropriated Retained Earnings per Books (Side 5, Schedule L, line 24)

10
6

9

b
a

5 8

3
2

a

1 7

Reconciliation of Income (Loss) per Books With Income (Loss) per Return.

Schedule M-2

Schedule M-1

3606194

 If losses exceed gains, carry forward losses to 2020  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

price
expense of sale

Subtract line 9 from line 6 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

included in this return (itemize)
Tax-exempt
interest  . . . . .

a Depreciation
b State taxes

Travel andc
entertainment

4 Taxable income not recorded on books this year
(itemize)

Subtract line 7 from line 4 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

00

00
00
00
00
00
00

00

00
00
00
00

00

Other  . . . . .d

b Other  . . . . . . .

Other  . . . . . . . .c

Total. Add line 7ac
and line 7b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

through line 8c  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
d Total. Add line 8a

Total. Add line 5ae
through line 5d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

$

$

Side 6  Form 100      2019

¡•

•
¡•

•
•

034

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY
0138200

1,587,672

11,905

11,905
1,599,577

1,464,904
1,464,904
1,464,904

134,673

18,439,412
1,587,672

RESERVES 873,171

20,900,255 20,900,255

FIXED ASSETS
VARIOUS VARIOUS 350,462 43,602 306,860

306,860

0
306,860

306,860

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



¡

¡
Net income (loss) after state adjustments. Enter the amount from Form 100, line 17; Schedule R, line 1c; or Form 109, 

Alternative Minimum Tax and
2019 P (100)Credit Limitations — Corporations

Part I Tentative Minimum Tax (TMT) and Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT) Computation
1

1
2 Adjustments.  See instructions.

a 2a
b 2b
c 2c
d 2d
e 2e
f 2f
g 2g
h 2h
i 2i
j 2j
k 2k
l 2l

3 Tax preference items. See instructions.
a 3a
b 3b
c 3c

4 Pre-adjustment alternative minimum taxable income (AMTI):
a 4a
b Apportioned pre-adjustment AMTI. If income is derived from sources both within and outside of California,

4b
5 Adjusted current earnings (ACE) adjustment:

a 5a
b

5b
c

5c
d 5d
e

5e
f ACE adjustment:

5f
6 6
7 a 7a

b 7b
c 7c

8 8
9 9

10 10
11 11
12 12
13 13
14 14
15 15
16 16

Attach to Form 100 or Form 109.

Depreciation of tangible property placed in service after 1986  . . . .

Long-term contracts entered into after February 28, 1986 . . . . . . . . .
Installment sales of certain property  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Tax shelter farm activities (personal service corporations only)  . . .

Certain loss limitations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Merchant marine capital construction funds  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Combine line 2a through line 2k  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Depletion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Intangible drilling costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Add line 3a and line 3b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Combine line 1, line 2l, and line 3c  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

see instructions. Otherwise, enter the amount from line 4a  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter ACE. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Subtract line 4b from line 5b (even if one or both of the figures are negative).
If negative, use brackets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Multiply line 5c by 75% (.75) and enter the result as a positive number  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If line 5c is a positive amount or zero, enter the amount from line 5d on line 5f as a positive amount.
If line 5c is a negative amount, enter the smaller of line 5d or line 5e on line 5f as a negative amount  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Combine line 4b and line 5f. If zero or less, enter -0-  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

AMT net operating loss deduction. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Combine line 7a and line 7b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

AMTI. Subtract line 7c from line 6 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Enter $40,000 exemption. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Enter $150,000 limitation. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Subtract line 10 from line 8. If zero or less, enter -0-  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Multiply line 11 by 25% (.25)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Exemption. Subtract line 12 from line 9. If zero or less, enter -0-  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Subtract line 13 from line 8. If zero or less, enter -0-  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Multiply line 14 by 6.65% (.0665)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Schedule P (100) 2019  Side 1

 TAXABLE YEAR  CALIFORNIA SCHEDULE 

Corporation name California corporation number

Amortization of certified pollution control facilities placed in service after 1986  . . . . . . . . . . .
Amortization of mining exploration and development costs incurred after 1987  . . . . . . . . . . .
Basis adjustments in determining gain or loss from sale or exchange of property  . . . . . . . . .

Passive activities (closely held corporations and personal service corporations only)  . . . . . .

Beneficiaries of estates and trusts. Enter the amount from Schedule K-1 (541), line 12a  . . . .

California, see instructions. Otherwise, enter the amount from line 5a  . . . . . .

Enter the excess, if any, of the corporation's total increases in AMTI from prior year ACE adjustments over its total
reductions in AMTI from prior year ACE adjustments. Enter an amount on line 5e (even if line 5c is positive)  . . . . . . . . . . . .

Reduction for disaster loss deduction, if any, from Form 100, line 21  . . . . . . .

Banks and financial corps. Multiply Form 100, line 22, by 2.00% (.0200). See instructions  . . . . . . .

•
•

7951194

Apportioned ACE. If income is derived from sources both within and outside of

the lesser of line 1 or line 2.  See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 00

00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00

00
00

00

00

00

00
00

00
00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00
00

00
00
00
00
00
00
00
00

¡•

¡•
•

•¡

¡•

•¡

¡•

•¡

¡•
•¡

¡•
•¡

¡•
•¡

¡•
•¡

¡•
•¡

•¡

¡•
•¡

¡•
•¡

¡•
•¡

¡•
•¡
¡•

•¡
¡•

¡•

•
¡•

•¡
¡•

•¡
¡•

034

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 0138200

134,673

0

134,673

134,673

134,673

134,673

0 
0

0
134,673

134,673
40,000
150,000

0

40,000
94,673

6,296

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



¡

¡

¡¡

¡ ¡

¡

¡

¡

¡

• •

•

¡•

¡•

•

•

•

•

•

¡•

17
17Credit carryover from Section B, column (d)  . . .

Enterprise Zone Hiring & Sales or Use TaxCode: 176

16a
16b

16b

00
00

00
00
00

00
00
00

See instructions.

See instructions.

no carryover provisions.

7952194

Enter the AMT from Part I, line 19  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Name:Code: Credit
Name:Code: Credit
Name:Code: Credit
Name:Code:
Credit

Name:Code: Credit
Name:Code: Credit
Name:Code: Credit
Name:Code: Credit

credits
carryovermay be offset byyear

CreditTax balance thatCredit used thisCredit amount

TMT (before credits) from Part I, line 17 (but not less than the minimum franchise tax, if applicable)  . . . . . . .

Total available credit. Add line 1 and line 2. Enter here and on Part II, line 9, column (a).  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Carryover of unused credit for prior year AMT. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter the AMT from the 2018 Schedule P (100). See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Form 100, line 29 or Form 109, Side 1, line 13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Adjusted AMT. Enter the balance from line 17, column (c) here and on

Section B, column (d) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Code: 181 Commercial Solar Energy Credit carryover from

Solar Energy Credit carryover from Section B, column (d)Code: 180

column (c) or the last entry in column (c)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Part II, line 2, minus the minimum franchise tax, if applicable, plus line 9,
franchise tax, if applicable. If line 3 is more than zero, enter the total of
If Part II, line 3 is zero, enter the amount from line 1 minus the minimum

Code: 188   Credit for prior year AMT from Part III, line 3  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Code: 162  Prison Inmate Labor Credit  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

This is the excess regular tax which may be offset by credits. . . . . . . . . . .
Subtract line 2 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0- and see instructions.

Regular tax from Form 100, line 23 or Form 109, line 10  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Regular tax before credits. Enter the amount from Form 100, line 23 or Form 109, line 10. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Side 2  Schedule P (100) 2019

33
22
11

Credit for Prior Year AMT
18

18

16a16
1515

1414
1313
1212
1111

Credits that reduce net tax and have carryover provisions.B
10

10
Credits that may reduce regular tax below TMT.

99
88
77
66
55

carryover provisions.
Credits that reduce excess regular tax and haveA2

44

Credits that reduce excess regular tax and haveA1
3

3
Credits that reduce excess regular tax.

(d)(c)(b)(a)
22
11

Credits that Reduce Tax. See instructions.

19AMT. Subtract line 18 from line 17. If zero or less, enter -0-. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .19
1818
17TMT. Add line 15 and line 16 from Side 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .17

Tentative Minimum Tax (TMT) and Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT) Computation (continued)

Part III

Section C – Credits that may reduce AMT. See instructions.

Section B –

Section A –

Part II

Part I

•¡
¡•

•¡

•¡
¡•
•¡

¡•
•¡
¡•
•¡

•¡
¡•

•¡

¡•••¡
¡• • •¡ •¡ ¡

¡¡ •¡•••¡
¡• • •¡ •¡ ¡

¡• • •¡ •¡

¡¡ •¡•••¡
¡• • •¡ •¡ ¡

¡¡ •¡•••¡
¡• • •¡ •¡ ¡

¡¡ •¡•••¡

¡• • •¡ •¡ ¡

¡¡ •¡•••¡

034

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY
0138200

6,296
11,905

0

11,905
6,296

5,609

0

0

0

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



and Amortization 3885

Part II

Part IV

Depreciation and Election of Additional First Year Depreciation Deduction Under R&TC Section 24356

14

15
15

16

16
17 17

Amortization

19

20 20
21 21
22

22

Attach to Form 100 or Form 100W.

Add the amounts in column (g) and column (h). The total of column (h) may not exceed $2,000.
See instructions for line 14, column (h)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total depreciation claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 22  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Depreciation adjustment. If line 17 is greater than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or Form 100W, Side 1, line 6.
If line 17 is less than line 16, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or Form 100W, Side 2, line 12. (If California depreciation
amounts are used to determine net income before state adjustments on Form 100 or Form 100W, no adjustment
is necessary)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add the amounts in column (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total amortization claimed for federal purposes from federal Form 4562, line 44  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amortization adjustment. If line 21 is greater than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or Form 100W,
Side 1, line 6. If line 21 is less than line 20, enter the difference here and on Form 100 or Form 100W, Side 2, line 12  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

FTB 3885 2019

 TAXABLE YEAR  CALIFORNIA FORM 

Corporation name California corporation number

(a) (b) (c) (e) (f) (g) (h)
Descrip- Date acquired Cost or other basis

or allowable in
Life or Depreciation for Additional first

earlier years
rate this year year depreciation

Depreciation

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g)

2019

Period or Amortization for this yearR&TC SectionDescription of property Date acquired Cost or other basis Amortization allowed or
allowable in earlier years percentage

7621194

tion of
property

Part I Election To Expense Certain Property Under IRC Section 179
1 1
2 2
3 3
4 4
5 5

6

8
9

7

10

8

11

9

12
11
12

Maximum deduction under IRC Section 179 for California . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total cost of IRC Section 179 property placed in service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Threshold cost of IRC Section 179 property before reduction in limitation  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0-  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total elected cost of IRC Section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), line 6 and line 7  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Carryover of disallowed deduction from prior taxable years  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
IRC Section 179 expense deduction. Add line 9 and line 10, but do not enter more than line 11  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2020. Add line 9 and line 10, less line 12  . . . . . . . . .

Dollar limitation for taxable year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost

10

Total: If the corporation is electing:

18

18

SummaryPart III

7

13 13

Listed property (elected IRC Section 179 cost)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

method

IRC Section 179 expense, add the amount on line 12 and line 15, column (g) or
Additional first year depreciation under R&TC Section 24356, add the amounts on line 15, columns (g) and (h) or
Depreciation (if no election is made), enter the amount from line 15, column (g)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(d)

(see instructions)

Depreciation allowed

Corporation Depreciation

(mm/dd/yyyy)

(mm/dd/yyyy)

034

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 0138200

25,000

200,000

SEE STATEMENT 12
917,344 0

917,344

917,344
917,344

0

0

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



Line 5a
1 1
2

a 2a
b

(1) 2b(1)
(2) 2b(2)
(3) 2b(3)
(4) 2b(4)
(5)

2b(5)
(6) 2b(6)
(7)

2b(7)
c 2c

3
a 3a
b 3b
c 3c
d 3d
e

3e
f 3f

4
a 4a
b

4b
c 4c
d

4d
e

4e
f

4f
5

a 5a
b 5b
c 5c
d 5d
e 5e
f 5f

6 6
7 7
8 8
9 9

10 Adjusted current earnings. Combine lines 1, 2c, 3f, 4f, and 5f through 9. Enter the result here
10

For calendar year 2019 or fiscal year beginning and ending
California Corporation Number Employer Identification Number

Pre-adjustment AMTI (enter the amount from line 4 of Schedule P)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
ACE depreciation adjustment:

Depreciation expense recomputed for AMT purposes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Depreciation expense recomputed for ACE purposes:

Post-1997 property . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Post-1989, pre-1998 property  . . . . . . . . . .
Post 1986, pre-1990 property  . . . . . . . . . .
Post-1980, pre-1987 property  . . . . . . . . . .
Property described in sections
168(f)(1) through (4)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other property . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total depreciation expense recomputed for ACE purposes (add
lines 2b(1) through 2b(6)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

ACE depreciation adjustment (subtract line 2b(7) from line 2a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Inclusion in ACE of items included in earnings and profits (E&P):

Tax-exempt interest income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Death benefits from life insurance contracts  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
All other distributions from life ins contracts (including surrenders)  . . . . . . . . . . . .
Inside buildup of undistributed income in life insurance contracts  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other items (see Regulations sections 1.56(g)-1(c)(6)(iii) through (ix)
for a partial list)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total increase to ACE due to inclusion in ACE of items included in E&P (add lines 3a through 3e)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Disallowance of items not deductible in computing E&P:
Certain dividends received  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dividends paid on certain preferred stock of public utilities that are
deductible under section 247 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dividends paid to an ESOP that are deductible under section 404(k)  . . . . . . . . . .
Non-patronage dividends that are paid and deductible under section
1382(c)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other items (see Regulations section 1.56(g)-1(d)(3)(i) and (ii) for a
partial list)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total increase to ACE due to disallowance of items not deductible in computing E&P (add lines
4a through 4e)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other adjustments based on rules for computing E&P:
Intangible drilling costs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Circulation expenditures  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Organizational expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
LIFO inventory adjustments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Installment sales  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total other E&P adjustments (combine lines 5a through 5e)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Disallowance of loss on exchange of debt pools  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Acquisition expenses of life insurance companies for qualified foreign contracts  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Depletion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Basis adjustments in determining gain or loss from sale or exchange of pre-1994 property  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

and on line 5a of Schedule P  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

CA Schedule P ACE Adjustment Worksheet
2019P (100)

Schedule

Name

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 0138200 **-***3990

134,673

917,344

87,138
61,899

768,307

917,344

134,673

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



SAWCOCA  San Antonio Water Company 3/4/2020  10:43 AM
**-***3990 California Statements
FYE: 12/31/2019

Statement 1 - Form 100, Side 3, Question K(1) - Corporation Owned By Any Single Interest

Percent
Name EIN/SSN/ITIN Owned Address City State Zip Code

City of Upland 956-00-0805 68.000 P.O. Box 460 Upland CA 91785

1



SAWCOCA  San Antonio Water Company 3/4/2020  10:43 AM
**-***3990 California Statements
FYE: 12/31/2019

Statement 2 - Form 100, Side 3, Question P - Location of Principal Accounting Records

Address City State Zip Code Country
139 N Euclid Avenue Upland CA 91785

Statement 3 - Form 100, Side 4, Schedule F, Line 5b - Other Interest

Description Amount
Interest Income $      78,349
     Total $      78,349

Statement 4 - Form 100, Side 4, Schedule F, Line 10 - Other Income (Loss)

Description Amount
Other miscellaneous $       3,570
Unrealized gain on 457B asset 557
     Total $       4,127

Statement 5 - Form 100, Side 4, Schedule F, Line 27 - Other Deductions

Description Amount
Power - gas & electric $     608,800
Office supplies/expenses 95,782
Directors fees & expenses 33,568
Insurance 45,726
Communication 66,245
Outside services 18,340
Human resources 44,381
Accounting & legal 257,833
Water resource management 134,684
Conservation 21,565
Staff development & training 16,025
All others 27,443
Water prod. excess income 1,464,904
     Total $   2,835,296

Statement 6 - Form 100, Side 5, Schedule L, Line 5 - Other Current Assets

Beginning End
Description of Year of Year

Prepaid expenses $       9,238 $       9,238
     Total $       9,238 $       9,238

2-6



SAWCOCA  San Antonio Water Company 3/4/2020  10:43 AM
**-***3990 California Statements
FYE: 12/31/2019

 
Statement 7 - Form 100, Side 5, Schedule L, Line 8 - Other Investments

Beginning End
Description of Year of Year

Deferred compensation asset $            $      16,496
     Total $           0 $      16,496

 

Statement 8 - Form 100, Side 5, Schedule L, Line 13 - Other Assets

Beginning End
Description of Year of Year

Pomona Valley Protective Asso $           1 $           1
Note receivable 1,376,000
Documents and studies 867,778 867,778
Less: Accum Amortization -574,025 -631,865
     Total $     293,754 $   1,611,914

 

Statement 9 - Form 100, Side 5, Schedule L, Line 17 - Other Current Liabilities

Beginning End
Description of Year of Year

Deposits $         850 $       1,700
Deferred revenue 6,432
     Total $         850 $       8,132

 

Statement 10 - Form 100, Side 5, Schedule L, Line 20 - Other Liabilities

Beginning End
Description of Year of Year

Deferred gain on installment $            $   1,372,238
Deferred compensation liab 16,496
     Total $           0 $   1,388,734

 

Statement 11 - Form 100, Side 5, Schedule L, Line 23 - Retained Earnings - Appropriated

Beginning End
Description of Year of Year

Depreciation/Obsolesence res $   3,529,386 $   2,656,215
     Total $   3,529,386 $   2,656,215

7-11



SAWCOCA  San Antonio Water Company 3/4/2020  10:43 AM
**-***3990 California Statements
FYE: 12/31/2019

Form 100, Side 6, Schedule M-1, Line 8c - Deductions on Return Not on Books

Description Amount
Water operations deduction $   1,464,904
     Total $   1,464,904



SAWCOCA  San Antonio Water Company 3/4/2020  10:43 AM
**-***3990 California Statements
FYE: 12/31/2019

 
Statement 12 - Form 3885, Part II, Line 14 - Depreciation

Date Accum Current Additional First
Description Acquired Cost Depr Method Life Depr Year Depr

Building & Site Improvements  1/01/1950 $   1,746,625 $     389,310  S/L 20.0 $      70,792 $            
Wells, Shafts - Bldg & Equip 12/31/1953 4,879,915 2,705,722  S/L 20.0 133,256
Boosters - Bldg & Equip 12/31/1970 2,448,690 1,180,194  S/L 20.0 101,799
Reservoirs  1/01/1953 1,712,022 758,951  S/L 40.0 47,379
Tunnels & Forebay  1/01/1956 1,587,111 636,735  S/L 20.0 56,595
Spreading Works - San Antonio  4/01/2002 50,235 49,397  S/L 20.0 108
Pipelines  1/01/1930 15,921,611 4,793,747  S/L 45.0 358,486
Autos & Equipment  1/01/1998 511,051 338,066  S/L 5.0 36,470
Tools  1/01/1992 98,350 69,896  S/L 4.0 4,059
Telemetry System  1/01/2001 482,714 480,274  S/L 9.0 1,406
Office Equipment  1/01/1998 504,046 394,350  S/L 4.0 49,154
Documents & Studies  1/01/1993 867,779 574,025  S/L 7.0 57,840

     Total $  30,810,149 $  12,370,667 $     917,344 $           0

12



2018 & 2019
CA Two Year Comparison Worksheet Page 1

Net income (loss) after state adjustments

Net income for tax purposes

Total tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total payments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Tax due . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Form 100
Name Employer Identification Number

Net income (loss) before state adjustments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amount deducted for foreign or domestic tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amount deducted for tax under Corporate Tax Law  . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest on government obligations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net CA capital gain from Schedule D . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Depreciation/amortization exceeding CA amount  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net income not included in federal consolidated return  . . . . . . . .
Other additions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Intercompany dividend deduction (Schedule H)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Dividends received deduction (Schedule H)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Capital gain from federal Form 1120  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Contributions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other deductions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Average apportionment percentage (Schedule R) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net income (loss) for state purposes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net operating loss carryover deduction  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Pierce's disease, EZ, LARZ, TTA or LAMBRA NOL c/o  . . . . . . . .
Disaster loss carryover deduction  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Credits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Balance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Alternative minimum tax (Schedule P) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Prior year overpayment applied . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Estimated tax payments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Withholding  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amount paid with extension  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Penalties and interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Use tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Overpayment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Balance due

California Corporate Number

Additional depreciation/amortization allowed under CA law  . . . .

Add-on taxes and recapture of tax credits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Differences20192018

State
Adjustments

Income
Net

Tax and
Payments

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 0138200 **-***3990

101,367

9,830

111,197

111,197
100.0000
111,197

111,197
9,830

9,830

9,830

7,400

7,400

2,430

2,430

122,768

11,905

306,860

441,533

306,860

306,860
134,673
100.0000
134,673

134,673
11,905

11,905

11,905

9,900

9,900

2,005

2,005

21,401

2,075

306,860

330,336

306,860

306,860
23,476
0.0000
23,476

23,476
2,075

2,075

2,075

2,500

2,500

-425

-425

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



2018 & 2019
CA Two Year Comparison Worksheet Page 2

Schedule
M-1

Net income per return

Schedule
M-2

Balance at end of year

Name Employer Identification Number

Net income per books  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Federal income tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Excess of capital losses over capital gains  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Taxable income not on books  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Book expenses not deducted  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Income on books not on return  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Return deductions not on books  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Balance at beginning of year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net income per books  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other increases  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cash distributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Stock distributions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Property distributions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other decreases  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

California Corporate Number

Differences20192018

Form 100

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 0138200 **-***3990

231,917

9,830

130,550
111,197

17,359,577
231,917
847,918

18,439,412

1,587,672

11,905

1,464,904
134,673

18,439,412
1,587,672
873,171

20,900,255

1,355,755

2,075

1,334,354
23,476

1,079,835
1,355,755

25,253

2,460,843

SAWCOCA 03/04/2020 10:43 AM



Changes

Net Asset / Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Other income

Capital gain / loss

Fundraising / Gaming:

Contributions

Total expenses

Revenue

Program service revenue

Investment income

Gross revenue

Net income

Direct expenses

Net Asset / Fund Balance at End of Year

Donated services

Unrealized gains

Total revenue per financial statements

Reconciliation of Revenue

Recoveries

Other

Other

Investment expenses

Total revenue per return

Less:

Plus: Plus:

Less:

Total expenses per return

Investment expenses

Other

Other

Losses

Reconciliation of Expenses

Total expenses per financial statements

Donated services

Prior year adjustments

Differences

Return / extended due date

Miscellaneous Information

Failure to file penalty

Excess / (deficit)

Balance Sheet

Beginning Ending

Assets

Liabilities

Net assets

, and ending

Forms 990 / 990-EZ Return Summary

Total revenue

Expenses

Program services

Management and general

Fundraising

Amended return

For calendar year 2019, or tax year beginning

San Antonio Water Company
**-***3990

25,459,226

4,771,432
78,349
306,860

61,254
5,217,895

3,630,780
1,587,115

22,327

27,068,668

5,217,895

5,217,895

3,630,780

3,630,780

26,200,675 29,313,947
741,449 2,245,279

25,459,226 27,068,668 1,609,442

05/15/20

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Form

check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a, below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then

leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or 5b, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on 

the applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part I.

to send the organization’s return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of

I authorize to enter my PIN as my signature

on the organization’s tax year 2019 electronically filed return. If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is

As an officer of the organization, I will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization’s tax year 2019 electronically filed return.
If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of

I certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2019 electronically filed return for the organization

indicated above. I confirm that I am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF)

OMB No. 1545-1878

For calendar year 2019, or fiscal year beginning  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., 2019, and ending . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., 20  . . . . . .

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Name of exempt organization

Name and title of officer

Officer's signature Date

ERO's signature Date

Form 8879-EO (2019)

DAA

}

ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but

Do not enter all zeros

the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (c) the date of any refund. If applicable, I

Information for Authorized IRS e-file  Providers for Business Returns.

4a

5a

Form 990-PF check here

Form 8868 check here

b

b

Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part VI, line 5)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Balance Due (Form 8868, line 3c)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

4b

5b

being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, I also authorize the aforementioned

ERO to enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.

the IRS Fed/State program, I will enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.

u Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records.

8879-EO

2019

IRS e-file  Signature Authorization
for an Exempt Organization

Part I Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only)

Part II Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer

Part III Certification and Authentication

ERO Must Retain This Form — See Instructions

Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So

Employer identification number

1a Form 990 check here b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1b

2a Form 990-EZ check here b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line 9) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2b

3a Form 1120-POL check here b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3b

Officer's PIN: check one box only

ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see back of form.

}

}}

do not enter all zeros

number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN.

Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I am an officer of the above organization and that I have examined a copy of the

organization’s 2019 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they

are true, correct, and complete. I further declare that the amount in Part I above is the amount shown on the copy of the

organization’s electronic return. I consent to allow my intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO)

authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) entry to the

financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organization’s federal taxes owed on this

return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, I must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial

Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. I also authorize the financial institutions

involved in the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and

resolve issues related to the payment. I have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the organization’s

electronic return and, if applicable, the organization’s consent to electronic funds withdrawal.

u Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879EO for the latest information.

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990
Brian Lee
General Manager

X 5,217,895

X Bowen, McBeth, Inc. 91786

03/02/20

***********

Craig B. Miller 03/02/20

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a–11d, 11f–24e) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total expenses. Add lines 13–17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross receipts

Check if applicable:

For the 2019 calendar year, or tax year beginning

Application pending

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

Amended return

terminated

Room/suiteNumber and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

Initial return

Name change

Address change

Name of organization

u Go to www.irs.gov/Form990  for instructions and the latest information.Internal Revenue Service
Department of the Treasury

OMB No. 1545-0047

Form

Telephone numberE

Employer identification numberDCB

, and endingA

Open to Publicu Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
2019990

Inspection

Doing business as

G $

F Name and address of principal officer:

H(a)

H(b)

H(c)

Is this a group return for subordinates?

Are all subordinates included?

If "No," attach a list. (see instructions)

Group exemption number u

Yes No

NoYes

I

J

K

Tax-exempt status:

Website: u

Form of organization:

501(c) 4947(a)(1) or 527( ) t (insert no.)

Corporation Trust Association Other u L Year of formation: M State of legal domicile:

SummaryPart I
1

2

3

4

5

6

7a

b

Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Check this box u

Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line 2a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 39  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7b

7a

6

5

4

3

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.

8

9

10

11

12

Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total revenue – add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)  . . . . . . . . . . . .

Prior Year Current Year

13

14

15

16a

b

17

18

19

Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1–3)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5–10) . . . . . . . . . . . .
Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) u . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

20

21

22

Beginning of Current Year End of Year

Total assets (Part X, line 16)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities (Part X, line 26)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

DAA
Form 990 (2019)

Sign
Here

Paid

Preparer

Use Only

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Signature of officer Date

Type or print name and title

CheckPreparer's signature Date PTIN

self-employed

Firm's name Firm's EIN }

Firm's address Phone no.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Part II Signature Block

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . NoYes

A
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 &

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

or
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
s

501(c)(3)

ifPrint/Type preparer's name

}

}

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

Final return/

(Rev. January 2020)

San Antonio Water Company

139 North Euclid Avenue

Upland CA 91786

**-***3990

909-982-4107

Brian Lee

5,261,497

X

X 12
www.sawaterco.com

X 1882 CA

To provide our shareholders with reliable and good quality water service at
a cost effective rate.

7
7
12
0

0
0

0
4,460,371 4,771,432

58,676 385,209
56,850 61,254

4,575,897 5,217,895
0
0

1,071,568 1,098,546
0

0
3,272,411 2,532,234
4,343,979 3,630,780
231,918 1,587,115

26,200,675 29,313,947
741,449 2,245,279

25,459,226 27,068,668

Brian Lee General Manager

Craig B. Miller Craig B. Miller 03/04/20 *********

Bowen, McBeth, Inc.
10722 Arrow Rte Ste 110
Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730-4840 909-944-6465

X

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Form 990 (2019) Page 2
Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the2

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3

4

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program

services?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by

expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,

the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code:  . . . . . . . . . ) (Expenses $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . including grants of $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ) (Revenue $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . )

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

)$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .(Revenue)$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .including grants of$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .) (Expenses(Code:  . . . . . . . . .4b

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

4c (Code:  . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . including grants of $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . )) (Expenses $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . )(Revenue

.

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

(Revenue )$(Expenses )$including grants of$

4e Total program service expenses u

Form 990 (2019)DAA

NoYes

Yes No

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

X

To provide our shareholders with reliable and good quality water service at
a cost effective rate.

X

X

Provided reliable and good quality water services at a cost effective rate
to 1,223 domestic shareholders and 12 municipal and miscellaneous
shareholders.

N/A

N/A

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



1

Checklist of Required SchedulesPart IV
Page 3Form 990 (2019)

2

3

4

5

6

7

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”

complete Schedule A  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to

candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)

election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors

have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

8

9

10

11

12a

13

14a

b

15

16

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”

complete Schedule D, Part III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a

custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or

debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,

VII, VIII, IX, or X as applicable.

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,

fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or

for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other

assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

17

18

19

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a?

Yes No

19

18

17

16

15

14b

14a

13

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

DAA Form 990 (2019)

or in quasi endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule D, Part VI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more

Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If

Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

a

b

c

d

e

f

11a

11b

11c

11d

11e

11f

b

12a

12b

foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

20a

20b

domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or

21

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X
X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Form 990 (2019)DAA

NoYes

Form 990 (2019) Page 4
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

28

a

b

c

29

30

31

32

33

34

35a

36

37

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part

A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If

"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified

conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule N, Part II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III,

or IV, and Part V, line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable

related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37

36

35a

34

33

32

31

30

29

28a

28b

28c

22

23

24a

24b

24c

24d

25a

25b

26

27

employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior

transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit

Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

to defease any tax-exempt bonds?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 25a  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If “Yes,” answer lines 24b

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than

organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated

Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on

27

26

b

25a

d

c

b

24a

23

22

Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

IV instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and

3819? Note:  All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O.

b

controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35b

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part II  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1b

1a

1creportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

c

b

1a

NoYes

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X

27
0

X

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)Part V
Page 5Form 990 (2019)

Yes No

DAA

Form 990 (2019)

2a

b

3a

b

4a

b

5a

b

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax

Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . . . . . . . . .

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,

a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country u  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

c

6a

b

7

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

8

9

a

b

10

a

b

11

a

b

12a

b

If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the

If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or

gifts were not tax deductible?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods

If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was

required to file Form 8282? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?  . . . . . . . . .

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? . . . . . .

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources

against amounts due or received from them.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2b

3a

3b

4a

5a

5b

5c

6a

6b

7a

7b

7c

7e

7f

7g

7h

8

9a

9b

12a

7d

10a

10b

11a

11b

12b

2a

.

and services provided to the payor?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

13aa

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

b

Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Note:  See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which

the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter the amount of reserves on hand  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .c 13c

13b

14a

14bb

14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or

excess parachute payment(s) during the year?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?

If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

16

If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

12
X

X

X

X
X

X

4,771,432

485,102

X

X

X

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Section C. Disclosure

1b

1a

2

Form 990 (2019)DAA

NoYes

Form 990 (2019) Page 6
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"

response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a

b

2

3

4

5

6

7a

b

8

a

b

9

10a

11a

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with

any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct

supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have members or stockholders?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint

one or more members of the governing body?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:

The governing body?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?  . . . . . . .

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at

the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3

4

5

6

7a

7b

8a

8b

9

10a

11a

Yes No

12a

b

c

13

14

15

a

b

16a

b

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to line 13  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts?  . . . .

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”

describe in Schedule O how this was done  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other officers or key employees of the organization  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement

with a taxable entity during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its

participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the

organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

12a

12b

12c

13

14

15a

15b

16a

16b

17

18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed u  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)

(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and

financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records u

Own website Another's website Upon request

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

b

10b

b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.

stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or

if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar

committee, explain on Schedule O.

Other (explain on Schedule O)

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

X

7

7

X

X
X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X
X

X
X

X

None

X

San Antonio Water Company 139 N Euclid Avenue
Upland CA 91786 909-982-4107

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



from the

related organizations

compensation

Section A.

Independent Contractors
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, andPart VII

Page 7Form 990 (2019)

DAA

Form 990 (2019)

Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the1a

List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
 $100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)

Name and title Position

from related

compensation

Reportable

organizations

(W-2/1099-MISC)

Reportable

of other

Estimated amount

organization and

compensationfrom the

organization

(W-2/1099-MISC)In
d
ivid

u
a
l 

tru
ste

e
o
r d

ire
cto

r

em
ployee

H
ighest 

com
pensated

In
stitu

tio
n
a
l 

tru
ste

e

O
ffice

r

K
e
y e

m
p
lo

ye
e

F
o
rm

e
r

•
organization's tax year.

List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
•
•

•

•

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organizations

below

per week

hours for

Average

hours

related

(list any

dotted line)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

officer and a director/trustee)

box, unless person is both an

(do not check more than one

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

Brian Lee

General Manager
40.00
0.00 X 211,957 0 54,205

Theresa Layton

Asst General Manager
40.00
0.00 X 170,130 0 30,703

Tom Thomas

President
2.00
0.00 X 6,750 0 0

Jose R Sanchez

Secretary/CFO
2.00
0.00 X 5,250 0 0

Gino Filippi

Board Member
2.00
0.00 X 4,750 0 0

Bob Cable

Board Member
2.00
0.00 X 3,750 0 0

Will Elliott

Vice President
2.00
0.00 X 3,250 0 0

Martha Goss

Board Member
2.00
0.00 X 3,250 0 0

John Gerardi

Board Member
2.00
0.00 X 750 0 0

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Form 990 (2019)DAA

Form 990 (2019) Page 8
Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

d Total (add lines 1b and 1c)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . u

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization u

3

4

5

Yes No

5

4

3
Did the organization list any former  officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the

organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such

individual  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual

for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization u

(A)
Name and business address Description of services

(B) (C)
Compensation

In
d
ivid

u
a
l 

tru
ste

e
o
r d

ire
cto

r

In
stitu

tio
n
a
l 

tru
ste

e

O
ffice

r

K
e
y e

m
p
lo

ye
e

em
ployee

F
o
rm

e
r

H
ighest 

com
pensated

(C)

uTotal from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A  . . . . . . . . . .c

1b Subtotal  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . u

(do not check more than one

box, unless person is both an

officer and a director/trustee)

Position

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

dotted line)

(list any

related

hours

Average

hours for

per week

below

organizations

(W-2/1099-MISC)

organization

from the compensation

organization and

Estimated amount

of other

Reportable

(W-2/1099-MISC)

organizations

Reportable

compensation

from related

Name and title

(F)(E)(D)(B)(A)

compensation

related organizations

from the

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

409,837 84,908

409,837 84,908

2

X

X

X

Thomas H McPeters, ESQ 700 E Redlands Blvd.
Redlands CA 92373 Legal 160,301

Healthnet File #52617
Los Angeles CA 90074-2617 Medical Benefit 147,620

Sonsray Machinery, LLC 6118 Alcoa Avenue
Los Angeles CA 90058 Equipment 109,550

3

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Form 990 (2019)

DAA

Form 990 (2019) Page 9
Part VIII Statement of Revenue

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded

function revenue business revenue from tax under
sections 512-514

1a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

Federated campaigns  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Membership dues  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Fundraising events  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Related organizations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Government grants (contributions)  . . . . . . . . . . . .

All other contributions, gifts, grants,

and similar amounts not included above  . . . . . . . .

Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f . . . . .

Total.  Add lines 1a–1f . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1a

1b

1c

1d

1e

1f

u

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2a

g

f

e

d

c

b

All other program service revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

uTotal.  Add lines 2a–2f . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
, 

G
if

ts
, 

G
ra

n
ts

a
n

d
 O

th
e
r 

S
im

il
a
r 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

P
ro

gr
am

 S
er

vi
ce

3

4

5

6a

b

c

d

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 

other similar amounts)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds  . . . . . .

Royalties  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross rents

Less: rental expenses

Rental inc. or (loss)

Net rental income or (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

u

u

u

Business Code

u

(i) Real (ii) Personal

(ii) Other(i) Securities

ud

c

b

7a Gross amount from

sales of assets
other than inventory

Less: cost or other

basis and sales exps.

Gain or (loss)

Net gain or (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

u

8a

b

c

Gross income from fundraising events

(not including

of contributions reported on line 1c).

See Part IV, line 18  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Less: direct expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross income from gaming activities.

See Part IV, line 19  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Less: direct expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Gross sales of inventory, less

returns and allowances . . . . . . . . .

Less: cost of goods sold  . . . . . . .

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

11a

b

c

d

e

Total revenue. See instructions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

10a

9a

b

b

c

c

u

u

12

All other revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total. Add lines 11a–11d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Business Code

M
is

c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

u

O
th

e
r 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

u

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

R
ev

en
ue

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

1g

6a

6b

6c

7a

7b

7c

8a

8b

9a

9b

10a

10b

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

Water Income 221000 4,757,301 4,757,301
Other fees 221000 14,131 14,131

4,771,432

78,349 78,349

57,684

57,684
57,684 57,684

350,462

43,602
306,860

306,860 306,860

Miscellaneous 3,570 3,570

3,570
5,217,895 5,078,292 0 139,603

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Statement of Functional ExpensesPart IX
Page 10Form 990 (2019)

DAA Form 990 (2019)

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b,

7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

a

b

c

d

e

25

26

Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations

and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21 . . . . . . . . . . .

Grants and other assistance to domestic

individuals. See Part IV, line 22  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Grants and other assistance to foreign

organizations, foreign governments, and foreign

individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16  . . . . . . . . . .

Benefits paid to or for members  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Compensation of current officers, directors,

trustees, and key employees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Compensation not included above to disqualified

persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and

persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . . . . . . . .
Other salaries and wages  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Pension plan accruals and contributions (include

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)

Other employee benefits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Payroll taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Fees for services (nonemployees):

Management  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Legal  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Accounting  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Lobbying  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17

Investment management fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column

Advertising and promotion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Office expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Information technology  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Royalties  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Occupancy  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Travel  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Payments of travel or entertainment expenses

for any federal, state, or local public officials

Conferences, conventions, and meetings  . . .

Interest  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Payments to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization  . . .

Insurance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered

above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If

line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column

(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)

All other expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e  . . . . .

fundraising solicitation. Check here u if

organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and

following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total expenses Program service Management and

general expensesexpenses
Fundraising
expenses

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Joint costs. Complete this line only if the

(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.)  . . . . . . . .

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

650,105

66,723
312,877
68,841

196,184
61,649

18,340

95,782

33,568

917,344
45,726

Power, Gas & electric 608,800
Property taxes 216,650
Water resource management 134,684
Communication 66,245

137,262
3,630,780 0 0 0

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Form 990 (2019)

DAA

Form 990 (2019) Page 11
Part X Balance Sheet

(A) (B)

Beginning of year End of year

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10a

b

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10c

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

33

32

31

30

Cash—non-interest-bearing  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Savings and temporary cash investments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Pledges and grants receivable, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Accounts receivable, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined

under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Notes and loans receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Inventories for sale or use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other 

Less: accumulated depreciation  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investments—publicly traded securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Intangible assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Grants payable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Tax-exempt bond liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here u

and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.

Net assets without donor restrictions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net assets with donor restrictions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

and complete lines 29 through 33.

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here u

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total net assets or fund balances  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

A
s
s
e
ts

L
ia

b
il
it

ie
s

N
e
t 

A
s
s
e
ts

 o
r 

F
u

n
d

 B
a
la

n
c
e
s

10a

10b

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

of Schedule D  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

1,330,774 2,100,459
4,881,580 4,511,161

295,481 482,237

1,376,000
93,446 87,775
9,238 9,238

33,130,027
12,635,360 19,296,402 20,494,667

16,496

293,754 235,914
26,200,675 29,313,947

741,449 850,113

6,432

1,388,734
741,449 2,245,279

X

638,900 638,900
2,851,528 2,873,298
21,968,798 23,556,470
25,459,226 27,068,668
26,200,675 29,313,947

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



OtherAccrualCash

3b

3a

2c

2b

2a

NoYes

If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the

Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of

Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990:

b

3a

c

b

2a

1

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting

Page 12Form 990 (2019)

DAA

Form 990 (2019)

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in

Schedule O.

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on

Schedule O.

required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Reconciliation of Net AssetsPart XI
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

11 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2 2

3

4

9

10

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line

32, column (B))  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

4

5

6

5

6

7

88

7

9

10

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Donated services and use of facilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investment expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Prior period adjustments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or

reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate  basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

Both consolidated and separate basisConsolidated basisSeparate  basis

separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

X
5,217,895
3,630,780
1,587,115
25,459,226

557

21,770

27,068,668

X

X

X

X

X

X

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



u Attach to Form 990.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

Conservation Easements. 

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) 

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located u  . . . . . . . .

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the

2019
Supplemental Financial StatementsSCHEDULE D

Part I Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.

(Form 990)
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Employer identification number

OMB No. 1545-0047

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization

u Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990,

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

a

b

c

d

Total number of conservation easements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a

Assets included in Form 990, Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Assets included in Form 990, Part X  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Held at the End of the Tax Year

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public

service, provide in Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of

art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,

provide the following amounts relating to these items:

(i)

(ii)

Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1

2

3

4

5

6

Total number at end of year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Aggregate value at end of year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose

Yes

Yes

No

No

Part II

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

2

1

easement on the last day of the tax year.

Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education)

Protection of natural habitat

Preservation of open space

Preservation of a certified historic structure

Preservation of a historically important land area

Open to Public
Inspection

tax year u  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the

4

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year6

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

8

and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and

organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

NoYes

Yes No

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.Part III

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works1a

b

2

following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

a

b

$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

DAA

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

conferring impermissible private benefit?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2a

2b

2c

2d

u  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

u $  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

u

u

u

u

historic structure listed in the National Register  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

u Go to www.irs.gov/Form990  for instructions and the latest information.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



(a) Current year

Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form

Amount

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)Part III
Page 2

Public exhibition

Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its3

a

collection items (check all that apply):

Scholarly research

Preservation for future generations

b

c

e Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

d Loan or exchange program

XIII.

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar5

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . NoYes

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.

Yes Noincluded on Form 990, Part X?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table:

Beginning balance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .c

d Additions during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Distributions during the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .e

f Ending balance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2a

If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

NoYes

Endowment Funds.Part V

Contributions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

Beginning of year balance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1a

c Net investment earnings, gains, and

Grants or scholarships  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .d

e Other expenditures for facilities and

Administrative expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .f

g End of year balance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

programs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

c Term endowment u  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Permanent endowment u  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

2

a Board designated or quasi-endowment u  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .%

%

%

3a

organization by:

(i)

(ii)

Unrelated organizations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Related organizations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes” on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Yes No

3a(i)

3a(ii)

3b

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

1a

b

c

d

e

Land  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Buildings  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Equipment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total.  Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(d) Book value(c) Accumulated(b) Cost or other basis(a) Cost or other basis

(investment) (other)

Description of property

1c

1d

1e

1f

u

losses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

depreciation

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

990, Part X, line 21.

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

920,161 920,161
1,746,625 460,102 1,286,523

30,463,241 12,175,258 18,287,983

20,494,667

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Cost or end-of-year market value

(b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:

Page 3
Part VII Investments – Other Securities.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

(a) Description of security or category

(including name of security)

Financial derivatives  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Closely held equity interests  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total.  (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.)  . . . . . .

(a) Description of investment

Investments – Program Related.Part VIII

(c) Method of valuation:(b) Book value

Cost or end-of-year market value

(b) Book value

Other Assets.

(a) Description

Part IX

DAA

Part X

(a) Description of liability

Other Liabilities.

(b) Book value

Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the

organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Federal income taxes

Total.  (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.)  . . . . . .

Total.  (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . u

Total.  (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1.

2.

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(1)

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(9)

(8)

(7)

(6)

(5)

(4)

(3)

(2)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(9)

(8)

(7)

(6)

(5)

(4)

(3)

(2)

(1)

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(3)

(2)

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,
line 25.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

u

u

u

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

Deferred gain on installment sale 1,372,238
Deferred compensation liability 16,496

1,388,734

X

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

Part XI
Page 4

Part XII

a

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2

b

c

d

e

b

c

a

3

4

5

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Donated services and use of facilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Recoveries of prior year grants  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Add lines 2a through 2d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Subtract line 2e from line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Add lines 4a and 4b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1

2a

2b

2c

2d

2e

3

4a

4b

4c

5

1

Add lines 4a and 4b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Subtract line 2e from line 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

Add lines 2a through 2d  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other losses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Donated services and use of facilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

5

4

3

a

c

b

e

Prior year adjustments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

c

b

2

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

a

5

4c

4b

d

4a

3

2e

2d

2c

2b

2a

Part XIII
Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line

2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Supplemental Information.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

5,217,895

5,217,895

5,217,895

3,630,780

3,630,780

3,630,780

Part X - FIN 48 Footnote

GAAP provides accounting and disclosure guidance about positions taken by

an organization in its tax returns that might be uncertain.  Management has

considered its tax positions and believes that alll of the positions taken

by the Company in its federal exempt and state organization tax return are

more likely than not to be sustained upon examination.  The Company's tax

returns are subject to examination by Federal taxing authorities for

a period of three years from the date they are filed and for a period of

four years for California taxing authorities.

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Page 5
Part XIII Supplemental Information (continued)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

DAA

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



u Attach to Form 990.

Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form1a

Questions Regarding CompensationPart I

Inspection
Open to Public

2019

uGo to www.irs.gov/Form990  for instructions and the latest information.

Name of the organization

Compensation InformationSCHEDULE J
(Form 990)

Employer identification number

OMB No. 1545-0047

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Compensated Employees

u Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Yes No

990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items.

First-class or charter travel

Travel for companions

Tax indemnification and gross-up payments

Discretionary spending account Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

Health or social club dues or initiation fees

Payments for business use of personal residence

Housing allowance or residence for personal use

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment

or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to

1a?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all2

1b

2

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the

organization’s CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a

Written employment contract

Compensation survey or study

Approval by the board or compensation committeeForm 990 of other organizations

Independent compensation consultant

Compensation committee

4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing

Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .a

b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .c

4a

4b

4c

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a–c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III.

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5–9.

compensation contingent on the revenues of:

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any5

Any related organization?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

a The organization?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

If “Yes” on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III.

Any related organization?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .b

a The organization?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any6

compensation contingent on the net earnings of:

5b

5a

6a

6b

payments not described on lines 5 and 6? If “Yes,” describe in Part III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed

If “Yes” on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III.

Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject8

to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe

in Part III  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

7

8

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2019

DAA

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest

9Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)?  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

9 If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in

explain  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

organization or a related organization:

related organization to establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part III.

directors, trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

X
X
X

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



DAA

Schedule J (Form 990) 2019

(A)  Name and Title

(B)  Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation

Part II Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.
Page 2Schedule J (Form 990) 2019

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the

instructions, on row (ii). Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII.

Note:  The sum of columns (B)(i)–(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual.

(i)  Base
compensation compensation

(ii)  Bonus & incentive

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(iii)  Other
reportable

(C)  Retirement and

compensation
benefits

(D)  Nontaxable (E)  Total of columns

(B)(i)–(D) in column (B) reported

(F)  Compensation

as deferred on prior

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

compensation

other deferred

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(i) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

Form 990

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

Brian Lee 211,957 0 0 54,205 0 266,162 0
General Manager 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Theresa Layton 170,130 0 0 30,703 0 200,833 0
Asst General Manager 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Schedule J (Form 990) 2019 Page 3
Supplemental InformationPart III

Schedule J (Form 990) 2019

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part II. Also complete this part 
for any additional information.

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

DAA

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Employer identification numberName of the organization

Internal Revenue Service
Department of the Treasury

OMB No. 1545-0047

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

2019
Open to Public
Inspection

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)
DAA

u Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.

u Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

Form 990, Part III, Line 4d - All Other Accomplishments

Provided reliable and good quality water services at a cost effective rate

to 1,223 domestic shareholders and 12 municipal and miscellaneous

shareholders.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 6 – Classes of Members or Stockholders

The Company is a mutual water company that is required to deliver water

only to stockholders.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 7a - Election of Members and Their Rights

Each shareholder has voting rights to elect the members of the governing

body.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 11b - Organization's Process to Review Form 990

The 990 is reviewed by management as a representative of the governing body

before it is filed and a copy is given to all memebers.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 12c - Enforcement of Conflicts Policy

The employee handbook has a section on Ethics/Conflicts of interest.  In

this section it describes what the employee's responsibilities are and the

principles of conduct that is expected.  It states that the employee shall

not fail to report any action, conduct or situation that he or she

reasonably believes may represent a violation of the Company's legal and

ethical obligations.  The policy states that if the employee believes he or

she is in a potential conflict of interest that he or she should discuss

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



DAA

Page 2Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)

DAA

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Name of the organization Employer identification number

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

the situation with the General Manager.  If an employee is found to have

engaged in conduct in violation of the policy, the employee will be subject

to discipline up to and including termination.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 15a - Compensation Process for Top Official

The Company contracted with an outside human resource consulting firm to

conduct a compensation and benefits study.  Salary ranges for all job

descriptions were established based on the consulting firm's research and

recommendation.  This was approved by the Board of Directors along with an

updated employee handbook.  Annual employee evaluations are done and

performance-based merit salary increases are determined by the matrix done

by the consulting firm.  The General Manager is reviewed by the Board of

Directors and the Assistant General Manager is reviewed

by the General Manager.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 15b - Compensation Process for Officers

The same process is used for other officers or key employees as is used for

top management.

Form 990, Part VI, Line 19 - Governing Documents Disclosure Explanation

The audited annual financial statements are posted in the annual

shareholders report and mailed annually to all shareholders.  Monthly

financial statements are presented every month at the open Board meetings.

All documents are available under the California Public Records Act upon

request.

Form 990, Part XI, Line 9 - Other Changes in Net Assets Explanation

Page 1 of 2

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



DAA

Page 2Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)

DAA

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Name of the organization Employer identification number

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

Contributed property                                       $      21,770

Page 2 of 2

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Net income or (loss) from fundraising events  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net income or (loss) from gaming  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

R
 e

 v
 e

 n
 u

 e
E

 x
 p

 e
 n

 s
 e

 s

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Total revenue. Add lines 1 through 11

14.

15.

16.

17.

Total expenses. Add lines 13 through 21  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

18.

19.

20.

21.

Program service revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Membership dues and assessments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investment income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net gain or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory  . . . . . .

Net gain or (loss) on sales of inventory  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Grants and similar amounts paid  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Benefits paid to or for members  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Salaries, other compensation, and employee benefits  . . . . . . . . . . .

Professional fundraising fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Depreciation and Depletion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Excess or (Deficit).  Subtract line 22 from line 12

Total assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Retained earnings  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Contributions, gifts, grants  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Name Taxpayer Identification Number

Form 990

Differences20192018

Two Year Comparison Report 2018 & 2019
For calendar year 2019, or tax year beginning , ending

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

22.

23.

24.

25. 25.

24.

23.

22.

13.

12.

11.

10.

9.

8.

7.

21.

20.

19.

18.

17.

16.

15.

14.

6.

5.

4.

3.

2.

1.

Total exempt revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total unrelated revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total excludable revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

Proceeds from tax exempt bonds  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Government contributions and grants  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

26.

27.

28.28.

27.

26.

Other professional fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

29. 29.

Compensation of officers, directors, trustees, etc.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

30. Number of voting members of governing body  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Number of independent voting members of governing body  . . . . .31.

32. Number of employees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

33. Number of volunteers 33.

32.

31.

30.

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

4,460,371 4,771,432 311,061
58,676 78,349 19,673

306,860 306,860

56,850 61,254 4,404
4,575,897 5,217,895 641,998

1,071,568 1,098,546 26,978

313,799 276,173 -37,626

881,254 917,344 36,090
2,077,358 1,338,717 -738,641
4,343,979 3,630,780 -713,199
231,918 1,587,115 1,355,197

4,575,897 5,217,895 641,998

4,575,897 5,217,895 641,998
26,200,675 29,313,947 3,113,272

741,449 2,245,279 1,503,830
25,459,226 27,068,668 1,609,442
7 7
7 7
14 12

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



Employer Identification NumberName

Form Tax Return History 2019990

Total excludable revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total unrelated revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total exempt revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Net Fund Balances  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total Assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total Liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

20192018 202020172016

Fundraising revenue (income/loss)  . . .

Gaming revenue (income/loss)  . . . . . . .

Total revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Capital gain or loss  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Membership dues  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investment income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Grants and similar amounts paid  . . . . .

Benefits paid to or for members . . . . . . .

Other compensation  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Professional fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Occupancy costs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Depreciation and depletion . . . . . . . . . . . .

Other expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Excess or (Deficit)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Contributions, gifts, grants  . . . . . . . . . . . .

Compensation of officers, etc.  . . . . . . . .

2015

Program service revenue

San Antonio Water Company **-***3990

2,000

2,703,177

12,167

33,654
2,750,998

924,717
221,566

823,791
1,663,196
3,633,270
-882,272

2,750,998

2,748,998
26,001,836
1,043,147
24,958,689

2,000

3,240,421

17,177

37,528
3,297,126

971,413
183,785

876,691
2,005,010
4,036,899
-739,773

3,297,126

3,295,126
24,970,681

751,765
24,218,916

4,892,809
17,642
25,708

61,220
4,997,379

1,035,724
273,934

913,315
1,766,014
3,988,987
1,008,392

4,997,379

4,997,379
25,787,067

559,759
25,227,308

4,460,371

58,676

56,850
4,575,897

1,071,568
313,799

881,254
2,077,358
4,343,979
231,918

4,575,897

4,575,897
26,200,675

741,449
25,459,226

4,771,432
306,860
78,349

61,254
5,217,895

1,098,546
276,173

917,344
1,338,717
3,630,780
1,587,115

5,217,895

5,217,895
29,313,947
2,245,279
27,068,668

SAWCO 03/04/2020 10:42 AM



SAWCO  San Antonio Water Company 3/4/2020  10:42 AM

**-***3990 Federal Statements
FYE: 12/31/2019

Taxable Interest on Investments

Description

Unrelated Exclusion Postal Acquired after US
Amount Business Code Code 6/30/75 Obs ($ or %)

Interest on reserves
$ 78,349 14

Total $ 78,349

Item 4D



SAWCO  San Antonio Water Company 3/4/2020  10:42 AM

**-***3990 Federal Statements
FYE: 12/31/2019

Form 990, Part IX, Line 11g - Other Fees for Service (Non-employee)

Total Program Management & Fund
Description Expenses Service General Raising

Outside services $ 18,340 $ 18,340 $ $

Total $ 18,340 $ 18,340 $ 0 $ 0

Form 990, Part IX, Line 24e - All Other Expenses

Total Program Management & Fund
Description Expenses Service General Raising

Human resources expense $ 44,381 $ 44,381 $ $
All other 27,443 27,443
Conservation 21,565 21,565
Staff development & train 16,025 16,025
Repairs 15,943 15,943
Income taxes 11,905 11,905

Total $ 137,262 $ 137,262 $ 0 $ 0



*Accumulated Yearly Accumulated Yearly
Amount of Deposit Service Fees Interest Earnings

Institution Type of Investment Date of Maturity Rate of Interest as of 01/31/2020 thru January thru January

Citizens Business Bank (CBB) *Checking N/A No Interest 1,126,322.07        - N/A

Citizens Business Bank (CBB) *D&O Checking N/A No Interest 809,461.78           N/A

Citizens Business Bank Pref. Money Mrkt N/A 0.3500% 2,201,450.98        654.21 

Local Agency Investment Fund LAIF N/A 1.967% 2,303,521.12        13,156.86 

Golden State Business Bank 12 Month C.D. April 15,2020 1.50% 20,000.00             25.48 

TOTAL: 6,460,755.95$      

TOTAL IN CD'S: 20,000.00$           

Monthly Investment Activity Summary - Compiled from Banking Statements for Correlation with Monthly Financials

Item 4E



2020 Production

3/12/20
All units in acre-feet Page 1 - 22

CHINO BASIN Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Yearly Production Rights = 1232 38.19% 38.21% - - - - - - - - - -

  Well #12 - inactive -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    
  Well #15 - Domestic 0.08   0.09   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   0.17    
  Well #16 - Domestic 0.16   0.17   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   0.33    

  Well#18 - inactive -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    
Subtotal 0.23   0.26   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   0.49    

CUCAMONGA BASIN Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Yearly Production Rights = 5996 (1496 10-yr Average Spread) 2.57% 6.25% 9.94% 13.62% 17.30% 20.98% 24.66% 28.35% 32.03% 35.71% 39.39% 43.08%

  Well #2 49.87   0.25   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   50.12   
  Well #3 0.33   0.40   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   0.74    

  Well#19 - inactive -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    
  Well #22 9.49   18.84   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   28.33   
  Well #24 0.68   0.43   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   1.12    
  Well #31 0.33   3.46   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   3.79    
  Well #32 - Domestic -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    
Upl. # 15  {SAWCo's Rts] 93.55   197.41              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   290.96   

  Subtotal 154.26               220.79              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   375.05   
Upl. # 15  {WECWCo's Rts] Memo Only -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    

SIX BASINS Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Yearly Production Rights = 932 9.81% 19.22% 28.63% 38.04% 47.45% 56.86% 66.27% 75.68% 85.09% 94.50% 103.92% 113.33%

  Well #25-A -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    
  Well #26 46.26   45.92   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   92.18   
  Well 27-A 45.14   41.80   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   86.94   

  Subtotal 91.40   87.72   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   179.12   

TOTAL PUMPED 245.90               308.77              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   554.67   

GRAVITY FLOW Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
V screen 524.54               368.06              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   892.59   
backwash from city treatment plant 0.74   0.92   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   1.66    
San Antonio Tunnel (forebay) 233.50               199.02              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   432.52   
Frankish & Stamm Tunnel 8" 35.45   12.40   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   47.86   
San Ant. Tunnel Connect to City -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    
Discharge to waste -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    

TOTAL GRAVITY 794.23               580.40              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   1,374.63   

Monthly
San Antonio Tunnel 233.50               199.02              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   432.52   

V Screen, Frankish & Stamm Tunnel and TP Backwash 560.73               381.38              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   942.10   
Gravity Production 794.23               580.40              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   1,374.63   

Cumulative
San Antonio Tunnel 233.50               432.52              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   432.52   

V Screen, Frankish & Stamm Tunnel and TP Backwash 560.73               942.10              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   942.10   
Gravity Production 794.23               1,374.63           -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   

Purchased Water - Upl. City to Dom. Sys. -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   -    

Total Production 1,040.12     889.17       -              -              -              -               -                -               - -                -             -            1,929.30         
Total Cumulative Production 1,040.12     1,929.30    -              -              -              -               -                -               - -                -             -            

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Domestic Production 233.74               199.28              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   433.02   
Irrigation Production 806.39               689.89              -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   1,496.28   

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20
RainFall (Inches) 0.17   0.24   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   

Cumulative (Inches) 0.17   0.41   -   -   -   -   -   -   -    -   -   -   

Item 4F



2020 Consumption

3/12/20
all units in acre-feet Page 2 - 22

DOMESTIC Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Dom. Sys. - Base 52.51               36.97            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   89.48   
Dom. Sys. - Supplemental 7.11                 21.99            -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   29.10   
Dom Sys - Tier 3 3.97                 19.97            -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   23.94   
Dom. Sys. - Del. to Upland(24th/Campus) 41.55               72.34            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   113.89   
Dom. Sys. -Del. To Upland ( Well 16/15) -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Dom. Sys. - Del. to Upland(24th/Mtn)-installed 4/2/19 -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Tunnel meter to the Upland -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Discharge to waste -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    

TOTAL 105.14      151.27    -        -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -        -            256.41            

Truck Loads - note only crosswall projects -   -   -             -  -  -  -    
Well 32 Hydrant Mtr. - note only( started 8/6/18)Crosswalls 127.62             9.15               -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   136.76   

Irr. Note only Del. to MVWD(wheeled through Upland) -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    

IRRIGATION Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Irrig. Sys.-Upland(Pump & Rec'd) (City W#15) 93.55               197.41          -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   290.96   
Irrig. Sys. - Upl. City - Tier 1 370.45             305.46          -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   675.90   
Irrig. Sys. - Upl. City - Tier 2 -   -   -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Monte Vista - Tier 1 48.30               47.00            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   95.30   
Irrig. Sys. - Monte Vista - Tier 2 -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Ont. City - Tier 1 42.90               41.70            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   84.60   
Irrig. Sys. - Ont. City - Tier 2 -   -   -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Cucamonga Valley - Tier 1 -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Irrig Sys. - Cucamonga Valley - Tier 2 -   -   -             -                 -                 -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Holiday Rock Co - Tier 1 14.52               14.52            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   29.05   
Irrig. Sys. - Holiday Rock Co - Tier 2 4.47                 5.84               -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   10.32   
Irrig. Sys. - Holiday Rock Co - Tier 3 -   -   -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Red Hill Golf Course - Tier 1 8.60  17.66            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   26.25   
Irrig. Sys. - Red Hill Golf Course - Tier 2 -   -   -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Red Hill Golf Course - Tier 3 -   -   -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Red Hills HOA - Tier 1 0.01  -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   0.01    
Irrig. Sys. - Red Hills HOA - Tier 2 -   -   -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Red Hills HOA - Tier 3 -   -   -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   -    
Irrig. Sys. - Minor Irrigators - Tier 1 0.58  1.88               -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   2.47    
Irrig. Sys. - Minor Irrigators - Tier 2 -   0.06               -             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -             -   0.06    
Irrig. Sys. - Minor irrigators - Tier 3 -   -   -             -  -                 -  -                 -  -                 -  -             -   -    

TOTAL 583.39      631.53    -        -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -        -            1,214.92         

COMPANY TOTALS Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
San Antonio Heights 63.59               78.93            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   142.52   
City of Upland 505.55             575.21          -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   1,080.76   
Monte Vista Water District 48.30               47.00            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   95.30   
City of Ontario 42.90               41.70            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   84.60   
Cucamonga Valley Water District -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Holiday Rock Company 19.00               20.37            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   39.36   
Red Hills Golf Course 8.60  17.66            -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   26.25   
Red Hill HOA 0.01  -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   0.01    
Minor Irrigators 0.58  1.95               -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   2.53    

TOTAL 688.53      782.80    -        -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -        -            1,471.33         

IRRIGATORS
Irrigator Emberton 0.12  0.21               -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   0.33    
Irrigator McMurray -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    

Irrigator Mistretta -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Irrigator Nisbit -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    

Irrigator Scheu -   -   -             -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -             -   -    
Irrigator Pfister 0.47  1.74              -            -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -            -  2.20   



2020 Spread

3/12/20
all units in acre-feet Page 3 - 22

Cucamonga Basin Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
23rd St. (Meter) - Basin 6 - A 0.23                 -                         -                         -                         -                             -                         -                      -                      -                       -                            -                      -                      0.23                          
15th Street Basin 14.84               -                         -                         -                         -                             -                         -                      -                      -                       -                            -                      -                      14.84                        
Basin 3 meter (23rd street Clock) 115.17             60.78                     -                         -                         -                             -                         -                      -                      -                       -                            -                      -                      175.95                     
Frankish & Stamm Tunnel to Basin 3 35.45               12.40                     -                         -                         -                             -                         -                      -                      -                       -                            -                      -                      47.86                        
Vscreen via Frankish & Stamm Meter to Basin 3 38.07               -                         -                         -                         -                             -                         -                      -                      -                       -                            -                      -                      38.07                        
PRV Station (res 1)(basin 6) 42.65               0.90                       -                         -                         -                             -                         -                      -                      -                       -                            -                      -                      43.54                        

Monthly Spread 246.41      74.08             -                 -                 -                    -                 -              -              -               -                   -              -              320.49            
Cumulative Spread 246.41      320.49          -                 -                 -                    -                 -              -              -               -                   -              -              

Six Basins Note: City of Upland Well Exercising may contribute to spread

Monthly Spread 130.23      38.05             -                 -                 -                    -                 -              -              -               -                   -              -              168.28            
Cumulative Spread 130.23      168.28          -                 -                 -                    -                 -              -              -               -                   -              -              

Chino Basin
Monthly Spread -            -                 -                 -                 -                    -                 -              -              -               -                   -              -              -                   

Cumulative Spread -            -                 -                 -                 -                    -                 -              -              -               -                   -              -              

Company Wide
Monthly Spread 376.64   112.13       -             -             -               -             -          -          -           -              -          -          488.77        

Cumulative Spread 376.64   488.77       -             -             -               -             -          -          -           -              -          -          
Meter to spread ponds (NOTE ONLY) 71.45               72.53                     -                         -                         -                             -                         -                      -                      -                       -                            -                      -                      143.99                     

 

 



2020 Production v Consumption

3/12/20
all units in acre-feet Page 4 - 22

JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY    JUN       JUL      AUG    SEPT     OCT     NOV  DEC 
8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Consumption 688.53         782.80              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   

Cumulative Consumption 688.53         1,471.33          -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   1,471.33   
Cumulative Entitlement  (straight line) 1,047.56     2,095.11          -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  12,571  

% of Entitlement* 5.48% 11.70% 17.93% 24.16% 30.39% 36.61% 42.84% 49.07% 55.29% 61.52% 67.75% 73.98% 11.7%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Consumption 688.53         782.80              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   

Cumulative Consumption 688.53         1,471.33          -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   1,471.33   
Cumulative Entitlement  (straight line) 1,083.33     2,166.67          -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  13,000  

% of Entitlement* 5.30% 11.32% 17.34% 23.36% 29.38% 35.40% 41.43% 47.45% 53.47% 59.49% 65.51% 71.53% 11.3%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Production 1,040.12      889.17              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   1,929.30   

Consumption 688.53 782.80 - - - - - - - - - - 1,471.33 
Spread 376.64 112.13 - - - - - - - - - - 488.77 

Total Consumption 1,065.17      894.93              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   1,960.10   
Difference (25.05)          (5.76)   -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   (30.81)   

% of Production -2.4% -0.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -1.6%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Production 233.74         199.28              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   433.02   

Consumption 105.14         151.27              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   256.41   
Monthly Difference 128.59         48.02   -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   176.61   

% difference 122.30% 31.74% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 68.9%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Production 806.39 689.89 - - - - - - - - - - 1,496.28 

Addition from Domestic 128.59 48.02 - - - - - - - - - - 176.61 
Total Production 934.98         737.91              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   1,672.89   

Consumption 960.03         743.66              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   1,703.69   
Monthly Difference (25.05)          (5.76)   -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -   -   -   (30.81)   

% difference -2.61% -0.77% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -1.8%

* - Out months are Exponential Smoothing (ETS) forecasts based on consumption to date

Yearly %

Consumption versus Entitlement, Company Wide Active Shares

Production versus Consumption, Company Wide

Production versus Consumption, Domestic System

Production versus Consumption, Irrigation System

Consumption versus Entitlement, Company Wide Total Shares



2020 GW Production Rights

3/12/20
all units in acre-feet Page 5 - 22

JAN   FEB    MAR    APR    MAY     JUN       JUL      AUG     SEPT      OCT      NOV    DEC  
8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
19-20 Production 0.23              0.26  -   -   -   -   

19-20 Cumulative Production 470.53         470.79              -   -   -   -   470.79   
Cumulative Production Rights 718.67         821.33              924.00           1,026.67      1,129.33         1,232.00       1,232   

% of Production Rights 2019-20 38.19% 38.21% - - - -

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
20-21 Production -   -                -   -               -   -   

20-21 Cumulative Production -   -                -   -               -   -   -    
Cumulative Production Rights 102.67         205.33          308.00            410.67         513.33           616.00             1,232   

% of Production Rights 2020-21 - - - - - -

Chino Basin 2020 Production
Monthly 0.23              0.26  -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -               -   -   

Cumulative 0.23              0.49  -   -   -   -   -                -  -   -               -   -   

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Production 154.26         220.79              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -               -   -   

Cumulative Production 154.26         375.05              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -               -   -   375.05   
Cumulative Production Rights 499.70         999.40              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -               -   -   5,996   

% of Production Rights* 2.57% 6.25% 9.94% 13.62% 17.30% 20.98% 24.66% 28.35% 32.03% 35.71% 39.39% 43.08% 6.3%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR
Production 91.40           87.72   -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -               -   -   

Cumulative Production 91.40           179.12              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -               -   -   179.12   
Cumulative Production Rights 77.68           155.35              -   -   -   -   -   -                -   -               -   -   932    

% of Production Rights* 9.81% 19.22% 28.63% 38.04% 47.45% 56.86% 66.27% 75.68% 85.09% 94.50% 103.92% 113.33% 19.2%

* - Out months are Exponential Smoothing (ETS) forecasts based on basin production to date

Yearly %

Six Basins Production

Cucamonga Basin Production

Chino Basin Production Water Year 19-20

Chino Basin Production Water Year 20-21



2020 Consumption Analysis

3/12/20
all units in acre-feet Page 6 - 22

JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY    JUN       JUL      AUG    SEPT     OCT     NOV  DEC 
8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%

COMPANY TOTALS
Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 6,178   

Consumption 688.53     782.80     -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   
Cumulative Consumption 688.53     1,471.33 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   1,471.33   

Cumulative Entitlement 984.00     1,967.99 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   12,570.67                
% of Yearly Entitlement* 5.48% 11.70% 17.93% 24.16% 30.39% 36.61% 42.84% 49.07% 55.29% 61.52% 67.75% 73.98% 11.70%

COMPANY TOTALS
Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 6,389   

Consumption 688.53     782.80     -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   
Cumulative Consumption 688.53     1,471.33 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   1,471.33   

Cumulative Entitlement 1,083.33 2,166.67 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   13,000.00                
% of Yearly Entitlement* 5.30% 11.32% 17.34% 23.36% 29.38% 35.40% 41.43% 47.45% 53.47% 59.49% 65.51% 71.53% 11.32%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 624      
Consumption 63.59       78.93       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   

Cumulative Consumption 63.59       142.52     -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   142.52   
Cumulative Entitlement 68.48       136.95     -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   1,268.66   

% of Yearly Entitlement* 5.01% 11.23% 17.46% 23.68% 29.90% 36.12% 42.34% 48.56% 54.78% 61.01% 67.23% 73.45% 11.23%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 4,515   
Consumption 505.55     575.21     -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   

CumulativeConsumption 505.55     1,080.76 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   1,080.76   
Cumulative Entitlement 765.53     1,531.06 -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   9,186.38   

% of Yearly Entitlement* 5.50% 11.76% 18.03% 24.29% 30.55% 36.81% 43.07% 49.33% 55.60% 61.86% 68.12% 74.38% 11.76%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 330      
Consumption 48.30       47.00       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   

CumulativeConsumption 48.30       95.30       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   95.30   
Cumulative Entitlement 55.91       111.83     -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   670.96   

% of Yearly Entitlement* 7.20% 14.20% 21.21% 28.21% 35.22% 42.22% 49.23% 56.23% 63.24% 70.24% 77.25% 84.25% 14.20%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 295      
Consumption 42.90       41.70       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   

CumulativeConsumption 42.90       84.60       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   84.60   
Cumulative Entitlement 50.06       100.13     -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   600.76   

% of Yearly Entitlement* 7.14% 14.08% 21.02% 27.96% 34.91% 41.85% 48.79% 55.73% 62.67% 69.61% 76.55% 83.49% 14.08%

Yearly %

San Antonio Heights

City of Upland

Monte Vista Water District

City of Ontario

Active Shares

All Shares



2020 Consumption Analysis

3/12/20
all units in acre-feet Page 7 - 22

JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY    JUN       JUL      AUG    SEPT     OCT     NOV  DEC 
8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 4           
Consumption -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   

CumulativeConsumption -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   -    
Cumulative Entitlement -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   8.14    

% of Yearly Entitlement* - - - - - - - - - - - -

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 132      
Consumption 19.00       20.37       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   

CumulativeConsumption 19.00       39.36       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   39.36   
Cumulative Entitlement 14.52       29.05       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   269.10   

% of Yearly Entitlement* 7.06% 14.63% 22.20% 29.76% 37.33% 44.90% 52.47% 60.04% 67.61% 75.17% 82.74% 90.31% 14.63%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 218      
Consumption 8.60         17.66       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   

CumulativeConsumption 8.60         26.25       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   26.25   
Cumulative Entitlement 23.97       47.94       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   444.08   

% of Yearly Entitlement* 1.94% 5.91% 9.89% 13.86% 17.84% 21.81% 25.79% 29.77% 33.74% 37.72% 41.69% 45.67% 5.91%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 THIS YEAR Shares 50         
Consumption 0.58         1.95         -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   

CumulativeConsumption 0.58         2.53         -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   2.53    
Cumulative Entitlement 5.52         11.04       -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -              -              -   102.25   

% of Yearly Entitlement* 0.57% 2.47% 4.38% 6.28% 8.18% 10.08% 11.98% 13.89% 15.79% 17.69% 19.59% 21.50% 2.47%

* - Out months are Exponential Smoothing (ETS) forecasts based on consumption to date

Minor Irrigators

Red Hills Golf Course

Yearly %

Cucamonga Valley Water District

Holiday Rock Company



2020 Production and Consumption

Page 8 - 22

68
1 1,
35

0 2,
13

9 3,
08

1 4,
25

7 5,
50

0

6,
86

7

8,
21

3 9,
46

0 10
,6

62 11
,6

37 12
,4

45

68
9

1,
47

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

37
7 48

9

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

12,000

13,000

14,000

ac
re
-fe

et

Projected CumulativeConsumption

Cumulative Consumption

Cumulative Spread

Cumulative Mnthly Ent

Yearly Share Entitlement = 13,000 AF

Yearly Active Share Entitlement = 11,603 AF



2020 Domestic Consumption

Page 9 - 22

68
 13

7 21
6 

30
3 

41
1 

54
3 

69
3 

84
2 

99
1 

1,
11

3 1,
20

0 1,
26

9 

64

14
3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

72

144

226

322

445

573

714

853

972

1,088

1,187

1,269

 -

 250

 500

 750

 1,000

 1,250

 1,500

ac
re
-fe

et
Cumulative Mnthly Ent

Cumulative Consumption

Projected CumulativeConsumption Yearly Active Share Entitlement = 1,269 AF



2020 Upland Consumption

Page 10 - 22

76
6 

1,
53

1 2,
29

7 3,
06

2 3,
82

8 4,
59

3 5,
35

9 6,
12

4 6,
89

0 7,
65

5 8,
42

1 9,
18

6 

50
6

1,
08

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

522

1,042

1,635

2,331

3,222

4,146

5,167

6,175

7,037

7,879

8,594

9,187

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

 8,000

 9,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

Cumulative Mnthly Ent

Cumulative Consumption

Projected CumulativeConsumption

Yearly Active Share Entitlement = 9,187 AF



2020 Monte Vista Consumption

Page 11 - 22

56
 

11
2 

16
8 

22
4 

28
0 

33
5 

39
1 

44
7 

50
3 

55
9 

61
5 

67
1 

48

95

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

34

68

109

150

197

248

299

350

466

582

627

672

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

 700

ac
re
-fe

et
Cumulative Mnthly Ent

Cumulative Consumption

Projected CumulativeConsumption

Yearly Active Share Entitlement = 672 AF



2020 Ontario Consumption

Page 12 - 22

50
 

10
0 

15
0 

20
0 

25
0 

30
0 

35
0 

40
1 

45
1 

50
1 

55
1 

60
1 

43

85

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

30

60

96

136

186

236

286

336

386

436

476

516

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600
ac
re
-fe

et
Cumulative Mnthly Ent

Cumulative Consumption

Projected CumulativeConsumption

Yearly Active Share Entitlement = 601 AF



2020 Total Yearly Production

Page 13 - 22

1,040

1,929

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

12,000

13,000

14,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

Chino Basin 2020 Production Cucamonga Basin Production Six Basins Production Gravity Production Cumulative Mnthly Ent  Total  Cumulative Production

Yearly Active Share Entitlement = 11,603AF



2020 Monthly Production

Page 14 - 22

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

15
4 22

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

91
88

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

79
4

58
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1,040

889

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

Chino Basin 2020 Production Cucamonga Basin Production Six Basins Production Gravity Production  Total  Production



2020 Gravity Cumulative

Page 15 - 22

23
4 43
3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

56
1 94

2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

300

900

1,500

2,100

2,700

3,100
3,400

3,600 3,700 3,800 3,900 4,000

794

1,375

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

12,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

San Antonio Tunnel V Screen, Frankish & Stamm Tunnel and TP Backwash



2020 Gravity Monthly

Page 16 - 22

23
4

19
9

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

56
1

38
1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

794

580

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

300

600 600 600 600

400

300

200

100 100 100 100

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

San Antonio Tunnel V Screen, Frankish & Stamm Tunnel and TP Backwash Gravity Production Projected Production



2020 Cucamonga Basin Cumulative

Page 17 - 22

15
4

37
5

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 020
0

40
0 70

0

1,
30

0 1,
90

0

2,
60

0

3,
30

0

4,
00

0 4,
60

0 5,
20

0 5,
60

0

24
6 32

0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

Cumulative Production Projected Production Cumulative Spread Groundwater Basin Production Rights

Production Rights = 5,818 AF



2020 Cucamonga Basin Monthly

Page 18 - 22

15
4

22
1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

20
0

20
0

30
0

60
0

60
0

70
0

70
0

70
0

60
0

60
0

40
0

24
6

74

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

Production Projected Production Monthly Spread

Production Rights = 485 AF



2020 Chino Basin Cumulative

Page 19 - 22

47
1

47
1

0 0 0 010
0

20
0

30
0

40
0

50
0

60
0

70
0

80
0

90
0 1,

00
0 1,

10
0 1,

20
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

500

1,000

1,500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

19-20 Cumulative Production Projected Production 20-21 Cumulative Production Cumulative Spread

Production Rights = 1,232 AF



2020 Chino Basin Monthly

Page 20 - 22

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

Chino Basin 2020 Production Projected Production Monthly Spread

Production Rights = 103 AF



2020 Six Basins Cumulative

Page 21 - 22

91

17
9

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 080

16
0

24
0

32
0

40
0

48
0

57
0

67
0

77
0

86
0

94
0

13
0

16
8

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1,000

1,100

1,200

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

Cumulative Production Projected Production Cumulative Spread Groundwater Basin Production Rights

Production Rights = 932 AF



2020 Six Basins Monthly

Page 22 - 22

91

88

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

80 80 80 80 80 80

90

10
0

10
0

90

80

13
0

38

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

ac
re
-fe

et

Production Projected Production Monthly Spread

Production Rights = 78 AF



Prominent Issues Report 
 Agenda Item No. 4G 

Agenda Date: March 17, 2020 

A. Water Supply through January 2020

• Annual entitlement for CY2019 is 13,000 AF
o Cumulative yearly production was 1,929 AF
o Cumulative yearly consumption was 1,471 AF*
o Cumulative yearly spread was 489 AF
o Cumulative unaccounted water was (5.76 AF)

* - The City of Upland is experiencing a facility failure at their 15th Street reservoir, limiting the
amount of entitlement water the City and Red Hill HOA can receive for the month of January
and February. Repairs are expected to take up to six weeks.

Six Basins Production for 2020 
• Annual production right is 932 AF.
• Cumulative production was 179 AF. Production is sent to the WFA treatment facility to meet

City of Ontario and MVWD entitlement.
• The Company has spread a total of 168 AF.

Cucamonga Basin Production for 2020 
• Annual production right is 5,818 AF.
• Cumulative production was 375 AF.
• The Company has spread a total of 320 AF.

Chino Basin Production for 2020 
• Annual production right is 1,232 AF.
• Cumulative production was 0 AF.
• The Company has spread a total of 0 AF.

Surface Water (San Antonio Creek) flow for 2020 
Total flow was 368 AF. 

Tunnel flow for 2020 
San Antonio Tunnel flow was 433 AF. 
Frankish and Stamm Tunnel flow was 48 AF. 

B. Company Stock
No shares of water stock moved from dormant to active this transfer period.

C. Communication and Information Activities
Staff is communicating on our new “Facebook” page with 179 friends liking our old FB page 
and 64 customers have liked our new FB page. Communication is posted regularly on the new 
page and no new communication on the old Facebook page. Facebook is not able to merge 
the two Facebook pages, therefore we are in discussion of possibly deleting the old page.

D. Administration Matters
Meetings of interest:

• Tuesday, February 25th - GM attended a CBWM Groundwater Recharge Coordination 
Meeting

• Thursday, February 27th - GM attended a CBWM Board Meeting
• Monday, March 2nd - GM attended a CBWM AP Closed Session Meeting 



Prominent Issues Report 
 Agenda Item No. 4G 

Agenda Date: March 17, 2020 

• Monday, March 2nd - GM attended a CBWM OBMP Meeting
• Tuesday, March 3rd - GM meet with the Interim Public Works Director for the City of

Upland
• Monday, March 9th - GM meet with the GM of IEUA
• Thursday, March 12th - GM telephonically attended CBWM AP meeting and closed

session
• Friday, March 13th - GM meet with Supervisor Rutherford’s District Representative,

Dianna Lee

E. Groundwater Basin Matters

Chino Basin -

Spread Water from SAWCo - SAWCo has not started spreading for the 2019/20 year into Chino 
Basin.   

Storage Management Plan – Watermaster issued the final report on the 2020 Storage 
Management Plan on December 11th.  Staff is currently reviewing. WM staff presented an update 
at the AP meeting on Feb. 13. WM staff are considering the Storage Management Plan (OBMP 
Implementation Program 8) and Storage and Recovery Plan (OBMP Implementation Program 
9) singularly. At the request of the AP, Watermaster will focus on program elements 8 and 9
first, and then complete the remainder of the OBMP elements at a later date this year.

To complete program elements 8 and 9 in a timely fashion, Watermaster will be holding a series 
of collaborative meetings through the month of March. 

WM staff intend for the OBMP Implementation Plan to be attached to the Peace Agreement and 
will require a Peace Agreement amendment. 

Safe Yield Reset –Draft report is expected in mid-March. Final Report is schedule for end of 
April 

Restated Judgment Amendment – Ag Pool Pooling Plan - The Appropriative Pool agreed 
unanimously to file a response to Ag Pool’s decision to update their Pooling Plan and Judgment 
with incomplete Peace Agreement language. The filing is meant to give clarity and 
understanding to the court. 

Monte Vista Water District and the City of Ontario filed an opposition to the Ag Pool’s 
amendment calling a “timeout” to discuss and understand.  

All will be heard on the court date March 20, 2020 at 1:30pm [S35 Superior Court – 247 W. 3rd 
Street, San Bernardino] 

Optimum Basin Management Plan (OBMP)– Watermaster is proceeding with the OBMP update 
but the wish list can be expensive and not all parties agree with the implementation.  The OBMP 
Notice of Preparation (NOP) / Initial Study (IS) was publicized by Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency (IEUA), the lead agency for CEQA, in early February. This issue will be heavily 
discussed. 

Six Basins –   
AGM started attending the Six Basins meetings.  At the last February 26 Board Meeting, the 
2019 draft annual report was presented.  At the end of 2019, SAWCo was over their allotted 



Prominent Issues Report 
 Agenda Item No. 4G 

Agenda Date: March 17, 2020 

storage by 643.3 AF.  AGM was able to negotiate a deal with Pomona to sell water for appx. 
$74k instead of losing the water. WM continues to focus on MS4 and storm water 
recharge plans. An opportunity to have Holliday Rock mine a recharge basin on PVPA 
property was discussed at the meeting.  

Cucamonga Basin –
The working group met on March 3rd.  SAWCo and WECWC plan to meet to discuss Terms of 
Reference document.  Cost sharing of projects will be worked out once document is in place.   

All the parties of the decree sent a letter from their attorneys stating their concern in utilizing 
the Cucamonga Basin modeling in determining safe yield for the Chino Basin.  No response 
was received regarding the letters. 

The group is continuing to review TKE’s revision to the Judgment.  Once the group is done 
with the review.  Sections will be broken out to legal and technical for further information.  The 
next meeting is scheduled for April 7, 2020.   



Agenda Date: February 18, 2020 

 Agenda Item No. 4H 

Item Title: Projects and Operations Update 
Purpose: 
To update the Board and Shareholders on Company capital projects.   

Updates: 

1507 – Office Relocation 
Project is on hold pending review of City facilities 

1602 – Holly Drive Reservoir, Phase 1 & 2 
Phase I was completed in 2019. Phase 2 plans and specifications are being finalized for public 
bidding. Anticipate bid opening and award recommendation in April 2020. 

1701- Reservoir 7 Roof Repair 
Project was completed in January 2020. Final invoicing and project close-out should be 
completed by end of March. 

1807 – Campus Avenue Pipeline 
The majority of the project was completed by January 2020. Awaiting pavement slurry seal. 
Final invoicing and project close-out should be completed by end of March. 

1901 – Automated Meter Reading (AMR) 
Staff continues to evaluate industry options. 

1902 – Cucamonga Crosswalls Mitigation 
First of five years of mitigation will occur Spring 2020 

1904 – Geographical Information System (GIS) 
First review of GIS completed. Staff is providing additional data for input. Field implementation 
and training should occur in Spring of 2020 

1905 – 2020 Master Plan 
Statement of Proposals received on February 11, 2020. Award at March 17, 2020 Board 
Meeting. 

2020 Capital Improvement Plan Projects 
Seven projects included in the 2020 budget have been combined into one professional 
services proposal for design and construction management. Proposal has been sent to 
multiple consultants and staff anticipates an award at a special Board Meeting on March 31st. 



//RWG
LAW

James L. Markman

T 714.990.0901
F 714.990.6230
E jmarkman@rwglaw.com

1 Civic Center Circle, PO Box 1059 
Brea, California 92822-1059 
rwglaw.com

February 18, 2020

Mr. Peter Kavounas
General Manager
Chino Basin Watermaster
9641 San Bernardino Road
Rancho Cucamonga, California 91730

Re: Wildermuth Environmental's potential use of data in the Chino Basin safe
yield reset process, which data was obtained in modeling Cucamonga Basin 
for Cucamonga Valley Water District

Dear Mr. Kavounas:

This input on the above topic is provided on behalf of the City of Upland, the owner of 
approximately 93% of the stock in West End Consolidated Water Company, a party which 
enjoys access to Cucamonga Basin water resources. The primary point to be made to the 
Watermaster is that the City of Upland concurs in the objections to the use of the subject data 
in any matter concerning Chino Basin safe yield reset and resulting production rights as follows:

1. It is entirely inappropriate for an independent engineering firm to obtain modeling data 
generated for and at the expense of a client, Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) 
in this instance and apply it in another context without the directions or, at least, 
written consent of the client who paid for the modeling and resulting data. Nothing 
generates disclosure disputes more often or more quickly than the misuse of computer 
modeling data.

2. The modeling results in issue have not been accepted by Cucamonga Basin water 
producers in determining sustainable yield or affecting pumping rights and are 
considered to be flawed "rough" data by those water producers. In other words, the 
Cucamonga Basin producers do not consider themselves bound by data which may 
improperly be used to in some way impact the Chino Basin reset process. And, of 
course, the Cucamonga Basin producers are concerned that the use of this data may 
include some specious claim which seeks to limit their water production from the 
Cucamonga Basin for which there is no legal basis.

Orange County Los Angeles San Francisco Temecula Central Coast RICHARDS WATSON GERSHON

Item 4J

mailto:jmarkman%40rwglaw.com
rwglaw.com


Mr. Peter Kavounas
February 18, 2020 Page | 2

The City of Upland suggests proceeding with the safe yield reset process without depreciating 
its result by using the data discussed in this letter.

Very truly yours,

James L. Markman
Counsel
City of Upland

cc: Rosemary Hoerning - rhoerning@ci.upland.ca.us
Steven Flower - sflower@rwglaw.com 
Brian Lee - blee@sawaterco.com
Teri Layton - tlayton@sawaterco.com 
Steve Anderson - steve.anderson@bbklaw.com 
Tom McPeters - thmcp@aol.com
Scott Slater - sslater@bhfs.com

11231-0001\2393489vl.doc

mailto:rhoerning%40ci.upland.ca.us
mailto:sflower%40rwglaw.com
mailto:blee%40sawaterco.com
mailto:tlayton%40sawaterco.com
mailto:steve.anderson%40bbklaw.com
mailto:thmcp%40aol.com
mailto:sslater%40bhfs.com


January 23, 2020

Peter Kavounas 
General Manager 
Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

Re: Chino Basin Safe Yield Reset Process and Incorporation of Cucamonga Basin Modeling
Information 

Dear Mr. Kavounas: 

The undersigned is General Counsel for San Antonio Water Company ("SAWCO").

SAWCO concurs with, and joins in, the letter to you from Legal Counsel for Cucamonga Valley
Water District, dated January 16, 2020, and makes these supplemental comments.

1. The work product produced by Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (“WEI”) with respect to
modeling of the Cucamonga Basin was never accepted by SAWCO as an accurate report.  The
modeling was materially flawed since it failed to account for a major source of water in any way.
And, further, failed to take into account the planned reactivation of wells that had long been dormant
for many years.  In other words SAWCO believes the modeling would not produce accurate results
when applied to existing data.

2. The parties to the Cucamonga Judgment anticipate making significant changes in the near term
of pumping patterns and total water produced from the Cucamonga Basin, which means that the
prior Modeling done by WEI, even if used, would not produce valid results with respect to the
amount of outflow from the Cucamonga Basin to the Chino Basin. Whatever has happened in the
past, is not likely to occur in the future due to these changes.

Item 4J



Peter Kavounas 
January 23, 2020 
Page 2 

We understand that the Chino Basin Safe Yield process would necessarily involve some estimate
of flow into the Chino Basin from the Cucamonga Basin. SAWCO does not intend to be bound by
whatever number is finally provided by in that regard.

We are interested in developing a correct Safe Yield for the Chino Basin and will participate in the
process with that goal in mind.

Sincerely, 

Thomas H. McPeters

S0720-380

Jeff Ferre, CVWD General Counsel 
John Bosler, CVWD, General Manager
Brian Lee, SAWCO, General Manager
West End Consolidated Water Company 



Item 4J





Agenda Date: March 17, 2020 

Agenda Item No. 6A 

Item Title: Comprehensive System Master Plan & Asset Management Program 

Purpose: 

Discussion and Possible Action to Award a Contract for Creation of a System Wide Master Plan 
& Asset Management Program. 

Issue: 

Develop a comprehensive plan for future Capital Improvement Projects. 

Manager’s Recommendation: 

Authorize the General Manager to execute a contract with the Board’s preferred consultant for 
development of a System Wide Master Plan & Asset management Program. 

Background: 

As proposed in the approved 2020 budget, staff proposed to prepare an update to the Company’s 
master plan, charting an asset management program for the next ten years. Included in the 
proposed master plan is a source-water loss-risk review to help prepare the Company for 
catastrophic impacts to our source water and system. 

In December of 2019 the Company issued a Request for Proposals (attached), inviting eight firms 
to submit proposals. Two firms responded; WSC and Carollo (proposals attached). 

Carollo’s proposed fee is $216,783 
WSC’s proposed fee is $204,085 

Staff brought the proposals to the PROC in February 2020 for consideration, seeking a 
recommendation for the full Board. Each firm is highly regarded and fully capable of meeting the 
Company needs. After discussion, PROC deferred a recommendation to the full Board. 

Impact on the Budget:  

Contract with Consultant – Time and material contract, not to exceed $217,000 

Previous Actions:  

Project included in the 2020 Budget for $220,000 



San Antonio Water Company 
Incorporated October 25, 1882 

Serving the original Ontario Colony lands 

139 North Euclid Avenue ● Upland, California 91786 ● 909.982.4107 ● Fax 909.920.3047 ● Website: sawaterco.com 

A REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
TO PROVIDE CONSULTING SERVICES TO THE SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 

PROJECT TITLE: 

COMPREHENSIVE SYSTEM MASTER PLAN AND ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

RESPONSE DUE BEFORE 3:00 PM 

On February 11th, 2020 

Item 6A



SAWCo Master Plan RFP 2020 Page 1 of 8 

Introduction 

The San Antonio Water Company is soliciting proposals from qualified firms to assist in developing 
a Master Plan / Asset Management Program for the Company’s domestic and irrigation water 
systems.  

The intent of the Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program is to: 

• Conduct a detailed study of both systems and recommend Capital Improvements,
• Prepare a detailed prioritization of Capital Replacements,
• Develop a comprehensive Capital Master Plan / Asset Management Program based on the

findings of the Improvement and Replacement reviews, and
• Develop high-level review concerning loss-risk of water sources and possible alternatives

to water supply in consideration of current sources (e.g. 100+ year-old tunnel) and
projected regional environmental changes (i.e. global warming) or events (e.g.
earthquakes / wildfires).

General Information 

In 1882 Canadians George and William Chaffey purchased 8,000-acres of the Cucamonga Rancho, 
including the water rights, and established an irrigation colony which they named Ontario, in 
honor of their homeland. On October 25, 1882 they also established the San Antonio Water 
Company under the General Corporation Laws of the United States. Rancheria water rights 
established back in the 1700’s were transferred to the Company to support the newly established 
irrigation colony. The brother’s vision was to develop a Mutual Water Company whose members 
shared equally in the locally available water supply. 

The brothers sold irrigation colony land in 10-acre blocks, primarily intended for the booming 
citrus industry. Along with the land, the brothers sold shares in the Company, one share for each 
purchased acre.  Each shareholder was entitled to a portion of available local water, distributed 
equally by the company amongst all the shareholders. The Company was responsible for 
distributing water on a non-profit basis to the shareholders.  

Since 1882 the San Antonio Water Company has consistently provided water service to its 
shareholders. Although the local citrus industry has largely disappeared, the Company maintains 
delivery to current shareholders utilizing the same successful ‘per share’ distribution plan 
established over 135 years ago. 

The Company does not import any water. Instead we are dependent on our local San Antonio 
Canyon and Cucamonga Canyon watersheds and downstream groundwater basins.  

Currently, our shareholders include most residents of the unincorporated area of San Antonio 
Heights, the Cities of Upland and Ontario, the Monte Vista Water District, local quarries and the 
proud heritage of remaining grove irrigators. 



 

SAWCo Master Plan RFP 2020  Page 2 of 8 

Annual shareholder water entitlements are established based on projected availability. For 2018, 
full water entitlement was established at 12,000 Acre Feet (AF).  The table below shows how that 
12,000 AF was divided among current shareholders, along with actual water delivered in 2018. 

Shareholders Shares 
Annual Entitlement, Acre 
Feet per Year (AFY) 

Delivered 
(AFY) 

City of Upland 4,338.75 8,150 7,544 

City of Ontario 295.25 555 359 

Monte Vista Water District 329.75 619 405 

Domestic Customers 625.25 1,174 1,259 

Rock Company 36.25 68 384 

Golf Courses 116.75 219 366 

Grove Irrigators 87.25 164 53.32 

Inactive Shares 559.75 1,051 0 
Total shares 6,389 12,001 10,369 

 

The Company provides water through two separate systems; domestic and irrigation.  

The domestic system receives the majority of its water through the San Antonio tunnel. The tunnel 
is built into the head of the San Antonio Canyon about 90 feet below the ground surface. The 
tunnel consists of 5,400 feet of 36” concrete pipe and 600 feet of a six-foot square shaft built into 
the bedrock below the alluvium. Portions of the shaft are supported by redwood beams. There 
are ten access hatches spaced about 600 feet apart; three access hatches for the tunnel and six 
for the pipeline. Groundwater percolating through the alluvium collects in the tunnel and, after 
chlorination provides 4-log inactivation, is channeled into the Company’s potable water system. 
Two wells supply the remainder of our domestic supply. Domestic water is distributed by six 
booster pump stations through 25 miles of pipeline to five reservoirs. 

The domestic water system provides service to the San Antonio Heights, also known as our Basic 
Service Area. Consisting primarily of large residential lots, the Heights is an unincorporated area 
of San Bernardino County approximately 2.6 square miles in size located immediately north of the 
City of Upland. The Company provides water to individual residential lots through 1,200 domestic 
meters. 

The irrigation system primarily receives water from surface water diversions in the San Antonio 
Canyon. Additional irrigation water is supplied through seven wells located in three groundwater 
basins; Cucamonga Basin, Six Basins and Chino Basin. Irrigation water is distributed by two booster 
pump stations through 21 miles of pipeline to three reservoirs. 

The irrigation system provides service to the Company’s ‘extended’ service area. Shareholders in 
the extended service area include municipal and private companies. A majority of the distributed 



SAWCo Master Plan RFP 2020 Page 3 of 8 

irrigation water is treated by municipal shareholders and then delivered to their customers as 
domestic water. The remaining irrigation water is used for farming, landscaping and commercial 
use (quarry). 

The Company’s most recent Master Plan was developed in 2017, along with the most recent 
hydraulic model of the domestic water system. 

Project Scope of Services 

Task 1 – Project Management 
Provide overall project management services including: 

• Quality assurance/ quality control
• Teleconferences and meetings at appropriate intervals to keep Company staff updated on

progress and address any needed management level decisions.

Task 2 – Data Gathering and System Evaluation Criteria 
The Company recognizes that a major upfront component of this project involves discovery tasks 
that will assist in developing a remaining scope of work. Consultant shall propose a mechanism to 
collaboratively work with staff to review, prioritize, sequence and implement dependent tasks. 

Task 3 – Capital Improvement Program 
Domestic Hydraulic Model 

1. Review and modernize existing domestic hydraulic model.
2. Conduct flow tests within and throughout domestic system. Verify the hydraulic model

adequately represents real-world operating conditions of the domestic system.

Irrigation Hydraulic Model 

3. Develop an irrigation system hydraulic model based on existing facility map book
information.

4. Conduct flow tests within and throughout irrigation system. Verify the hydraulic model
adequately represents real-world operating conditions of the irrigation system.

Capital Improvement Projects Based on Modeling Results 

5. Using the modernized and calibrated hydraulic models, identify weaknesses in the existing
domestic and Irrigation systems in regard to flow (fire and peak day demand), pressure
and/or storage. Determine what improvements could be made to increase/improve
service. Company expects consultant to use two separate models, one for each system.

6. Develop an Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost, in 2020 dollars, for each
facility/project proposed for improvement in subtasks 5.



 

SAWCo Master Plan RFP 2020  Page 4 of 8 

Task 4 – Capital Replacement Program 

1. Refine a comprehensive database of Company facilities and their metadata (e.g. age, 
material, size) from the Company’s GIS system. 

2. Aggregate existing facilities into groups based on location and similarity. The intent of this 
task is to develop a list of replacement projects that represents all Company assets. 

3. Develop an Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Replacement Cost, in 2020 dollars, for each 
facility/project identified in subtask 2. 

Task 5 – Master Plan and Facility Asset Management Program 

1. Using costs developed in tasks one and two and an ‘industry standard estimated service 
life’ for facilities, develop a theoretical yearly asset management budget that would ensure 
timely system improvements and that all facilities are replaced in a timely manner. 

2. Review Company’s revenue and operating expenses and develop a best-fit yearly total 
spending limit devoted to Capital replacement, in 2020 dollars. 

3. Reconcile the difference between the spending limit in subtask 1 with the spending 
requirement in subtask 2.  

4. Develop a review and ranking process whereby each facility can be assessed compared to 
like facilities. The intent of this task is to develop a replacement/improvement priority list 
that contains all Company facilities. 

5. Using all of the information developed above, prepare a 10-year Capital Replacement 
Prioritization List and a 5-year Capital Replacement Program.  

Task 6 – Source Water Loss-Risk Review 

1. Provide a review of projected environmental changes (e.g. rainfall and temperature 
patterns) in the local area that are predicted to occur over the next twenty years. What is 
the future local water source outlook for the Company? 

2. Provide a review of catastrophic failures that could potentially impact the Company’s 
source water (e.g. wildfire, earthquake). Of particular concern is the Company’s domestic 
source - the San Antonio Tunnel. 

3. In consideration of the findings in subtask 1 and 2, develop alternative scenarios in which 
the Company can continue providing full yearly entitlement to shareholders. Alternatives 
to consider include: 

a. Staying-the-course. No change in operation. 
b. Strengthen or improve current source water facilities. 
c. Developing a conjunctive use program in one or more groundwater basins. 
d. Develop alternative water sources (e.g. Increase yield in local watersheds and/or 

connection to Metropolitan Water District) 
e. Consultant developed alternatives. 

How can the Company prepare for catastrophic impacts to source water and systems? 

4. Develop high-level project scope and costs for each alternative considered in subtask 3. 



SAWCo Master Plan RFP 2020 Page 5 of 8 

Schedule 

The Company anticipates the following timeline and key milestones for award of the project: 

Proposal Due Date February 11, 2020 

Planning, Resource and Operations Committee 
(PROC) Review  

February 25, 2020 

Interview TBD – If necessary 

Board of Director’s Approval March 17,2020 

Consultant’s Notification March 18, 2020 

 Proposal Requirements 

The proposal shall not exceed 19 pages excluding resumes, cover letter, dividers, front and back 
covers. No other documents will be reviewed. Please do not submit additional material. Responses 
to this RFP shall be in the following order and shall include: 

Executive Summary (2 pages maximum) 
Summarize the contents of your firm’s proposal in a clear and concise manner. 

Firm Background and Experience (4 pages maximum) 
Brief description of the firm and subconsultants, if any, including the size of the organization, 
location of offices and relevant capabilities and resources in relation to the project. This section 
should include: 

I. Experience with developing master plans and asset management programs
II. Experience in water system planning.

III. Similar projects with other water companies or districts
IV. Firm’s local experience
V. Procedures and/or policies associated with or related to work quality and cost control

VI. Management and organizational capabilities
VII. Verification of professional liability insurance for coverage of not less than $1,000,000.

Project Organization and Experience of the Project Team (2 pages maximum, not including 
resumes) 
Proposing firm shall identify the team to be assigned to the project, by name, including at a 
minimum the principal, project manager, key staff and any subconsultants. Proposing firm shall 
describe the project team’s qualifications and experience on projects related to this specific 
project. Proposing firm shall explain the project team’s experience regarding all tasks associated 
with the scope of work. This section should include: 



 

SAWCo Master Plan RFP 2020  Page 6 of 8 

I. Describe proposed project organization, including identification and responsibilities of key 
personnel, including sub-consultants. Include only one- page resumes.  

II. Describe the experience of the Project Manager and the experience that the proposed 
personnel have working on past projects as a team.  

III. Describe project management approach to the work effort, locations where work will be 
done, responsibilities for coordination with the Company, and lines of communication 
necessary to maintain project on schedule.  

Project Understanding and Approach (8 pages maximum) 
Proposer shall demonstrate its preliminary understanding of the project by providing a clear and 
concise description of the project and major issues, based on the information provided in this RFP.  

Proposer shall clearly define the tasks and activities necessary to meet the objectives outlined in 
the scope of work. This section should include:  

I. Description of the tasks and activities, the methodology that will be used to accomplish 
them.  

II. Description of the products that would result from each task and activity.  
III. Identification of points of input and review with Company staff.  
IV. Proposed project schedule identifying key tasks, their expected duration, and milestone 

dates.  
V. Proposers are invited to suggest additional (optional) work tasks that could be performed 

in conjunction with or subsequent to the scope of work. Any such tasks are to be described 
as optional and the benefits of performing such tasks shall be described.  

Past Projects (3 pages maximum) 
Proposer shall provide project descriptions of up to three similar projects. Include the following 
information: 

I. Owner contact name and phone number 
II. Project team members 

III. Project size and description 

Proposed Total Professional Fee and Fee Schedule Submitted Under Separate Sealed Cover 
Proposed fee shall not be the sole basis of award but will be used to evaluate the Consultant’s 
understanding of the Scope of Work. 

Include the hourly rates of all staff that will charge to the project. 

Company expects to award a ‘time and material, not to exceed’ contract for Implementation.  

Exceptions to this RFP 
The Consultant shall certify that it takes no exceptions to this RFP including, but not limited to, the 
Professional Service Agreement (attached).  



SAWCo Master Plan RFP 2020 Page 7 of 8 

Evaluation Criteria 

The evaluation criteria and the respective weights that will be given to each criterion are as 
follows:  

a) 30% Understanding and approach to the work to be done
b) 20% Experience of firm with similar kinds of work
c) 30% Experience of staff for work to be done
d) 10% Overall clarity and presentation of Proposal
e) 5% Firm’s Local Experience
f) 5% Proposed Project Fee

Selection Process and Schedule 

Key senior staff and select Company Directors will independently review and rank each proposal. 
Based on an aggregate of those reviews, the Company will likely enter into negotiations with the 
top ranked firm. If there is no clear ‘top ranked’ firm, interviews may be scheduled.  

At this time, the Company contemplates the use of a Time and Material Not to Exceed contract 
for the services requested. Negotiations will cover scope of work, contract terms and conditions, 
attendance requirements, and appropriateness of the proposed fee.  

After negotiating a proposed agreement that is fair and reasonable the General Manager will 
present the contract to the Company’s Board for authorization to execute a contract with the most 
responsive firm. 

Related Documents 

• Company standard Professional Service Agreement (attached)

Link for downloading available upon request 

• 2017 Company Water Master Plan
• 2017 InfoWater Hydraulic Model
• Company’s System Atlas (both domestic and irrigation)

The Company’s GIS database is currently under development. The first iteration will be based on 
the Company’s System Atlas. It is expected to be available in Spring 2020.  

Interested proposers should immediately contact the Company to register for inclusion on the 
project distribution list. Revisions or supplemental information to this RFP will be issued through 
addenda by email and posted on the Company’s website. Proposers are responsible for receipt of 
any and all addenda. 



SAWCo Master Plan RFP 2020 Page 8 of 8 

Submittal Requirements 

One (1) executed original marked “ORIGINAL” in red ink and 6 copies of the Proposal shall be 
delivered, along with one electronic copy in PDF format on thumb drive. One single sealed 
Proposed Fee Estimate marked “FEE ESTIMATE – 2020 Master Plan” in red ink shall be submitted 
separate from the proposal. Proposals will not be accepted in any other format. Proposals will not 
be accepted by email, fax or verbally. The proposal shall be signed by an individual, partner, officer 
or officers authorized to execute legal documents on behalf of the Firm.  

The Response Proposal must be received no later than 3:00 p.m. local time, on or before February 
11th, 2020 at the office of:  

PROPOSAL – 2020 Master Plan 
San Antonio Canyon Water Company 
139 North Euclid Avenue 
Upland, CA 91786 
Attn: Brian Lee 

Failure to comply with the requirements of this RFP may result in disqualification. Questions 
regarding this RFP shall be submitted in writing to blee@sawaterco.com.  



F E B R U A R Y  1 1 ,  2 0 2 0

P r o p o s a l  t o  p r o v i d e  c o n s u lt i n g  s e r v i c e s  f o r P r o p o s a l  t o  p r o v i d e  c o n s u lt i n g  s e r v i c e s  f o r 

COMPREHENSIVE SYSTEM 
MASTER PLAN AND ASSET 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM  

Item 6A



D e a r  M r .  L e e ,

Water Systems Consulting, Inc. (WSC) is pleased to present this proposal to provide consulting services to the San 
Antonio Water Company (SAWCo) for the Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program. 
This procurement provides an exciting opportunity for SAWCo to develop a functional and defensible Master 
Plan that guides system optimization and resiliency. WSC is passionate about delivering our brand of high-quality, 
client-focused service to SAWCo. Our business strategy relies on outperforming our client’s expectations and 
building true partnerships that outlast any single project.

WSC began working with SAWCo in 2019 on its System Mapping and GIS Database Project. Our proposed Project 
Manager, Kirsten Plonka, and team member, Spencer Waterman, are leading this project. Through WSC’s role on 
those efforts, Kirsten and her team built strong relationships with SAWCo staff and a thorough understanding of 
SAWCo’s water system and its unique conditions and constraints. 

Based on our understanding of the project, our approach is tailored around these key success factors:

Prioritize projects that reduce risk and promote resilience for supply sources. Our expert team of engineers and 
planners will evaluate future supply scenarios including loss of supply from the San Antonio Tunnel and alternative 
supply outlooks, while understanding the risks and uncertainties associated with climate change, future regulations, 
and natural disasters.

Produce a comprehensive Asset Management Program for continued reliable system operation. We will use our 
understanding of your system to apply proven desktop tools combined with system maintenance best practices to 
develop an asset database and a comprehensive list of replacement and rehabilitation needs over the next 10 years.

Develop a practical and defensible master plan that provides a roadmap for the future. The Comprehensive 
System Master Plan and Asset Management Program will guide SAWCo’s annual planning and rate structure for 
the next 5 to 10 years. WSC's team will make it an adaptable guide with defensible projects to support SAWCo’s 
planning efforts.

WSC certifies it takes no exceptions with the RFP. However, WSC has an existing Professional Service Agreement 
with the SAWCo and respectfully requests SAWCo consider using the same terms and conditions for this project. 
We are confident that we can quickly and efficiently reach mutually agreed upon terms.

If you have questions about any aspect of this proposal, please feel free to contact WSC’s proposed Project Manager, 
Ms. Kirsten Plonka, at (858) 397-2617, ext. 304 (kplonka@wsc-inc.com) or WSC’s proposed Principal in Charge, Ms. 
Laine Carlson, at (909) 483-3200, ext. 201 (lcarlson@wsc-inc.com). Thank you again for your consideration, and we 
look forward to your response.

S i n c e r e ly, 
W at e r  S y s t e m s  C o n s u lt i n g ,  I n c .

M R .  B R I A N  L E E

General Manager 
San Antonio Water Company 
139 North Euclid Avenue 
Upland, CA 91786

W A T E R  S Y S T E M S 
C O N S U L T I N G ,  I N C . 

9375 Archibald Avenue, Suite 200,  
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
P: (909) 483-3200 
F: (909) 354-3482

P R O P O S A L  F O R  T H E

Comprehensive System 
Master Plan and Asset 
Management Program

K I R S T E N  P L O N K A ,  P E
P R O J E C T  M A N A G E R

L A I N E  C A R L S O N ,  P E
P R I N C I P A L  I N  C H A R G E



1  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

WSC's team of master planning experts have the experience 
and understanding to deliver on a Comprehensive System 
Master Plan and Asset Management Program, while 
providing a high level of responsiveness and quality. Our 
proposed project manager, Kirsten Plonka, and members of 
the team have worked with SAWCo and will leverage that 
experience to streamline our work and  deliver an actionable 
plan that is supported by clear data and a comprehensive 
view of SAWCo's domestic and irrigation systems. 

E x e c u t i v e  S u m m a r y

SAWCo has been proactive about moving forward with the Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) from the previous Water Master Plan for the 
domestic and irrigation water systems. SAWCo is currently creating a new 
Geographical Information System (GIS) database with new information (e.g. 
age, material, size, maintenance history, etc.) that will allow for improved 
master planning and capital facility replacement planning. Therefore, 
SAWCo is seeking to update the Water Master Plan to support capital 
planning and asset management programs considering factors that were 
not included in the previous Water Master Plan analysis.

Our approach will incorporate SAWCo-specific expertise to develop a 
comprehensive planning document and a dynamic hydraulic modeling tool. 
Unique elements of our approach are included below.

A collaborative approach to project management engages the team at 
the right times

WSC’s team understands the importance of communication, aligning work 
efforts, efficient data gathering, and keeping the team working toward a 
unified goal. Our approach will include monthly meetings and continuous 
quality control to avoid miscommunications and engage the right reviews 
at the right times.

Streamlined data gathering and system evaluation criteria saves staff 
time and resources

Our team is familiar with SAWCo's systems and will use this knowledge to be 
efficient when using staff time during data collection. WSC will streamline 
data gathering, establish evaluation criteria, and capture staff knowledge to 
seamlessly move through this part of the project.

A new model informs the development of a reliable CIP

WSC will develop a new model linked to GIS to simplify future updates 
and will construct the domestic and irrigation systems within the same 
model for continuity. The models will be set up so SAWCo can run “what 
if” scenarios as supply and storage alternatives are developed in the future.

We Understand Your System

We Bring An Operator's  
Perspective

We Are Asset Management 
Experts

We Plan For System 
Resiliency

We Have A Systematic 
Approach to Project 

Management and Quality 
Control

W H y  s e l e c t  W S C ?



2  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

Establishing a routine replacement program proactively avoids 
customer impacts and service interruptions

WSC understands the importance of establishing a routine replacement 
program for aging assets and recommends an analysis of the distribution 
system facilities age and expected useful life to quantify the replacement 
liability facing SAWCo. 

A functional Master Plan allows for unique asset management strategy 

WSC will develop a yearly asset management budget and flexible CIP 
that encompasses all system assets and allows SAWCo to replace vital 
facilities in a timely manner. We will also provide an easy to read report 
with sufficient data to support projects, including rip and run sheets. 

Evaluating source water risks early advances proactive resiliency 
planning

WSC will evaluate how high impact, high probability risks will affect 
future water source availability for SAWCo. Of particular concern is 
the vulnerability of the San Antonio Tunnel because it is SAWCo’s least 
expensive supply source with significant capacity. Considering supply 
risks, WSC will develop alternative supply scenarios where SAWCo can 
continue to provide a full yearly entitlement to its shareholders. 

KEY SUCCESS FACTOR WSC BENEFIT

Prioritize projects that reduce 
risk and promote resilience for 
supply sources 

Our expert team of engineers and planners will evaluate future supply scenarios, 
including loss of supply from the San Antonio Tunnel and alternative supply 
outlooks, while understanding the risks and uncertainties associated with climate 
change, future regulations, and natural disasters.

Produce a Comprehensive 
Asset Management Program 
for continued reliable system 
operation

We will apply proven desktop tools combined with system maintenance best 
practices to develop an asset database and a comprehensive list of replacement 
and rehabilitation needs over the next 10 years. We will leverage our understand 
your system through our development of the GIS database and review of related 
asset data. 

Deliver a practical and 
defensible Comprehensive 
System Master Plan that 
provides a roadmap for the 
future. 

The Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program will 
guide SAWCo’s annual planning and rate structure for the next 5 to 10 years. The 
Water Master Plan will need to be an adaptable guide with defensible projects 
to support SAWCo’s financial planning and infrastructure management efforts.

KE Y OPPORTUNITIES
Through our partnership and previous work with SAWCo, we have identified several Key Success Factors that we 
believe will maximize the value of the Water Master Plan.

Meet Your Project Manager
KIRSTEN PLONKA

Kirsten has over 17 years of 
experience leading and developing 
water master plans, and has 
worked on more than 25 hydraulic 
models. She is currently leading the 
development of SAWCo's System 
Mapping and GIS Database project 
and will leverage this experience 
to successfully deliver a functional 
Comprehensive System Master 
Plan and Asset Management 
Program.   

WSC has been a partner to SAWCo by guiding the development and organization of much of the data needed for the 
Water Master Plan update. Our approach will incorporate SAWCo-specific expertise to streamline a comprehensive 
planning document and a dynamic hydraulic modeling tool.



F i r m  B a c k g r o u n d 
a n d  e x p e r i e n c e



3  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

WSC is a civil and environmental engineering 
firm that specializes in master planning. We 
are a people-centric enterprise, thriving and 
growing from a philosophy that people come 
first, and we aim to foster an environment of 
next-generation thinkers and professionals.

Our expert staff includes nearly 60 skilled 
employees working from eight offices in 
California and the Pacific Northwest, including 
our local office in Rancho Cucamonga. We 
serve investor-owned utilities, cities, counties, 
special districts, and regulatory agencies 
throughout California and Oregon.

Our team's professional expertise allows WSC 
to approach SAWCo’s Comprehensive System 
Master Plan and Asset Management Program 
from a holistic perspective that will result in a 
clear and defensible plan to address predicted 
needs for system optimization and resiliency. 
WSC's team includes GIS database, hydraulic 
modeling, asset management, and project 
management experts who have successfully 
delivered water master plans together 
throughout California.

Through our GIS work with SAWCo and our 
work throughout the region, WSC understands 
the nuances of your water distribution system 
and will be able to work quickly and efficiently. 
Together, proposed project manager, Kirsten 
Plonka, and her team will work collaboratively 
with  staff to deliver a Comprehensive 
System Master Plan and Asset Management 
Program that is functional and guides system 
optimization and resiliency. 

Wsc  is  your 
p remier 
WAT ER  M a s t er 
p l a nning 
consult ing  f irm

GET TO KNOW US:
• WSC has worked on 18 Master Plans in the past decade.

• WSC has been recognized as a Best Place to Work three
consecutive years by Inc. Magazine.

• We are an S-Corporation and Certified Small
Business with the State of California and a Certified
Minority Business Enterprise with the CPUC Supplier
Clearinghouse.

• WSC is working on the SAWCo's System Mapping and
GIS Database project.

• Expect WSC: Personalized Service. Sustainable Solutions.
Exceptional Value.

WSC verifies it possesses liability insurance for 
coverage of at least $1,000,000.

• Rancho Cucamonga, CA
• San Diego, CA
• San Luis Obispo, CA

(Headquarters)
• Wildomar, CA
• Orange County, CA
• Camarillo, CA
• Folsom, CA
• Portland, OR

WSC OFFICE LOCATIONS:



4  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

WSC's team has completed numerous asset management and 
CIP deliverables through our master planning efforts. For the 
City of Pismo Beach, WSC developed a prioritized CIP using an 
adaptive asset management approach. WSC identified a phased 
replacement schedule to address the highest risk pipe based on 
anticipated end of useful life and other ranked risk criteria. This 
approach resulted in a CIP that reduced risk while fitting in the 
City's annual budget.

We Have A Systematic 
Approach to Project 
Management and Quality 
Control

Several of our team members, including our 
proposed project manager, have worked in 
the public sector and have been responsible 
for implementing master plans. We know 
that nobody knows your system like you 
do, which is why we will actively engage 
key operators and management staff in the 
master planning process through workshops 
and timely communication.

We Bring An 
Operator's  
Perspective

We Are Asset Management 
Experts

F i v e  r e a s o n s  t o  s e l e c t  w s c

We Understand Your System 
WSC is developing SAWCo's GIS database and system atlas. Through this work, Kirsten and 
her team have developed valuable insight into the unique conditions and constraints that 
SAWCo faces. This work seamlessly feeds into the Comprehensive System Master Plan and 
allow us to efficiently update the hydraulic model. 

We Plan For 
System Resiliency 

We understand the need for resilient, sustainably 
managed water systems that are built for the future 
and can be maintained while minimizing risk from 
potential hazards. WSC's team has performed 
risk assessments for our clients for scenarios 
including seismic resiliency, climate change, and 
infrastructure reliability. We are also performing 
America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) Risk 
and Resilience Assessments (RRA) and Emergency 
Response Plans (ERP) for two of our California 
clients. Proposed Project Manager, Kirsten Plonka, 
and three additional WSC staff have completed the 
AWIA Certificate Program. 

WSC uses an integrated project management and 
accounting system, Ajera, to manage project progress and 
budget in real time. We use earned value management 
to identify discrepancies between planned and actual 
progress, allowing corrective measures to be implemented 
early to prevent cost overruns and schedule delays. 
We also use a combination of working sessions and 
technical, formatting, and readability reviews throughout 
the project. Reviews include high-level working sessions 
focused on overall strategy and identification of innovative 
approaches, and detailed reviews of calculations, drawings, 
and technical writing to avoid errors.



5  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

R e c e n t  Wat e r  M a s t e r  P l a n s
Client Status

Supply & 
Demand 
Forecast

Hydraulic 
Model

Capacity 
Evaluation

Risk 
Management

Asset 
Management

Capital 
Improvement 

Plan

Oak Lodge Water 
Services District Ongoing x x x x x x

California American 
Water Monterey 
District

Completed x x x x x

City of Victorville Completed, AWIA 
RRA in Progress x x x x x x

City of Pismo Beach Final Draft 
Submitted x x x x x

Big Bear City 
Community 
Services District

Completed x x x x x

Casitas Municipal 
Water District Completed x x x x x

City of Paso Robles Completed x x x x x x

City of Arroyo 
Grande Completed x x x x x x

City of Santa Maria Completed x x x x x x

w e  a r e  wat e r  m a s t e r  p l a n n i n g  e x p e r t s

WSC brings considerable experience developing 
master plans for water utilities throughout 
California and will leverage that experience 
by efficiently integrating past work into this 
project. Our approach typically revolves around 
four primary objectives: 
• Create a plan to reflect the unique aspects

of the client and their long-term goals.
• Optimize the use of water, energy, human,

and financial resources.
• Communicate the benefits of the plan to

both internal and external customers.
• Deliver on expectations that are

clearly understood and endorsed by all
stakeholders.

In the past decade, WSC 
has worked on:  

18 Master Plans and

2 AWIA Risk and Resilience
Assessments. 



6  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

WSC understands the regional water supply challenges that 
SAWCo faces. Members of WSC's team have experience 
tackling these issues working on projects within the 
Santa Ana Watershed, Chino Basin, and throughout San 
Bernardino County including:

• Regional Recycled Water Concept Study, San
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District

• Regional Urban Water Management Plan, San
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District

• Santa Ana River Conservation and Conjunctive
Use Project, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water
District

• Water Master Plan, Big Bear Community Services
District

• Sewer Master Plan, Big Bear Community Services
District

• Replenish Big Bear Program Management, Big Bear
Regional Wastewater Agency

• Water System Improvement Program, Big Bear Lake
Department of Water and Power

• Chino Basin Preliminary Design Report, Inland
Empire Utilities Agency

WSC began working with SAWCo in 2019 on the System Mapping 
and GIS Database project. WSC is delivering a cost-effective GIS 
database developed in a pragmatic way to consolidate multiple 
data sources into a comprehensive repository that can be leveraged 
for multiple every-day and long-term uses. The system map will be 
accessible to SAWCo staff to quickly look up system information, 
link to relevant data from other systems, and position the system 
map for updates that can be incorporated into a hydraulic model 
for long-term master planning.
Kirsten Plonka and team member, Spencer Waterman,  are 
leading this project and have a clear understanding of SAWCo's 
water systems. Together, they will deliver a valuable, long-term 
tool that will be critical in developing the Comprehensive System 
Master Plan. The two can leverage this experience to seamlessly 
transition into this project and provide value-added service and 
expertise. 

F i r m ' s  l o c a l  e x p e r i e n c e
S Y S T E M  M A P P I N G  A N D  G I S  D A T A B A S E 

S A N  A N T O N I O  W A T E R  C O M P A N Y ,  U P L A N D ,  C A

R e g i o n a l  e x p e r t i s e

WE ARE YOUR LOCAL AWIA RESOURCE 

It is becoming increasingly important for water 
agencies to possess defensible, well thought 
out, and adaptable resiliency and emergency 
preparedness documents. WSC has assembled a 
highly qualified team including four AWIA certified 
staff. 
Kirsten knows the AWIA process and is serving 
as project manager for two AWIA RRAs and ERPs 
for the City of Victorville and Mesa Water District. 
Our streamlined approach to this required planning 
process provides our clients value by reducing the 
impact on staff resources and combining planning 
efforts where there is an opportunity. 
WSC's AWIA deliverables will: facilitate compliance 
with AWIA requirements; identify security 
practices for operations and management; 
improve resilience for water and wastewater 
systems; support emergency planning; and inform 
cybersecurity practices.



p r o j e c t  o r g a n i z at i o n 
a n d  e x p e r i e n c e  
o f  p r o j e c t  t e a m



7  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

WSC’s team is functionally organized to take advantage 
of the strengths of our expert staff within a streamlined 
structure to provide a high level of responsiveness and 
quality.
WSC’s proposed Project Manager, Kirsten Plonka, has 
experience working with your staff and will serve as the 
primary point of contact for this project. Kirsten has more 
than 17 years of experience in water system planning, 
and her extensive experience in the public sector allows 
her to approach this project from an owner’s perspective. 
She will be supported by a highly qualified team which 
includes WSC Vice President and Principal in Charge, 

M e e t  T H E  w s c  t e a m

Hydraulic Modeling 
3Heather Freed, PE, MS 

2Antonia Estevez-Olea, PE, MS

Supply and Storage 
3Spencer Waterman 

Condition-based Assessment 
1Christopher Deiter, PE

*AWIA Lead
3Haley Lehman, AWIA, CCST

Engineering Support/ Cost Estimating 
1Aaron Morland 

*Optional task

D E P T H  O F  R E S O U R C E S

WSC OFFICE LOCATIONS
1 Rancho Cucamonga, CA

2 San Diego, CA
3 San Luis Obispo, CA P R I N C I P A L  I N  C H A R G E

1Laine Carlson, PE

P R O J E C T  M A N A G E R
2Kirsten Plonka, PE, AWIA

Q A / Q C
2Jeroen Olthof, PE, MS, MBA

Laine Carlson, who has more than 15 years of experience 
leading master planning projects. WSC’s proposed QA/
QC engineer, Jeroen Olthof, is a nationally recognized 
expert in hydraulic modeling and asset management. 
Together, they will lead WSC's comprehensive team that 
includes the key staff listed in the organizational chart 
below. WSC confirms the availability and commitment of 
the key staff assigned to this project. 
Resumes containing team members' qualifications and 
experience on water master plan and asset management 
projects are included in Appendix A.



8  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

Ms. Plonka brings more than 17 years of experience in the planning, design, and 
management of water, wastewater and recycled water systems. She specializes in 
water master planning, including Capital Improvement Plans and developing Asset 
Management Programs. Her expertise includes project management, hydraulic 
modeling, feasibility studies, and infrastructure and water resource planning 
studies. She has developed more than 25 hydraulic models and brings a strong 
understanding of SAWCo's systems. In addition, she has completed Vulnerability 
and Risk Assessments for multiple public utilities in California.

Kirsten has worked with each of WSC's proposed team members on master planning 
projects. This experience together allows the team to work efficiently together, 
saving SAWCo time and money. Kirsten's approach to project management and 
maintaining a high level of cooperation and service includes:
• Developing a detailed workplan and schedule
• Establishing clearly defined roles and responsibilities early
• Providing clear and frequent communication
• Using the right data management and collaboration tools

M e e t  y o u r  p r o j e c t  m a n a g e r

"The team at WSC has done a great 
job thus far listening to our input and 
identifying points of concern with our 
system. I would definitely consider 
them a front runner in selecting for 
future master plan work."
Jason Rice, PE, District Engineer, Oak 
Lodge Water Services

"WSC expertly prepared our Master Plans. I have 
been extremely impressed with their high level of 
competency and ability to work effectively and 
interactively with staff. WSC’s assessment and 
modeling of our systems has been exemplary. 
I really enjoy working with staff at WSC, I 
know I will always get a prompt, insightful, and 
trustworthy response."
Ms. Teresa McClish, Community Development 
Director, City of Arroyo Grande

H E R E ’ S  W H AT  O U R 
C L I E N T S  A R E  S AY I N G

"As a former water district employee, I put myself in my client’s 
shoes and imagine how I can help them succeed. I work to apply 
innovative tools and approaches to inform my work and respect 
Company staff’s valuable time.” 

QUALIFIC ATIONS

Education
BS, Civil Engineering, 
California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo

Registrations/Certificates
PE - Civil, CA No. 70746 
AWIA Certified

KIRSTEN PLONKA, PE



p r o j e c t 
u n d e r s ta n d i n g 
a n d  a p p r o a c h



9  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

Project Understanding 
San Antonio Water Company (SAWCo) has consistently provided water service since 1882 to its shareholders, 
which include residents in unincorporated San Antonio Heights, the cities of Upland and Ontario, the Monte Vista 
Water District, local quarries, golf courses, and citrus grove irrigators using local water sources. SAWCo has been 
proactive about moving forward with the CIP from the previous Water Master Plan for the domestic and irrigation 
water systems. Additionally, SAWCo is currently creating a new Geographical Information System (GIS) database 
with new information (e.g. age, material, size, maintenance history, etc.) that will allow for improved master planning 
and capital facility replacement planning. Therefore, SAWCo is seeking to update the Water Master Plan to support 
capital planning and asset management programs considering the following factors that were not included in the 
previous Water Master Plan analysis:

• Like that of all water agencies, SAWCo’s
infrastructure has continued to age, and SAWCo needs
to plan for future investments to rehabilitate and replace
infrastructure as it reaches the end of its useful life. The
new GIS can aid in the creation of a comprehensive
asset database and Asset Management Program.

• SAWCo relies entirely on local water sources that
are vulnerable to climate change, natural disasters, and
other uncertainties and risks. A source risk analysis
is needed to understand supply resilience and what
projects are needed to maintain local supply and keep
the San Antonio Tunnel operational to meet annual
entitlement for shareholders.
• SAWCo is looking for ways to optimize the domestic
and irrigation systems and maintain high levels of service

This set of challenges requires an updated Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program to 
provide a complete evaluation of the SAWCo water systems and produce a comprehensive list of improvements needed 
to maintain safe and reliable water service into the future.

KEY SUCCESS FACTOR WSC BENEFIT

Prioritize projects that 
reduce risk and promote 
resilience for supply sources 

Our expert team of engineers and planners will evaluate future supply scenarios 
including loss of supply from the San Antonio Tunnel and alternative supply 
outlooks while understanding the risks and uncertainties associated with climate 
change, future regulations, and natural disasters.

Produce a Comprehensive 
Asset Management Program 
for continued reliable 
system operation

We will apply proven desktop tools combined with system maintenance best 
practices to develop an asset database and a comprehensive list of replacement 
and rehabilitation needs over the next 10 years. We understand your system 
through our development of the GIS database and review of related asset data. 

Deliver a practical and 
defensible Water Master 
Plan that provides a 
roadmap for the future. 

The Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program will 
guide SAWCo’s annual planning and rate structure for the next 5 to 10 years. The 
Water Master Plan will need to be an adaptable guide with defensible projects to 
support SAWCo’s financial planning and infrastructure management efforts.

as future demands come online, projects are constructed, 
and supply sources change due to local conditions. 
With well calibrated hydraulic models, SAWCo can 
run “what-if” scenarios to evaluate future changes in 
the systems and predict outcomes in the models prior 
to making changes in the field. The new GIS data can 
be used to build more accurate and detailed hydraulic 
models, thereby increasing confidence in model results.

• SAWCo needs a long-term and defensible Asset
Management Program that can be used for annual
planning and support any needed rate changes. Careful
prioritization will give SAWCo a clear path for which
projects to start first. The Water Master Plan needs
to provide the “why” necessary in justifying capital
improvement projects and rate setting.

KE Y OPPORTUNITIES
Through our partnership and previous work with SAWCo, we have identified several Key Success Factors that we 
believe will maximize the value of the Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program.



10  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

TASK 1 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT
KEY STAFF – KIRSTEN PLONKA, JEROEN OLTHOF, LAINE CARLSON: DURATION – 12 MONTHS 

WORK PRODUCTS: Project Administration Plan (updated monthly), decision logs, meeting agendas, and minutes.
REQUIRED INPUT FROM SAWCO: Monthly check-in calls with SAWCo Project Manager and scheduling for 
meetings.
SUMMARY OF WORK: 
Following the Notice to Proceed, WSC will prepare a Project Administration Plan (PAP) template including a project 
schedule, a work breakdown structure with budgets for each task and subtask, a data request register, and a 
decision log. A draft version will be submitted prior to the project kickoff meeting, where any comments on the 
template will be discussed and resolved. The kickoff meeting will be used to establish key success factors. The 
PAP will be updated monthly and provided to the SAWCo Project Manager ahead of a monthly check-in meeting. 
QA/QC reviews will be conducted by experienced WSC staff on all work products throughout the duration of the 
project.
UNIQUE APPROACH:
Monthly Meetings with Documentation Avoids Miscommunications. WSC has developed a unique monthly report 
template that effectively serves as the PAP, and has been proven to be successful in achieving clients’ key success 
factors within the contractual budget and schedule. The two-page report summarizes all outstanding action items 
(including data requests), spending to date and estimates to complete each task and subtask, a summary of work 
completed in the previous month and of work to come in the next month, and an agenda of discussion items. A 
draft report is provided ahead of each monthly meeting to serve as an agenda, and any updates or key decisions are 
documented immediately afterwards in a final report. A living decision log and updated schedule will be attached to 
the PAP report. Kirsten Plonka used this approach to successfully manage the Big Bear Community Services District 
Water Master Plan, and the project was completed under the original budget.
Continuous Quality Control Engages the Right Reviews at the Right Times. WSC’s QA/QC lead, Jeroen Olthof, 
is an experienced water master planner who will oversee a combination of working sessions, modeling checks, 
technical editing, formatting, and readability reviews to engage different levels of review throughout the process. 
Reviews include high-level working sessions focused on overall strategy and identification of innovative approaches, 
and detailed reviews are conducted on calculations, drawings, cost estimating, and technical writing to avoid errors.

TASK 2 – DATA GATHERING AND SYSTEM 
EVALUATION CRITERIA
KEY STAFF – KIRSTEN PLONKA, HEATHER FREED: DURATION – 2 
MONTHS 

WORK PRODUCTS: Data request log, kickoff meeting agenda 
and minutes, and design and evaluation criteria.
REQUIRED INPUT FROM SAWCO: Assistance in gathering and 
providing data.
SUMMARY OF WORK: 
In parallel with the development of the PAP template, as 
described in Task 1, WSC will prepare a preliminary data request 
for review and discussion at a kickoff meeting with SAWCo staff. 
Interviews with SAWCo employees will be conducted to identify 
operational status, settings, and any known deficiencies in the 
system, and preferred system evaluation criteria that are not 
dictated by current regulatory requirements.

p r o j e c t  a p p r o a c h

WSC will actively engage key staff in the master 
planning process through workshops, interviews, and 
review of draft recommendations. Leveraging their 
experience and knowledge of the water system will 
result in the development of a valuable and realistic 
Asset Management Program.



11  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

UNIQUE APPROACH:
Focused Data Gathering. WSC is currently working with SAWCo to create a user-friendly GIS mapping interface 
and a GIS database tied to SAWCo’s asset management data. WSC is very familiar with SAWCo’s systems and can 
help to identify and clarify critical data that needs to be field verified. This knowledge will allow for efficient use of 
SAWCo staff time during data collection. WSC built the GIS database with modeling in mind to minimize the need 
for connectivity updates during model construction.
Establish Evaluation Criteria. WSC will leverage evaluation criteria used in the previous Water Master Plan and will 
update criteria to meet current regulatory requirements and generally accepted engineering standards. We can use 
our knowledge of SAWCo’s system to provide a recommendation for evaluation criteria not subject to regulations 
that is tailored to SAWCo’s needs while incorporating your design and construction standards.
Capture Staff Knowledge. Nobody knows your system like you do. SAWCo managers and operators have the 
best knowledge of the current condition of the various water system facilities and specific problem areas that 
should be prioritized to minimize service interruptions and costly repairs. Some of this knowledge may not be well 
documented, so it is critical to actively engage key operators in the master planning process through workshops, 
interviews, and review of draft recommendations. Leveraging their experience and knowledge of the water system 
will contribute to the development of a valuable and realistic CIP. WSC has an established relationship with SAWCo 
staff making this a seamless part of the water master plan process.

TASK 3 – CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
KEY STAFF – KIRSTEN PLONKA, SPENCER WATERMAN, HEATHER FREED: DURATION – 4 MONTHS 

WORK PRODUCTS: Fire-Flow Testing Plan, calibrated hydraulic model, model calibration report, and list of 
recommended capital projects and cost estimates.
REQUIRED INPUT FROM SAWCO: Review of 
Fire-Flow Testing Plan, field verification of hydrant 
locations, and assistance in operating hydrants during 
model verification. Review and input on recommended 
capital projects.
SUMMARY OF WORK: 
WSC will review and update the existing domestic 
water system hydraulic model, or develop a new model, 
as discussed below. WSC will create a new irrigation 
system hydraulic model, based on SAWCo-provided 
data described in Task 2, using Innovyze’s InfoWater 
software program. Demand scenarios for each model 
will be created for average and maximum day and 
minimum and peak hour using diurnal curves, peaking 
factors, and water meter billing information. Demand 
sets will also be projected over the next 10 years 
based on system growth and planned developments. 
A Fire Flow Testing Plan will be developed identifying 
locations for fire flow and pump tests to target critical 
areas of the two distribution systems. WSC will 
work with SAWCo staff to conduct field testing and 
compare collected data to model results. Pump curves and pipeline friction factor assumptions will be adjusted in 
the models with a calibration target of model results within 10 percent of observed values. SCADA data will be 
used to calibrate the Extended Period Simulation (EPS). If any areas are encountered where calibration cannot be 
achieved through reasonable adjustments to the models, WSC will provide lists of possible partially closed valves 
or other potential causes for field crews to investigate further. A model calibration technical memorandum will be 
prepared, and calibration results will be presented during a model review workshop.

Data collected during hydrant testing with SAWCo staff and SCADA 
records will be used to calibrate the hydraulic models under steady 
state and EPS conditions. WSC will document the calibration process 
for SAWCo review resulting in models with a high level of confidence.



12  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

The hydraulic models will be used to evaluate the capacity of the domestic and irrigation systems under peak hour 
demands and during a fire occurring with maximum day demands, and any deficiencies will be identified. Current 
and future demand sets will be applied. System improvement recommendations will be developed using model 
results and SAWCo input. WSC will prepare planning level costs for each recommended project.
UNIQUE APPROACH: 
A New Model Linked to GIS will Simplify Future Model Updates. The existing domestic system model was built 
using older CAD data and does not align with the recently constructed GIS database. WSC can create a new 
domestic system hydraulic model that is linked to the new GIS data. Benefits of creating a new model based on 
the GIS data include a more accurate representation of the system and reduced effort for future model updates 
through the InfoWater GIS Gateway Tool. Much of the information stored in the existing model, including tank 
operating levels, pump curves and operating controls, and valve settings can be extracted and easily transferred 
into a new GIS-based model.
Construct the Domestic and Irrigation Systems 
within the Same Model for Continuity. Because the 
domestic and irrigation systems are not connected, 
the two models can be built in separate model 
databases. However, if SAWCo would prefer to 
maintain the hydraulic models in a single database, 
both models can be built in the same file and run 
simultaneously, or query sets used to toggle on and 
off each system so they run independently. WSC 
recently built the Ojai System and Casitas Water 
System hydraulic model within the same database 
with similar functionality. We look forward to working 
with you to determine the best strategies for model 
development to fit SAWCo’s needs.
Preliminary Calibration for Targeted Fire Flow 
Testing. WSC will conduct an initial calibration of 
the models using SCADA data. Results will be used 
to help identify hydrant locations for field testing, 
and a draft hydrant testing plan will be developed 
incorporating industry best practices. WSC will 
then meet with field staff to discuss and confirm the 
timing and locations of all tests to be performed and 
methodology used. Optimizing the field testing plan 
with operations input will allow WSC to calibrate the 
model while avoiding significant burdens on field staff 
time.
Identify System Modification to Improve Resiliency and Optimize Operations: The models will be set up to allow 
SAWCo to run “what if” scenarios as supply and storage alternatives are developed in the future. Operational 
efficiencies will be analyzed to determine if existing pressure zone boundaries are adequate, and if pressure-reducing 
valves or variable frequency drives can improve the level of service and/or save energy. Additional scenarios with 
increased system looping will also be evaluated to reduce system vulnerabilities and improve resiliency. By running 
those scenarios and fully flexing the “what if” scenarios, WSC can partner with SAWCo to identify improvements 
that optimize the systems and reduce energy consumption, while protecting high water quality and reliability. 
WSC can use the hydraulic models in conjunction with the condition-based replacement plan to assess the best 
combination of strategies to improve system resiliency and maximize return on financial investment in the systems. 
WSC’s scope includes modeling up to three “what-if” scenarios to improve resiliency and system operations, and we 
look forward to working with SAWCo to determine the best scenarios for SAWCo’s needs. 

SAWCo’s new GIS database, shown as the blue pipes, was 
superimposed with the existing domestic system model, shown as 
the red pipes. There are several discrepancies between the two data 
sets. WSC recommends constructing a new domestic system model 
based on the more accurate GIS data. This will also benefit SAWCo 
in the long term with easy future model updates. 



13  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

TASK 4 – CAPITAL REPLACEMENT PROGRAM
KEY STAFF – KIRSTEN PLONKA, CHRISTOPHER DEITER, HEATHER FREED, AARON MORLAND: DURATION – 3 MONTHS 

WORK PRODUCTS: Asset database and long-term replacement needs projection for pipes, storage tanks, pumps, 
wells, and pressure reducing valves.
REQUIRED INPUT FROM SAWCO: Review of recommendations and discussion.
SUMMARY OF WORK: 
A GIS-based asset database will be developed to track system assets including pipes, storage tanks, pumps, wells, 
and pressure reducing valves. Remaining useful life for SAWCo assets will be evaluated, and projected rehabilitation 
and replacement needs will be provided along with cost estimates. 
UNIQUE APPROACH: 
WSC understands the importance of establishing a routine replacement program for aging assets so that they 
can be replaced proactively to avoid accumulating a backlog of replacement needs that could lead to service 
interruptions and/or sudden and significant financial impacts to customers. To help SAWCo establish an appropriate 
rate of replacement, WSC has developed a long-term asset replacement tool that analyzes the distribution system 
facilities age and expected useful life to quantify the replacement liability facing SAWCo. An example of this tool’s 
output shown below uses SAWCo’s input on the expected useful life of pipe material in your service area and 
evaluates how many feet of pipe will need to be replaced on an average annual basis over the next 50+ years to 
maintain the distribution system in safe and reliable operating condition.

WSC will prepare a long-term replacement 
needs projection for SAWCo’s pipelines 
based on pipe age and material to 
help establish defensible long-term 
rehabilitation rates to maintain the system 
in its current condition.  A similar approach   
could be used to develop replacement 
rates for tanks, pumps, wells, and pressure 
reducing valves. We will seek input from 
SAWCo staff on which projects should be 
prioritized to develop a realistic and flexible 
Asset Management Program.

TASK 5 – MASTER PLAN AND FACILITY ASSET MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
KEY STAFF – KIRSTEN PLONKA, HEATHER FREED, AARON MORLAND: DURATION – 4 MONTHS 

WORK PRODUCTS: Draft and Final Master Plans, asset database, calibrated hydraulic models, and GIS shapefiles.
REQUIRED INPUT FROM SAWCO: Review of draft and final reports.
SUMMARY OF WORK: 
WSC will develop a yearly asset management budget that encompasses all system assets. WSC will work with 
SAWCo to compare recommended the annual asset management budget to the available asset management budget 
based on SAWCo’s revenue and operating expenses. To the extent possible, the team will reconcile the difference 
between the recommended annual spending limit and the available spending limit to develop a 5-year Capital 
Replacement Program.  
The Program will prioritize identified capital projects based on a ranking and review process that includes like facilities 
and recommended construction dates. Projects will include existing capacity and level of service deficiencies, 
abandonments, repairs or replacements at end of useful service life, and future capacity deficiencies caused by 
growth. Based on this prioritization, WSC will develop a 10-year Capital Replacement Prioritization List.



14  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

A draft Water Master Plan will be prepared summarizing the results of Tasks 2 through 6. Review comments will be 
compiled into a table, with preliminary responses provided. WSC will lead a review meeting to discuss and resolve 
comments. Resolution of comments will be addressed, and a Final Water Master Plan will be prepared, along with 
final versions of the condition assessment database. 
UNIQUE APPROACH:
Easy to Read Reports with Sufficient Data to Support Projects. WSC prides ourselves on easy to read reports 
that allow readers to quickly comprehend the key information that supports the planning process. Information is 
conveyed in clear charts, figures, and tables to the maximum extent possible. Each graphic must be sufficiently clear 
to stand alone without excessive explanation, allowing the Master Plan to serve as an ongoing public outreach tool 
for communicating SAWCo activities.
Rip and Run Sheets. WSC will create 
individual “Rip and Run” project sheets for 
the first $10 million in projects identified in 
the CIP.  These project sheets will include 
essential information on each of the proposed 
projects.  WSC has used these sheets 
in several recent CIPs and management, 
engineering and operations staff alike have 
expressed their appreciation for this ready 
and useful reference.  The figure provides 
an example of how WSC recommends the 
project sheets of the CIP be presented.
WSC has developed a database-driven tool 
to cost-effectively prepare these resources. 
Each “Rip and Run” sheet includes a 
description of the project, an estimated 
capital cost, and a map showing the project 
location. Because the cost estimates are 
prepared directly within the tool database, 
there is minimal need for re-entry of 
information or potential transcription errors. 
The project description sheets are included 
in the appendix of the master plan and can 
be used to initiate pre-design for selected 
improvements.

WSC’s database-driven approach allows efficient production of “Rip 
and Run” sheets for each CIP project that clearly and concisely present 
important project information.  They will include capacity triggers for 
relevant projects to enable SAWCo to adaptively manage the CIP and 
construct facilities as they are needed, rather than on a set timeline.

TASK 6 – SOURCE WATER LOSS- RISK REVIEW
KEY STAFF – KIRSTEN PLONKA, HEATHER FREED, HALEY LEHMAN: DURATION – 2 MONTHS 

WORK PRODUCTS: Prioritized list of supply source risks and uncertainties, results of alternative supply scenarios, 
and supply source recommendations. 
REQUIRED INPUT FROM SAWCO: Review of recommendations and discussion.
SUMMARY OF WORK: 
WSC will define and prioritize risks and uncertainties that may affect SAWCo’s water supply sources, including but 
not limited to climate change related rain and temperature changes, water quality degradation, wildfires, earthquakes, 
and regulatory changes. The team will evaluate how high impact, high probability risks will affect future water 
source availability for SAWCo. Of particular concern is the vulnerability of the San Antonio Tunnel to these risks, as 
this is SAWCo’s major supply source with significant capacity. Considering supply risks, WSC will develop alternative 
supply scenarios where SAWCo can continue to provide a full yearly entitlement to its shareholders, including but 
not limited to: (1) Baseline, do nothing scenario, (2) fortify existing supply sources, (3) develop a conjunctive-use 
program in one or more groundwater basins, and (4) develop an alternative water supply source.



15  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

UNIQUE APPROACH: 
Optional Task: Inspection and Condition-Based Recommendations for the San Antonio Tunnel. 
SAWCo’s San Antonio Tunnel is a critical supply source that provides a significant portion of SAWCo’s water. The 
tunnel is over 100 years old, and it may require maintenance in the near term to continue providing reliable high 
quality water to SAWCo. We recommend working with a geotechnical engineer to perform an in-depth data review 
and inspection of the tunnel and develop a condition-based rehabilitation plan if the analysis shows the tunnel is 
the most vulnerable supply source. We can work with SAWCo to develop the scope for this task if it is justified 
from the alternatives analysis. 
Optional Task: Analysis on Re-establishing a Met Connection. 
District Staff have indicated that SAWCo may have had a connection to Metropolitan Water District (MWD) in the 
past. Since SAWCo does not have current records of the connection, WSC can research the past connection in 
regards to location and supply options if it was reestablished as a supply source. Currently, portions of SAWCo’s 
irrigation system runs parallel to MWD’s raw water Rialto Pipeline, where a connection can be made to supplement 
non-potable demands. Additionally, potable imported water from MWD may be available through the Agua de 
Lejos Water Treatment Plant owned by Water Facilities Authority or through an exchange with one of its member 
agencies.  

Optional Task: America’s Water Infrastructure Act
KEY STAFF – KIRSTEN PLONKA, HEATHER FREED, HALEY LEHMAN: DURATION – 12 MONTHS 

WORK PRODUCTS: Workshop agenda and minutes, Risk and Resilience Assessment, Emergency Response Plan
REQUIRED INPUT FROM SAWCO: Participation in workshops. 
SUMMARY OF WORK: 
On October 23, 2018, America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) was signed into law. AWIA Section 2013 requires 
community (drinking) water systems serving more than 3,300 people to develop or update risk and resilience 
assessments (RRA) and emergency response plans (ERP). The law specifies the components that the RRAs and ERPs 
must address and establishes deadlines by which water systems must certify completion of the RRA and ERP to the 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). Because SAWCo serves a population greater than 3,301, the RRA 
deadline is June 30, 2021, and the ERP deadline is six months after RRA submission, but no later than December 
30, 2021. 
Kirsten is one of four AWWA certified Utility Risk and Resilience engineers at WSC. The team's training and 
experience enables them to provide a streamlined process, including combining meetings to minimize staff time 
and costs, and simplifying the gap analysis portion of the project by providing information requests early. Kirsten 
is managing two AWIA projects and is dedicated to supporting clients through the process with minimal effort 
required by staff.
Typically, the AWIA process begins with an analysis of SAWCo’s existing documentation for completeness, accuracy, 
and applicability to the current AWIA standards. WSC can significantly reduce the time required to perform this 
task by using the data collected in Task 2 above. 
Additionally, Task 6 touches on many of the areas required by AWIA. This means that WSC can elaborate upon the 
work completed in that task to perform the RRA in accordance with AWIA requirements. 
Upon completion of the RRA, WSC will prepare the ERP. Development of the ERP will be tailored to SAWCo’s 
needs, but also aligned with local and state partners’ existing plans. This effort will provide a valuable tool for 
ongoing emergency planning as well as meet the EPA’s AWIA requirement.



16  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Board Approval 0 days Tue 3/17/20 Tue 3/17/20
2 Notice to Proceed 0 days Mon 3/30/20 Mon 3/30/20
3 Task 1:  Project Management 458 days Tue 3/31/20 Thu 12/30/21
4 Project Administration 458 days Tue 3/31/20 Thu 12/30/21
5 Kickoff Meeting 0 days Mon 4/13/20 Mon 4/13/20
6 QA/QC 458 days Tue 3/31/20 Thu 12/30/21
7 Task 2:  Data Gathering and Water System Evaluation 30 days Tue 4/14/20 Mon 5/25/20
8 Data Request/Review and District Time to Provide Data 20 days Tue 4/14/20 Mon 5/11/20
9 Establish Design and Evaluation Criteria 10 days Tue 5/12/20 Mon 5/25/20
10 Task 3:  Capital Improvement Plan 85 days Tue 5/26/20 Mon 9/21/20
11 Evaluate Existing and Projected Water Demands 20 days Tue 5/26/20 Mon 6/22/20
12 Water System Storage and Supply 10 days Tue 6/23/20 Mon 7/6/20
13 Domestic System Model Update and Calibration 40 days Tue 6/23/20 Mon 8/17/20
14 Irrigation System Model Update and Calibration 40 days Tue 6/23/20 Mon 8/17/20
15 Evaluation System Capacity and Develop Capital Improvements 25 days Tue 8/18/20 Mon 9/21/20
16 Task 4:  Capital Replacement Plan 45 days Tue 9/22/20 Mon 11/23/20
17 Develop Asset Database 20 days Tue 9/22/20 Mon 10/19/20
18 Evaluate R&R Needs and Replacement Projects 25 days Tue 10/20/20 Mon 11/23/20
19 Task 5. Master Plan and Facility Asset Management Program 95 days Tue 11/24/20 Mon 4/5/21
20 Prioritize Recommended Projects 5 days Tue 11/24/20 Mon 11/30/20
21 Develop Annual Spending Budgets 5 days Tue 12/1/20 Mon 12/7/20
22 Prepare 10‐Year Replacement List and 5‐Year Capital Replacement Program 10 days Tue 12/8/20 Mon 12/21/20
23 Prepare Rip and Run Sheets 10 days Tue 12/22/20 Mon 1/4/21
24 Draft Master Plan 30 days Tue 1/5/21 Mon 2/15/21
25 District Time to Review Draft Master Plan 20 days Tue 2/16/21 Mon 3/15/21
26 Final Master Plan 15 days Tue 3/16/21 Mon 4/5/21
27 Submit Final Master Plan 0 days Mon 4/5/21 Mon 4/5/21
28 Task 6:  Source Water Loss Risk Review 60 days Tue 9/22/20 Mon 12/14/20
29 Evaluate and Prioritize Supply Source Risks 20 days Tue 9/22/20 Mon 10/19/20
30 Evaluate Future Supply Alternatives 30 days Tue 10/20/20 Mon 11/30/20
31 Provide Supply Risk Recommendations 10 days Tue 12/1/20 Mon 12/14/20
32 OPTIONAL TASK: AWIA RISK ASSESSMENT 272 days Tue 12/15/20 Thu 12/30/21
33 AWIA Risk Assessment‐ Update Risk and Resilience Assessment (RRA) 135 days Tue 12/15/20 Mon 6/21/21
34 SAWCo RRA Due Date 0 days Wed 6/30/21 Wed 6/30/21
35 AWIA Risk Assessment‐ Emergency Response Plan 125 days Wed 6/30/21 Tue 12/21/21
36 SAWCO Emergency Response Plan Due Date (6 months after RRA is submitted)0 days Thu 12/30/21 Thu 12/30/21

3/17

3/30

4/13

4/5

6/30

12/30

M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J
Half 1, 2020 Half 2, 2020 Half 1, 2021 Half 2, 2021

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration‐only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start‐only

Finish‐only

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: SAWCo WMP
Date: Tue 2/4/20

SCHEDULE



p a s t  
p r o j e c t s



17  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

WSC developed the District’s 2017 Water Master Plan Update. WSC conducted site visits and captured operator 
knowledge to document and address the maintenance and replacement needs of the water system. WSC prepared 
a detailed analysis of the District’s infrastructure and conveyance system, considering age and expected useful life. 
By the completion of the master plan, a comprehensive CIP was developed that will be used to set annual budgets, 
establish rates and fees, prioritize improvements, and proactively prepare for the future needs of customers. 
This included showing how the projected funding needs could be translated into increase revenue requirements, 
connection fees, and rate adjustments.

WSC performed condition assessments on the District’s wells, reservoirs, and booster pump stations; and developed 
a flexible evaluation toolset to provide a defensible Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan for the water system 
facilities. WSC recommended an approach for rehabilitation and replacement of aging infrastructure and provided 
capital project budget recommendations and detailed project cost opinions. 

WSC completed the project under budget while maintaining consistent communication with the District throughout 
the project. WSC was flexible on scope to meet the District's needs, which included expanding their CIP from 10 
years to 20 years to meet annual spending goals and recommending a portion of the scope which could be repeated 
on future projects to save the District money. 

Big Bear City Community Services District 2018 Water Master Plan Update
Hydraulic Model Development

5/25/2018 Page 6 of 15
BBCCSD_Hydraulic Model Dev. TM.docx

Figure 2. Location of Hydrant Flow Tests

Demand Projections 

2018 Water Master Plan Update │ 4-2

Figure 4-1. Historic Consumption, Non-Revenue Water, and Total Demand 

In order to evaluate BBCCSD’s water distribution system, the location and quantities of water demands 
must be known and modeled. Spatially allocated demands were established based on historical annual 
water-customer consumption and production data from BBCCSD records and the 2015 UWMP, as well 
as GIS parcel data. Figure 4-3 includes a map of spatially allocated customer demand, with the dots sized 
by water-demand volume. For more information on how demands were spatially allocated throughout 
the distribution system, see Appendix A:  Evaluation Criteria and Demand Allocation Technical 
Memorandum. 

The service area experiences an influx of part-time population and vacationers enjoying the summer and 
winter recreational facilities within and adjacent to the service area. Due to the recreational nature of 
the Big Bear City economy, occupancy within the service area fluctuates seasonally, typically peaking in 
the summer and falling to the lowest level during the fall and spring between the summer and winter 
tourist seasons. Big Bear City has the potential to experience large demand changes if full-time 
occupancy increases, but it is expected that current full-time occupancy will remain steady in the future. 
Table 4-1 includes the monthly peaking factors compared to the average annual demand developed 
from seasonal demand data from 2012-2017. Figure 4-2 displays the average seasonal demand 
fluctuation compared to the average monthly demand in 2017. 

Table 4-1. Monthly Production Peaking Factors 
Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 
Peaking Factor to 
Annual Average 
Demand 

0.81 0.73 0.70 0.86 1.15 1.43 1.38 1.30 1.18 0.95 0.71 0.77 

1,233 1,224
1,102

1,162
1,101 1,126

1,238
1,163 1,163

1,054 1,054 1,057 1,100
1,019

940 949 985

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

W
at

er
 D

em
an

d 
(A

FY
)

Year
Water Consumption (AFY) Non-Revenue Water (AFY)

WATER MAS TER PL AN AND CONDITION ASSESSMENT 
BIG BEAR CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, BIG BEAR, CA 

OWNER’S REFERENCE: 
Mr. Jerry Griffith, PE 
Water Department Superintendent 
(909) 584-4008
PROJECT COSTS: 
$183,584
PROJECT SIZE: 
Big Bear City Community Services District 
(BBCCSD) owns and operates Big Bear 
City’s potable water system that serves 
approximately 6,100 residential and 
commercial connections within the City 
through a network of 82 miles of water 
distribution and transmission mains, six 
booster stations, 11 vertical wells, two 
natural springs, two slant wells, and four 
storage reservoirs—all supplied by local 
groundwater.
PROJECT TEAM: 
Kirsten Plonka (Project Manager), Jeroen 
Olthof (QA/QC), Heather Freed (Project 
Engineer), Spencer Waterman (Supply and 
Demand)



18  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

WSC is developing a Waster Master Plan Update to address the District’s aging infrastructure needs and help 
managers plan for future investments to rehabilitate and replace infrastructure as it reaches the end of its useful 
life. WSC is revising the District’s CIP with updated cost estimates to aid with prioritizing improvements. The CIP is 
designed to provide flexibility for growth while clearly defining improvements and the cost to provide the desired 
level of service. The update includes developing an accurate hydraulic model of the distribution system. 

WSC is conducted a seismic risk assessment of the existing water system and preparing a seismic mitigation plan 
encompassing a 50-year planning horizon. WSC identified that the District was vulnerable to seismic outages, 
contamination, and potential curtailments within the Clackamas River, which serves as the District's sole supply 
source. WSC facilitated a collaborative approach with neighboring agencies to identify emergency interconnections 
that will provide access to Bull Run and groundwater supply alternatives. 

WSC prepared conceptual designs for infrastructure facilities required for each alternative. Conceptual designs 
include approximate extents for pipeline upsizing or new pipeline installations, pumping head requirements, pressure 
control valves, and metering required. WSC developed planning level capital and annual operating costs for each 
alternative, and incorporated them into the CIP analysis. WSC provided recommendations for the District to pursue 
an emergency intertie and is preparing an Emergency Supply Chapter to be included in the Water Master Plan. 

3Q

3Q

3Q

UTUT

UTUT

South Fork
Water Board

North Clackamas
County Water
Commission

Clackamas
River
Water

Content may not reflect National Geographic's current map policy. Sources:
National Geographic, Esri, DeLorme, HERE, UNEP-WCMC, USGS, NASA, ESA,
METI, NRCAN, GEBCO, NOAA, increment P Corp.

Legend
Repair Rate (Repairs/1,000 FT)

0 to 1.5

1.5 to 3

Greater than 3

Peak Ground Velocity

7-9  in/s

10-12  in/s

13-16  in/s

± 0 0.50.25
MilesOak Lodge Water Services District

Water Master Plan Update
Distribution System

WATER MAS TER PL AN AND RISK ASSESSMENT 
OAK LODGE WATER SERVICES DISTRICT, OAK GROVE, OR

OWNER’S REFERENCE: 
Mr. Jason Rice, PE, 
District Engineer 
(503) 353-4202
PROJECT COSTS:
$225,784
PROJECT SIZE:
The District provides water to approximately 28,000 residents 
and commercial customers in unincorporated western Clackamas 
County. The District service area covers more than 6.4 square 
miles. The water system facilities include existing supply sources, 
interconnections, pressure zones, storage reservoirs, pump 
stations, distribution piping, pressure reducing valve stations, 
and supervisory control and data acquisition.
PROJECT TEAM: 
Kirsten Plonka (Project Engineer), Jeroen Olthof (Hydraulic 
Modeling Lead), Heather Freed (Modeling), Spencer Waterman 
(Supply and Demand)



19  |  Comprehensive System Master Plan and Asset Management Program | San Antonio Water Company

WSC prepared a Water Master Plan Update for the City that addressed both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and 
rehabilitation and replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure. The plan presented planning-level estimates of 
required capital spending each year based on system inventory and expected remaining useful life values. 

The Master Plan resulted in a comprehensive 10-year CIP that clearly identifies funding requirements for 
infrastructure upgrades. The projects were identified based on hydraulic capacity and long-term replacement 
needs, and were phased so that the total annual spending matched the City's targets. WSC prepared a summary 
of expected spending needs for capacity-driven improvements and a condition-driven asset management strategy.

WSC's team used the updated hydraulic model, with a close linkage to the District's GIS database, to identify 
potential capacity constraints and evaluate potential improvement alternatives.  WSC continues to provide water 
distribution system hydraulic model updates, calibration, and maintenance services to the City on an as-needed 
basis.

WSC has also been selected to perform an AWIA RRA and ERP. Subtasks include gap analysis, asset and threat 
characterization, consequence analysis, and a presentation to the Board of Directors. WSC has defined clear 
expectations and a realistic schedule to meet the mandated RRA and ERP deadlines.

water mas ter pl an 
CITY OF VICTORVILLE, VICTORVILLE, CA

OWNER’S REFERENCE: 
Mr. Victor Fajardo, PE 
Senior Civil Engineer 
(760) 243-6311
PROJECT COSTS:
$396,055
PROJECT SIZE:
The District owns and operates a potable water system that includes 
approximately 700 miles of pipeline, 33 active groundwater wells, 
four pump stations, 24 active storage reservoirs and 25 active 
pressure reducing valve stations within an 85-square mile service 
area.
PROJECT TEAM: 
Laine Carlson (Project Manager), Kirsten Plonka (Technical Support), 
Christopher Deiter (QA/QC), Jeroen Olthof (Hydraulic Modeling 
Lead), Spencer Waterman (Supply and Demand), Aaron Morland 
(Engineering support)



a p p e n d i x  a : 
r e s u m e s



   Kirsten L. Plonka, PE 

Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, California 
Polytechnic State University, 
San Luis Obispo 
MS, Management, Colorado 
State University, Global Campus 
(in-process) 
MS, Organizational Leadership, 
Colorado State University, 
Global Campus (in-process) 

Professional Registrations 
Professional Engineer – Civil, 
California, No. C70746 

Professional Affiliations / 
Certifications 
American Society of Engineers  
American Public Works 
Association 
Engineers Without Borders 
(former Southern California State 
Representative) 
Potable Reuse Advisory 
Committee, San Diego County 
Water Authority 
Advanced Water & Wastewater 
Modeling Certified by Innovyze & 
Bently 

Publications 

“Health Effects Study on Potable 
Water Reuse”, A&WMA 

Industry Recognition 

2013 Outstanding Water Project 
of the Year from Region 9 
ASCE, Award of merit for San 
Diego Section ASCE for Pala 
Mesa Tank 

Professional Experience 

Ms. Plonka has more than 17 years of experience serving as both a consultant and District 
Engineer. Her planning experience includes effective use of existing data, understanding of 
future demands and impacts on water systems, hydraulic modeling, asset management 
programs, risk assessments, and CIP development. She is familiar with the region, SAWCo 
staff, and stakeholders through her work on the GIS geodatabase and system mapping. Her 
extensive experience in the public sector allows her to approach projects from an owner’s 
perspective and plan and design projects that are implementable and user-friendly.  
Professional Project Experience 

Water Master Plan and Condition Assessment, Big Bear City Community Services 
District, Big Bear City, CA. Project Manager. Conducted site visits and leveraged 
operator knowledge to document and address the maintenance and replacement needs of 
the current water system. Prepared detailed analysis of the District’s infrastructure and 
conveyance system, as well as considered age and useful life. By the completion of the 
master plan, a comprehensive CIP will be developed that will be used to set annual budgets, 
establish rates and fees, prioritize improvements, and proactively prepare for future needs. 

Water Master Plan Update, Oak Lodge Water Services District, Oak Grove, OR. 
Project Engineer. Preparing a Master Plan Update which will consider future water 
service commitments and build-out, including both area-specific water quality needs and 
system operations and maintenance priorities. WSC is conducted a seismic risk assessment 
on the existing water system and preparing a seismic mitigation plan encompassing a 50-
year planning horizon. The update includes development of an asset database to capture 
and track condition data for individual assets within the water system. The final update will 
include a capital improvement program.  

Water Master Plan and Condition-Based Assessment, Casitas Municipal Water 
District, Ojai, CA. Project Manager. Conducted a condition-based assessment and 
developed a Water Master Plan for the new owner of the Ojai water system. Tasks included 
developing opinions of probable cost for recommended projects, and evaluating production 
and consumption data to develop projections and recommend improvements necessary to 
maintain a safe and reliable level of service. Developed, calibrated, and utilized hydraulic 
model of the system in conjunction with GIS datasets to improve system operations and 
CIP development. Evaluated the capacity of the existing water system and identified 
improvements to meet demands, including fire flow, of the current and future population. 

Waster Master Plan Update, City of Pismo Beach, Pismo Beach, CA. Technical 
Advisor. Provided technical reviews for Master Plan Update that included the development 
of a CIP to support budget planning, adaptive management, and build scenarios for future 
growth and development. The update included creating a new hydraulic model consistent 
with the City’s GIS mapping to improve confidence in system changes and fire flows. The 
plan included a prioritized project list and detailed cost estimates to replace infrastructure. 

City of Victorville, 2018 Water Master Plan, Victorville, CA. Technical Advisor. 
Prepared a master plan to address both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and rehabilitation and 
replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure. The project included hydraulic modeling 
using InfoWater to evaluate capacity limitations, planning-level estimates of required capital 
spending each year based on system inventory and expected remaining useful life values, 
and a comprehensive 10-year Capital Improvement Plan. 



   Laine E. Carlson, PE 

Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, California 
State Polytechnic University, 
Pomona, CA 

Professional Registrations 
Professional Engineer - Civil, 
California, No. C72424  

Certifications 
SWRCB Registered T2 Water 
Operator #34907 
SWRCB Registered D2 Water 
Operator #41981 

Professional Affiliations 
American Water Works 
Association, Member  
California Water Environment 
Association, Member 

Professional Experience 
Mrs. Carlson has over 15 years of experience working for a public utility and as a consulting 
engineer, focusing on water, wastewater, and recycled water systems.  Her experience includes 
project management, construction administration, capital improvement planning, hydraulic 
analysis, water and wastewater master planning, pipeline design, pump station design and 
analysis, and water standard development. She has developed an intimate understanding of 
how a water and sewer utility operates and the challenges they face.  Her experience has 
enabled her to identify and analyze initial project concepts, prepare construction documents, 
and monitor construction of the project through completion. 

Representative Projects 

City of Victorville, 2018 Water Master Plan, Victorville, CA. Project Manager. Prepared 
a master plan to address both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and rehabilitation and 
replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure. The project included hydraulic modeling 
using InfoWater to evaluate capacity limitations, planning-level estimates of required capital 
spending each year based on system inventory and expected remaining useful life values, and 
a comprehensive 10-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

City of Pismo Beach, 2015 Water Master Plan & UWMP Update, Pismo Beach, CA. 
Deputy Project Manager.  Performed an update of the City of Pismo Beach 2004 Water 
Master Plan. Created and calibrated an all-pipes, spatially allocated demand hydraulic model 
of the City’s water distribution system using Bentley’s WaterGEMS software. Used the 
hydraulic model to evaluate capacity limitations for current and future buildout scenarios and 
opportunities to optimize operations. Developed condition based-replacement plans for aging 
infrastructure and an updated CIP project list to prepare the City for budget planning. 

San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District, 2015 Regional Urban Water 
Management Plan, San Bernardino, CA.  Project Manager. The 2015 Regional UWMP 
was developed with the participation of 10 local agencies. For the 2015 Regional UWMP, 
WSC collaborated and collected data from all agencies to update water supply and demand 
projections through 2035 based on changes since the 2010 UWMP, and compliance with SB7. 
Additionally, new requirements were addressed, such as distribution system losses reporting 
as part of demand and digital submittal through DWR’s new templates and submittal database. 

City of Victorville, On-Call Water Modeling, Victorville, CA. Project Manager. 
Providing staff support services for hydraulic water modeling and development planning. 
Converted the City’s existing hydraulic model to GIS based InfoWater and updated the model 
to include projects completed since it was developed in 2009.  Performing general model 
review and calibrating a previously un-calibrated portion of the model.  Providing on-call 
modeling analysis of the existing system to help the City make informed decisions regarding 
potential changes to the system.  Preparing Feasibility Studies and Water Supply Assessments 
as needed to support the City’s review and conditioning of proposed development projects. 

Chino Basin Program, Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Chino, CA. Pipeline Distribution 
System Lead. Leading the conveyance system portion of the preliminary design report for the 
Chino Basin Program which will create a new, drought-resistant supply to the region. Through 
effective partnerships with State Water Project Contractors, the California Department of 
Water Resources and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, the project will develop 
new water supplies that will be stored in the Chino Basin Water Bank for ecological benefit 
in the Bay-Delta watershed.  



 

   Jeroen Olthof, MS, MBA, PE 
 

  

Education 
MBA, USC 
MS, Civil Engineering, University 
of Washington 
BS, Civil Engineering, University 
of Colorado Boulder 

Professional Registrations 
Professional Engineer - Civil, 
California, No. C58597 
Professional Engineer – Civil, 
Oregon, No. C94671 

Articles 
San Diego’s Recipe for Overflow 
Reduction, Public Works, June, 
2004. 
Capacity Assurance Sets Stage 
for CMOM Success, 
Waterscapes, Vol. 13, No. 2, 
May, 2002 

Presentations 
Management of Sewers in 
Environmentally Sensitive Areas, 
ASCE Pipelines Conference, 
San Diego, CA 2004 
Lessons Learned in San Diego’s 
Collection System Assessment 
Program, Water Environment 
Federation (WEF) Collection 
Systems Conference, Austin, 
TX, June, 2003 
Automated Decision Tools for 
Sewer Collection System 
Assessment, California Water 
Environment Association 
Conference (CWEA), Ontario, 
CA, 2003 
Improved Collection System 
Management Using GIS, Water 
Environment Federation 
Technology and Exposition 
Conference (WEFTEC), 
Chicago, IL, October, 2002 
An Incremental Approach to GIS 
and Floodplain Mapping, 
Floodplain Management 
Association Conference, 
Sacramento, CA, September, 
2000 
A Hydrogen Sulfide Screening 
Tool Within GIS, WEFTEC, 

   
         

 

 
Professional Experience 

Mr. Olthof has more than 25 years of engineering experience. He is a nationally recognized 
expert in the application, adaptation, and use of databases, GIS, and modeling technology to 
solve problems related to water systems. His experience includes master planning, condition 
assessment, water supply and demand analysis, system optimization, and hydraulic modeling 
and analysis. He has completed more than 30 Master Plans and over 125 hydraulic modeling 
projects in California, including hydraulic modeling lead for the Ojai Water System Master 
Plan and the Casitas System Hydraulic Model. He has also developed condition assessment 
programs and decision algorithms to support capital improvement planning and maintenance 
optimization. 

Representative Projects 

Ojai Water System Master Plan and Condition-Based Assessment, Casitas Municipal 
Water District, Ojai, CA. Hydraulic Modeling Lead. Led the modeling portion of a 
condition-based assessment and Master Plan for the new owner of the Ojai water system. 
Tasks included developing, calibrating, and utilizing hydraulic model of the system in 
conjunction with GIS datasets to improve system operations and CIP development. 
Evaluating the capacity of the existing water system and identifying improvements to meet 
demands, including fire flow, of the current and future population. 

2018 Water Master Plan, City of Victorville, Victorville, CA. Hydraulic Analysis Lead. 
Preparing a master plan that will address both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and 
rehabilitation and replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure. The project includes 
hydraulic modeling using InfoWater to evaluate capacity limitations, planning-level 
estimates of required capital spending each year based on system inventory and expected 
remaining useful life values, and a comprehensive 10-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

Waster Master Plan and Condition Assessment, Big Bear City Community Services 
District Big Bear, CA. QA/QC. Provided oversight for the 2017 Water Master Plan Update 
and comprehensive CIP. Performed condition assessments on wells, reservoirs, and booster 
pump stations; and developed a flexible evaluation toolset that will provide a defensible 
Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan for their water system facilities. Recommended an 
approach for rehabilitation and replacement of aging infrastructure and provided capital 
project budget recommendations and detailed project cost opinions. The project was 
completed under budget while maintaining consistent communication with the District 
throughout the project. Expanded the CIP from 10 years to 20 years to meet annual spending 
goals and recommending a portion of the scope which could be repeated to save costs. 

Water Master Plan Update, Oak Lodge Water Services District, Oak Grove, OR. 
Hydraulic Modeling Lead. Preparing a Master Plan Update considers future water service 
commitments and build-out, including area-specific water quality needs and system 
operations and maintenance priorities. The project includes constructing a new model from 
the GIS database, hydrant testing, and calibration of the completed model prior to using it to 
identify and evaluate system improvements. Supply, demand, and storage data will be 
analyzed, projections developed, and recommendations made to address system deficiencies. 
The update includes development of an asset database to capture and track condition data for 
individual assets within the water system. The final update will include a CIP. 

 



   Heather Freed, PE, MS 

Education 
MS, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, Cal Poly, San Luis 
Obispo 
BS, Environmental Engineering, 
Cal Poly, San Luis Obispo  

Professional Registrations 
PE – Civil, CA, No. 89406 

Professional Experience 
Ms. Freed is a Professional Engineer specializing in water master planning and capital 
improvement development. She has experience evaluating various hydraulic measures 
including headloss through pipes, hydraulic jumps, and groundwater pumping.  Her 
knowledge also includes groundwater contamination, water chemistry and water quality 
measurements, physio-chemical and biological water and wastewater treatment, and climate 
change and energy intensity analysis. 

Representative Projects 

Water Master Plan Update, Oak Lodge Water Services District, Oak Grove, OR. Staff 
Engineer. Preparing a Master Plan Update which will consider future water service 
commitments and build-out, including both area-specific water quality needs and system 
operations and maintenance priorities. The project includes constructing a new model from 
the District’s GIS database, hydrant testing, and calibration of the completed model prior to 
using the model to identify and evaluate system improvements. Supply, demand, and storage 
data will be analyzed, projections developed, and recommendations made to address system 
deficiencies. The update includes development of an asset database to capture and track 
condition data for individual assets within the water system. The final update includes a CIP. 

Big Bear City Community Services District, 2017 Water Master Plan and Condition 
Assessment, Big Bear City, CA. Staff Engineer. Prepared a detailed analysis of the 
District’s infrastructure that will result in a Master Plan which includes a comprehensive 
Capital Improvement Program. Performed infrastructure condition assessments, developing 
a defensible Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan and identifying high-priority projects. 

Casitas Municipal Water District, Ojai System Condition Based Assessment and Water 
Master Plan, Ojai, CA. Staff Engineer. Conducted a condition-based assessment and 
developed a Water Master Plan for the new owner of the Ojai water system. Tasks included 
developing opinions of probable cost for recommended projects, and evaluating production 
and consumption data to develop projections and recommend improvements necessary to 
maintain a safe and reliable level of service. Developed, calibrated, and used hydraulic 
model of the system in conjunction with GIS datasets to improve system operations and CIP 
development. Evaluated the capacity of the existing water system and identified 
improvements to meet demands, including fire flow, of the current and future population. 

City of Pismo Beach, Water Master Plan Update, Pismo Beach, CA. Staff Engineer.  
Performed an update of the City of Pismo Beach 2004 Water Master Plan. Created and 
calibrated an all-pipes, spatially allocated demand hydraulic model of the City’s water 
distribution system using Bentley’s WaterGEMS software. Used the hydraulic model to 
evaluate capacity limitations for current and future buildout scenarios and opportunities to 
optimize operations. Developed condition based-replacement plans for aging infrastructure 
and an updated CIP project list to prepare the City for budget planning. 

California American Water, Monterey District, 2018 Comprehensive Planning Study 
and Condition Based Assessment, Monterey County, CA. Engineering Support. 
Updated the California American Water Monterey County water distribution system 
Comprehensive Planning Study. Built and calibrated a hydraulic model with over 600 miles 
of pipelines and 50 pressure zones to evaluate system capacity and operations. Evaluated 
system condition based on asset data and site inspection reports. Developed a comprehensive 
CIP list for future rate studies.   



   Antonia Estevez-Olea, PE, MS 

Education 
MS, Environmental 
Management, University of San 
Francisco, San Francisco 
BS, Environmental Engineering, 
California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo 

Professional Registrations 
Engineer in Training, No 150536 
PACP, MACP, & LACP, No. U-
0818-0703001316 

Professional Affiliations 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers (ASCE) Pipeline  
WateReuse 
Water Environment Research 
Federation (WERF) 

Publications 
Estevez-Olea, A. (2015). Life 
Cycle Assessment of Reclaimed 
Water for Potable and 
Nonpotable Reuse in California. 
(Master’s Project). University of 
San Francisco, San Francisco. 

Professional Experience 
Ms. Estevez-Olea is a professional engineer with over three years of experience in stormwater, 
wastewater, and recycled water, as well as water resource management. Her experience in 
water and wastewater asset management includes the development of a pipeline prioritization 
model to identify and prioritize water mains in need of rehabilitation for the California 
American Water Monterey County District. She has also supported two sewer rehabilitation 
projects for the City of Santa Barbara. She is PACP, MACP, and LACP certified, and is the 
upcoming treasurer of the ASCE Pipeline San Diego Chapter. 

Representative Projects 

California American Water Monterey County District, Comprehensive Planning Study 
(CPS) and Condition Based Assessment (CBA). Monterey, CA. Project Engineer. 
Assisted CAW with the development of the CPS and CBA reports by managing/compiling 
assets inventories and assessing site conditions and analyzing large datasets to evaluate 
customer and water demands and water supplies reliability. Developed the 2018 buried assets 
Pipeline Prioritization Model to identify and prioritize water mains in need of replacement. 

Replenish Big Bear. Big Bear, CA. Deputy Project Manager. Managing the Replenish Big 
Bear program by conducting program administration, coordinating with the project team to 
complete preliminary engineering for treatment upgrades and distributions lines. Leading the 
regulatory effort to obtain the necessary permits to implement project. Tracks program status, 
budget, and schedule.    

Big Bear City Community Service District (BBCCSD), Sugarpine Lateral Replacement. 
Big Bear, CA. Project Engineer. Coordinated the regulatory efforts to complete an 
emergency lateral replacement project in a streambed. Reviewed proposed rehabilitation 
strategies.  

City of Santa Barbara, Sewer Main Rehabilitation Projects. Santa Barbara, CA. Project 
Engineer. Assisted the City by conducting site visits, reviewing CCTV videos and 
maintenance history, and managing defect data to recommend rehabilitation strategies for their 
fiscal year 2018 and 2019 sewer main rehabilitation projects. Conducted vendor outreach to 
evaluate rehabilitation technologies to address site-specific issues. Provided support in the 
development of design plans and specifications.   

City of Oceanside, Local Limits and Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) Study. Oceanside, CA. 
Project Engineer. Supported the City with the development of a Technically-Based Local 
Limits (TBLL) report for their two wastewater treatment plants. Prepared a TDS Management 
Study to assist the City in evaluating potential impacts of future modifications to its water, 
wastewater and recycled water systems. Assed the feasibility of using an abandoned pipeline 
to rehabilitate for brine disposal.  

Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency (MRWPCA), Local Limits 
Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Monterey, CA. Project Engineer. Supported the Project 
Manager with data management for the 2016 Local Limits Evaluation by compiling and 
formatting local limits data (i.e., regulated and non-regulated dischargers, influent, treatment 
processes, effluent, and biosolids data). Reviewed the final local limits evaluation report and 
used the results to develop a monitoring plan for the new sources of influents that will enter 
the Regional Treatment Plant.  



   Spencer J. Waterman 

Education 
BS, City & Regional Planning, 
California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo 

Certifications 
American Water Works 
Association, California-Nevada 
Section, Water Use Efficiency 
Practitioner Grade 1, Certificate 
# 1714 

Professional Affiliations 
American Water Works 
Association, Member 

Professional Experience 
Mr. Waterman is an experienced planner who has completed more than 50 technical 
planning studies, including the supply and demand evaluation for Ojai Water System Master 
Plan. He has served in an integral role on over 15 master plans and is the lead author or 
technical advisor for more than 30 Urban Water Management Plans. He has experience 
utilizing GIS to spatially allocate water demands and develop maps, evaluating water supply 
scenarios, and providing water use efficiency and conservation services. 

Representative Projects 

San Antonio Water Company, System Mapping and GIS Database, Ontario, CA. 
Project Manager. WSC will deliver a cost-effective GIS database that is developed in a 
pragmatic way to consolidate multiple data sources into a comprehensive repository that can 
be leveraged for multiple every-day and long-term uses. The system map will be accessible to 
SAWCo staff to quickly look up system information, link to relevant data from other systems, 
and position the system map for updates that can be incorporated into a hydraulic water model 
for long-term master planning. 
City of Victorville, 2018 Water Master Plan, Victorville, CA. Staff Planner. Preparing a 
master plan that will address both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and rehabilitation and 
replacement needs driven by aging infrastructure. The project includes hydraulic modeling 
using InfoWater to evaluate capacity limitations, planning-level estimates of required capital 
spending each year based on system inventory and expected remaining useful life values, 
and a comprehensive 10-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

Water Master Plan Update, Oak Lodge Water Services District, Oak Grove, OR. 
Supply and Demand. Preparing a Master Plan Update which will consider future water 
service commitments and build-out, including both area-specific water quality needs and 
system operations and maintenance priorities. The project includes constructing a new model 
from the District’s GIS database, hydrant testing, and calibration of the completed model 
prior to using the model to identify and evaluate system improvements. Supply, demand, and 
storage data will be analyzed, projections developed, and recommendations made to address 
system deficiencies. The update includes development of an asset database to capture and 
track condition data for individual assets within the water system.  

Big Bear City Community Services District, 2017 Water Master Plan and Condition 
Assessment, Big Bear City, CA. Supply and Demand. Prepared a detailed analysis of the 
District’s infrastructure that will result in a Master Plan which includes a comprehensive 
Capital Improvement Program. Performed infrastructure condition assessments, developing 
a defensible Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan and identifying high-priority projects. 

Water Master Plan Update, City of Pismo Beach, Pismo Beach, CA. Supply and 
Demand. Developed demand factors using spatial allocation and evaluation criteria in 
support of the master plan. The update included a CIP to support budget planning, adaptive 
management, and build scenarios for future growth and development. The update also 
included creating a new hydraulic model consistent with the City’s GIS mapping to improve 
confidence in system changes and expected fire flows. 



Christopher Deiter, PE 

Education 
BS, Civil Engineering, California 
State Polytechnic University, 
Pomona, CA 

Professional Registrations 
Professional Engineer - Civil, 
California, No. 80618 

Professional Affiliations 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers, Member 
Inland Counties Water 
Association, Member 
American Water Works 
Association, Member 
WateReuse, Member 

Professional Experience 
Mr. Deiter has 10 years of experience in civil engineering specializing in water, recycled 
water, and wastewater systems and has 5 years of construction experience for various 
municipal water projects throughout the Southern California area. His engineering 
experience includes pipeline design, water storage reservoir design, water treatment system 
design, pump station analysis and design, hydraulic analysis, and water master planning.  Mr. 
Deiter’s experience allows him to proficiently identify and analyze initial project concepts, 
analyze solutions, prepare construction documents, and provide construction support 
activities to clients.    

Representative Projects 

City of Victorville, 2018 Water Master Plan, Victorville, CA. QA/QC. Prepared a master 
plan to address both hydraulic capacity deficiencies and rehabilitation and replacement needs 
driven by aging infrastructure. The project included hydraulic modeling using InfoWater to 
evaluate capacity limitations, planning-level estimates of required capital spending each year 
based on system inventory and expected remaining useful life values, and a comprehensive 
10-year Capital Improvement Plan. The projects were identified based on hydraulic capacity
and long-term replacement needs, and were phased so that the total annual spending matched
the City's targets.

Coachella Water Authority, Water Master Plan, City of Coachella, CA.  Mr. Deiter was 
in charge of the project preparing all master planning calculations, growth projections, water 
system analysis, H20Net water modeling, and CIP preparation. The water modeling included 
development of existing water system model from scratch to identify possible system 
deficiencies along with projected growth of the City’s water system which aids in future CIP 
planning.   

Big Bear Lake Department of Water and Power, Sawmill Well Pumping Plant, Big 
Bear, CA. Project includes well equipment and all related appurtenances for a 350 gpm 
well, including construction of a CMU building with a metal roof, all related site 
improvements, and installation of a 635 LF 6-inch water pipeline and electrical service 
connection.  Mr. Deiter is in responsible charge of all construction management services 
including contract management, progress payments, scheduling, submittal review and 
approval, and coordination with BBLDWP Inspectors.   

Eastern Municipal Water District, Watson Road/Juniper Flats Road Waterline, 
Menifee, CA.  Project consisted of approximately 6,500 linear feet of 24” and 4,500 linear 
feet of 18” CML&C steel waterline.  Mr. Deiter was responsible for utility research, 
alignment design, connection detail design, piping thickness calculations and drawing 
production utilizing three-dimensional design capabilities and AutoCAD Civil 3D.   

Coachella Water Authority, Supplemental Water Supply Program and Fee Study, City 
of Coachella, CA. Mr. Deiter was in responsible for the study. The Study investigated 
population projections and historical annual consumption factors, reviewed CWA’s water 
resources and CVWD agreements, calculated future annual consumption factors, and 
established the Supplemental Water Supply Charged based on land used for the City. 



Aaron Morland, EIT 

Education 
BS, Environmental Engineering, 
California Polytechnic University, 
San Luis Obispo, CA (In 
Progress, expected June 2019) 

Professional Registrations 
Engineer-in-Training - 
Environmental, California,  
No. 166372 

Professional Experience 
Aaron Morland is an Engineer-in-Training with environmental engineering experience 
focused on water systems, wastewater treatment systems, sewer hydraulic analysis and mater 
planning, distribution and collection system design, and funding support. Aaron has 
provided cost estimation services on several projects and has worked with team members on 
projects within the Santa Ana Watershed.  

Representative Projects 

Cayucos Sanitary District, 2017 Sewer System Management Plan Audit, Cayucos, CA. 
Staff Engineer. Audited the Cayucos Sanitary District Sewer System Management Plan 
(SSMP) for compliance with State and Regional Water Board Waste Discharge 
Requirements. Identified additional areas of the SSMP to update due to construction of a 
new Water Reclamation Facility. Drafted a Technical Memorandum to summarize the audit 
and provide guidelines for the District to update their SSMP.  

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency, Sewer System Management Plan Audit 
Workshop, Big Bear City, CA. Staff Engineer. Auditing the Big Bear Area Regional 
Wastewater Agency Sewer System Management Plan for compliance with State and 
Regional Water Board Waste Discharge Requirements. Preparing and presenting an 
interactive SSMP audit workshop to the Agency to identify deficiencies in the existing 
SSMP and effficiently gather operations information for the update. Leveraging our time 
with the Agency’s through the workshop to determine the most cost and time-efficient 
process to update the SSMP as a team.  

City of Paso Robles, Airport Area Infrastructure Improvements, Paso Robles, CA. 
Assistant Engineer. Assisted in the design of 7,500 feet of 12-inch and 16-inch water 
distribution piping, 5,100 feet of 16-inch recycled water distribution piping, 3,400 feet of 6-
inch sewer force main, and 8,200 feet of 8-inch to 12-inch sewer main to support future 
growth around the Paso Robles Airport. Designed segments of gravity sewer, developed cost 
opinions for sewer and water main replacements, discovered and minimized utilities 
conflicts, and located existing sewer laterals and water services for plan sets.  

City of Paso Robles, Main West Tank Design, Paso Robles, CA. Assistant Engineer. 
Assisted in the preliminary design of a 4 million-gallon (MG) partially buried pre-stressed 
concrete tank to replace the existing 4 MG reservoir that had reached the end of its useful 
life. Assisted in drafting the preliminary design report sections on the tank fill and outlet 
piping network, connections with the existing well field and distribution system, site 
security, and drainage. 

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency, Replenish Big Bear Lake Alternative 
Analysis, Big Bear City, CA. Assistant Engineer. Evaluated brine management solutions 
for waste brine from the reverse osmosis (RO) units at the proposed Replenish Big Bear 
recycled water facility. Calculated evaporation pond effectiveness, land requirements, 
conveyance feasibility, and cost opinions for ponds in the Big Bear Area and Lucerne 
Valley. Analyzed feasibility of using evaporation and crystallization on RO brine to achieve 
zero liquid discharge and reduce brine conveyance and disposal costs. 



Haley Lehman, CCST, AWIA 

Education 
BS, Mechanical Engineering, 
University of California, Merced 
Graduate Certificate, Project 
Management, Pennsylvania 
State – In Progress 
Certifications 
Level 1 ISA Certified Control 
System Technician  
America’s Water Infrastructure 
Act: EL265 - Utility Risk and 
Resilience Certificate Program 
Affiliations 
Project Management Institute, 
Member 
International Society of 
Automation, Member  
Institute of Electrical and 
Electronics Engineers, Member 
Women in Technology 
International, Member 
California Water Environment 
Association, Member 

Professional Experience 

Ms. Lehman is a Level 1 Certified Control System Technician with five years of experience 
developing and maintaining complex digital solutions for water and wastewater treatment, 
storage, and delivery systems. She is the lead researcher in WSC for America’s Water 
Infrastructure Act (AWIA) Section 2013 and has completed the AWIA EL265 – Utility Risk 
and Resilience Certificate Program. The certification provides a foundation for supporting 
water utilities’ development of an all-hazards approach to risk and resilience management. 
The Program included courses on Facilitating Compliance with America's Water 
Infrastructure Act of 2018, Security Practices for Operations and Management, Risk and 
Resilience of Water and Wastewater Systems, Emergency Planning, and Cybersecurity in 
the Water Sector. 

Representative Projects 

Risk and Resilience Assessment and Emergency Response Plan, Mesa Water District. 
Project Engineer. WSC has been selected to perform an AWIA RRA and ERP for Mesa 
Water District. Mesa Water serves a population greater than 100,000. Subtasks include gap 
analysis, asset and threat characterization, consequence analysis, and a presentation to the 
Board of Directors. WSC has defined clear expectations and a realistic schedule to meet the 
RRA and ERP deadlines.  

City of San Luis Obispo, SCADA System Evaluation, San Luis Obispo, CA. Control 
System Expert and Project Manager. Evaluated several SCADA System Platforms across 
several criteria established by the City of San Luis Obispo. Held vendor interviews and 
participated in product demonstrations.   

City of San Luis Obispo, Water Distribution SCADA Upgrade, San Luis Obispo, CA. 
Control System Technician. Constructed a reliable, robust, and efficient SCADA system 
capable of future expansion of the Whale Rock Reservoir delivery system and the City’s 
Water Distribution System. Upgrade work included replacing or repairing pump stations, 
tanks, pressure reducing valves, control valves, and flow, pressure, and power meters.  

Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency, SCADA Upgrade, Big Bear, CA. Control 
System Expert and Project Manager. Developed project specifications and supporting 
documentation for the Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency (BBARWA) Facility 
SCADA System Upgrade. Upgrade included PLC Components, SCADA System HMI 
Upgrades, integration of new Belt Press Filter equipment, and other integration. 

City of San Luis Obispo, Water Resource Recovery Facility Upgrade, San Luis Obispo, 
CA. Control System Technician. Assisted in delivering a water resource recovery facility 
that provides economic, social and environmental value to the community. Increased 
capacity to meet flows and loads under dry and wet weather conditions. Replaced aging 
infrastructure, modified process facilities, and met new discharge permit requirements.  

City of San Luis Obispo, Wastewater Collections Lift Station SCADA Upgrade, San 
Luis Obispo, CA. Control System Technician. Provided programmable logic controller, 
power, and cabling upgrades to four of the City’s wastewater collection sites: the Airport 
Lift Station; Silver City Lift Station; Prefumo Lift Station, and Poly Flowmeter. PLC 
upgrade involved making communication system with compatible with other Allen Bradley 
SCADA systems.  



C O N T A C T

9375 Archibald Avenue, Suite 200
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730

Phone: (909) 483-3200 
Fax: (909) 354-3482

ExpectWSC.com 



Item 6A



February 11, 2020

Brian Lee 
San Antonio Canyon Water Company 
139 North Euclid Avenue 
Upland, CA 91786

Subject: Comprehensive Master Plan and Asset Management Program

Dear Mr. Lee,

Based on our discussions, review of your existing master plan and hydraulic model, other reference materials, and  
the Request for Proposal (RFP), we have developed a clear understanding of your project’s objectives. We are excited 
about the opportunity to work collaboratively with San Antonio Water Company (SAWCO) to find tailored and defensible 
solutions relating to SAWCO’s aging infrastructure and supply risks. We understand that the purpose of this project is to 
develop modernized models of the domestic and irrigation systems and integrate findings from the modeling analysis, 
supply risk assessment, and aging infrastructure review into a Comprehensive Master Plan (Plan) that serves as a 
forward thinking road map for the next decade. 

Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo) has assembled a team of skilled local master planning and asset management 
professionals that are a direct match for your project needs. Our team members have all successfully worked together 
on over 30 projects similar in complexity and challenges. The team is led by Graham Juby and Amy Martin who have 
spent a combined total of 35 years working on projects within the local region. As demonstrated in our proposal, we are 
available to meet your schedule and bring the following benefits to SAWCO:

 � Local Team of Master Planning and Asset Management Professionals. The most important success factors for any project 
is the people that work on it. We offer an excellent team of both planning and asset management experts with a 
depth and breadth of knowledge necessary to deliver your project successfully. Our master planning and hydraulic 
modeling team members have a compelling collective record of over 260 projects completed. In addition, our team 
includes experts with a understanding of hydrogeology, structural analysis, and pipeline and tunnel rehabilitation 
projects, which will help provide confidence when identifying the right mix of solutions. Our team is led by our 
project manager and former San Antonio Height’s resident, Amy Martin, who has managed both master planning 
and infrastructure projects in the region and maintains a connection to the local community. She is Carollo’s Southern 
California Planning and Water Resources Manager and she provides an owner’s perspective through her previous 
employment with the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA). Conveniently, her entire core planning team is within a 
40-minute drive, which allows the team to meet on short notice to discuss findings and to work collaboratively with 
SAWCO staff.

 � Sound Relationships and Fresh Ideas. Our team strives to build long-term and trusted relationships with the clients that 
we serve. We understand that SAWCO is looking for a planning team that can provide a fresh perspective, but also 
offers an understanding of the local region. Our team most recently completed Cucamonga Valley Water District’s 
Master Plan and an update to the City of Upland’s Master Plan. We can build upon our local knowledge to hit the 
ground running while minimizing the learning curve. We are excited about the opportunity to work closely with your 
team to deliver a Plan with the right mix of solutions to the problems that may keep you up at night.  

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1   I   Executive Summary



 � Innovative Tools. Carollo is known for its innovative ideas across the water sector. In addition to expertise with all 
typical hydraulic modeling platforms in the U.S. water sector, our team brings other innovative ideas and tools. For 
example, we will use remote pressure loggers to supplement the calibration data gathering to increase model 
accuracy. We also bring hands-on experience with the preparation of risk-based pipeline replacement programs with 
tools such as lnfoAsset. Lastly, we can provide a dynamic electronic Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) tool that will 
provide the SAWCO with a living CIP that can be used for years to come.

We look forward to working side-by-side with you and building a long lasting relationship to help you achieve your vision 
and goals. Should you have any questions please do not hesitate to reach out to us at 714.593.5153 or amartin@carollo.
com.

Sincerely,  
CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. 

Graham Juby, PhD, PE   Amy Martin 
Vice President    Project Manager

February 11, 2020 
Page 2

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



FIRM BACKGROUND 
Carollo is an environmental engineering 
firm specializing in the planning, design, 
and construction management of municipal 
water, wastewater, and reclaimed water 
facilities for 86 years. We currently maintain 
46 offices across the nation and have more 
than 1,000 employees, including 450+ 
registered engineers. We are a full service 
company with the experience and qualified 
professionals to successfully manage projects 
of any size. Our staff include civil, sanitary, 
environmental, electrical, mechanical, 
chemical, structural, control system, and 
corrosion control engineers, as well as 
architects, planners, and specialists in other 
areas. 

Master Planning 
Carollo has established itself as a leader in the 
development of comprehensive master plans for cities 
and agencies facing a variety of complex issues. Our 
project team has completed multiple comprehensive 
master plans for many agencies in California. This 
experience allows us to deliver a high-quality master plant 
in an efficient manner. 

We have prepared comprehensive master plans for more 
than 200 municipal clients with service area populations 
from 5,000 to over 4 million. We have demonstrated 
our ability to successfully address complex technical, 
regulatory, and institutional issues to produce clear, cost-
effective, and practical recommendations. Our projects 
range from small planning studies to comprehensive, 
regional master plans. In addition, our planning team 
typically coordinates with our asset management and 

46offices

18
states86

YEARS'
Experience

More than

200
Comprehensive 
Master Plans

condition assessment experts to provide an integrated 
CIP that can be used as a roadmap for years to come. 
In fact, our technical expertise, paired with proven asset 
management tools allow us to anticipate and meet 
specific client objectives. We have assisted with over 
100 asset management projects across the country, 
which includes work concurrently completed during the 
development of master plans. 

We have also assisted many of our clients with 
subsequent rate studies and prepared presentations/
attended many City Council and Board meetings to assist 
with the stakeholder outreach, public acceptance, and 
adoption process of the master plans. 

Past Record of Performance 
Carollo takes pride in continuing relationships that we 
have developed with our clients. On the following pages, 
we provide a list of both local projects and projects similar 
in complexity. We invite you to contact the individuals 
listed in our project references. They will be happy to 
attest to the quality of services and responsiveness 
provided by our team members.

CAROLLO HAS COMPLETED MORE 

MASTER PLANS IN CALIFORNIA 

THAN ANY OTHER FIRM

2   I   Firm Background and Experience

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

3

FIRM BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE



CLIENT/PROJECT HYDRAULIC 
MODELING

SUPPLY 
ANALYSIS

CONDITION 
ASSESSMENT

COMPREHENSIVE 
CIP

Water System Master Plan, Antelope Valley-East Kern Water 
Agency ● ● ● ●
Integrated Water Master Plan (Water, Wastewater, and 
Recycled Water), City of Banning ● ● ● ●
Water Master Plan Study, City of Buena Park ● ● ●
Water and Wastewater Master Plans, City of Colton ● ● ●
Water System Master Plan, Cucamonga Valley Water District ● ● ● ●
Retail Zone & Wholesale Zone Water Master Plans, East 
Orange County ● ● ● ●
Water, Sewer, and Storm Drainage Master Plans, City of El 
Centro ● ● ●
Water Master Plan, City of Garden Grove ● ● ●
Water and Recycled Master Plan & 2018 Model Calibration, City 
of Glendale ● ● ● ●
Water, Wastewater, and Recycled Water Master Plans and 
Urban Water Management Plan, City of Hesperia ● ●
On-Call Recycled Water Modeling, Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency ● ●
Wastewater Master Plan, Inland Empire Utilities Agency ● ● ●
Pomona, and Monte Vista Water District (Phase 1 & 2), Intertie 
Study Between IEUA, ● ●
One Water LA 2040 Plan, City of Los Angeles ● ● ●
Hydraulic Model Development, Master Plan, and On-Call 
Support, Los Angeles World Airports ● ● ●
Water Master Plan, Mesa Water District ● ● ● ●
Water, Wastewater, and Recycled Water Master Plans, City of 
Oceanside ● ● ● ●
Water System Master Plan,City of Orange ● ●
Comprehensive Facilities Master Plan, Padre Dam Municipal 
Water District ● ● ● ●
Recycled Water Master Plan, City of Pomona ● ●
Integrated Water Management Plan, City of Riverside ● ● ●
Water System Master Plan Update and Hydraulic Model for 
Fontana Water Company, San Gabriel Valley Water Company ● ● ● ●
Water System Master Plan Update and Hydraulic Model for the 
Los Angeles County Division, San Gabriel Valley Water Company ● ● ● ●
Water Supply Planning Study and Recycled Water System 
Assessment, City of Santa Barbara ● ●
Water System Master Plan, City of Santa Maria ● ●
Water System Hydraulic Model, City of South Pasadena ●
Six Basins Groundwater Recovery Project, Three Valleys 
Municipal Water District ●
High Zone Water Evaluation, City of Torrance ●
Water and Recycled Water System Assessment, University of 
California, Irvine ● ●
Water System Master Plan and Model Update, City of Upland ● ●
20-Year Comprehensive Water Master Plan, Victor Valley Water 
District ● ●
Hydraulic Modeling Project and Asset Management Plan 
Update North East Planning Study, Yorba Linda Water District ● ●

Similar Projects & Local Experience

*Projects completed locally

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

4

FIRM BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE



PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
PROCEDURES FOR WORK QUALITY 
AND COST CONTROL
At Carollo, planning is the cornerstone of project 
excellence. This philosophy is integral to our project 
management procedures for work quality and cost 
control. Graham Juby and Amy Martin will work together 
to develop a project management plan that will set this 
project on the course to success. This section details the 
five key areas that will be used guide the project through 
completion. 

1. Planning of the Work
At the beginning of the project, a 
comprehensive work flow plan will be 
discussed with internal team members regarding the 
scope, schedule, and budget. The project objectives, 
critical milestone, and lines of communication will be 
established and discussed with SAWCO staff at the kick-
off meeting. This plan will provide the team with a better 
understanding of the activities that must be grouped, 
delivered, and discussed at progress meetings. Our 
proposed work flow plan, schedule, and scope of work 
are presented in Section 4.

The work flow plan will be updated throughout the project 
on an as-needed basis to serve as a project management 
tool that allows the team to focus on providing an 
organized, seamless delivery of work efforts. 

2.  Timely and Effective Decision 
Making

SAWCO and Carollo must make decisions 
efficiently and effectively to stay on schedule and meet 
the designated budget. This project requires SAWCO’s 
input and involvement, as well as Carollo’s punctual 
response to requests and feedback. Our job is to provide 
SAWCO with the information needed so that timely 
decisions can be made. 

The effectiveness of the decision process is based on 
answers to the following fundamental questions:

 � What decision has to be made?

 � When does the decision have to be made?

 � Who are the decision makers?

 � What information is needed to make the decision?

 � How will that information be formatted to allow for a 
comprehensive understanding of the decision?

 � What are the decision’s cost and schedule?

Our effective decision making approach will be occur 

throughout the project and will include ongoing 
collaboration with SAWCO’s staff. This process will also 
be used during key progress meetings where notes will 
be taken and action and decision items will be 
logged.

3. Staff Involvement
One of the most critical considerations is 
to identify who will be involved in the project and how 
much time they will contribute to the development of the 
comprehensive master plan. As previously mentioned, 
our work flow plan and schedule identify key deliverables, 
progress meetings, and SAWCO staff involvement 
throughout the project. Our success will be dependent 
on decisions made during key progress meetings, so 
attendance of those involved with the project is crucial. 
To provide staff with adequate time to review and 
provide important feedback, an agenda and associated 
draft documentation requiring review will 
be provided a week before the progress 
meeting. 

4. Measuring Performance
Our project manager, Amy Martin, is responsible for and 
accountable to SAWCO to effectively manage our team’s 
scope, budget, and schedule. She will submit monthly 
Project Management Reports, which update the status 
of the scope, budget, and schedule. Amy will also have 
conference calls and face-to-face progress meetings to 
update the project status and discuss any project issues/
concerns. 

Monthly Progress Monitoring and Reporting

Project scope changes are tracked through the project 
decision log, which will be included in the monthly 

Upfront planning

Timely and effective decision making

Collaboration and communication

Scope, budget, and schedule control

Quality

1

3

4

5

FIVE KEY areas:

2

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

5

FIRM BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE



VERIFICATION OF INSURANCE
Carollo is able to provide meet the necessary liability insurance coverage.

progress reports. These items will be tracked using the 
date of identification, potential for budget or schedule 
impact, and required date of resolution. No work will 
be initiated on out-of-scope services, if any, without 
SAWCO’s input and confirmation. Monthly progress 
reports will include a project “S” curve that graphically 
depicts the relationship between schedule, budget, and 
actual percent complete, allowing SAWCO to access the 
status of the project.

Earned value management (EVM) is used to analytically 
and accurately assess project budget, track schedule 
status, monitor progress, and take appropriate corrective 
action if required.

By using the EVM method, the status of the project 
budget and schedule are clear to both the management 
team member must simply inspect the “earned” value of 
the subtask. Establishing rigorous reporting 
procedures enables the management team 
to focus on developing solutions rather than 
searching for the source of the problem.

5. Delivering Quality Service
To meet or exceed SAWCO’s quality expectations, Carollo 
has assigned dedicated experts in both master planning 
and asset management to review draft deliverables at key 
project milestones, which efficiently delivers the  work, 
if any, and maintains the project budget and schedule. 

Matt Huang, a Principal Planning Engineer, will lead our 
quality control (QC) activities for hydraulic modeling, 
system analysis, and the supply risk assessments and 
Michael Fleury, the Regional Infrastructure Lead, will 
review condition assessment findings and provide input 
on the potential cause for the sedimentation buildup in 
the San Antonio Tunnel with cursory recommendations. 
The combined recommendations in the master plan will 
be reviewed by both Matt and Michael. 

Monthly progress reports will include a project “S”-curve that 
graphically depicts the relationship between schedule, budget, and 
actual percent complete, allowing IEUA to access the status of the 
project.

2020

Time in Months

%
 C

om
pl

et
e

100%
F M A M J J A S N DO

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Planned Progress

% Budget Expended
% Actual Progress

QUALITY CONTROL MILESTONE

Irrigation
System

Asset 
Management

Update Existing 
Demands and 

Forecast Validation

Important 
Coordination &  

QA/QC 
Milestones

Coordination of 
Demands and 

Criteria

Consistent Models 
Setup and Integration of 

Condition Assessment

Cost Assumptions and 
Optimized Phasing

Water
System
Model

Irrigation 
System
 Model

Condition 
Assessment

Distribution System 
Analysis and 

Supply Risk Assessment

Asset Register and 
R&R Prioritization

1 2 3

Update Existing 
Demands and 

Forecast Validation

Distribution System 
Analysis and 

Supply Risk Assessment

Water
System

CIP

Irrigation
System

CIP

R&R Project
CIP

Comprehensive 
CIP and Report

Technical Advisors

Matt Huang      Mike Fleury

Domestic
Water

System

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

6

FIRM BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE



MASTER PLANNING AND 
ASSET MANAGEMENT 
EXPERTS
Carollo has assembled an experienced 
team that collectively has worked on 
more than 260 master plans, water 
resources studies, and hydraulic models. 
As shown in the organization chart below, 
we are proposing a relatively small but 
dedicated team. The key elements of 
the project will be led an expert in that 
respective area. We believe that this is 
the right size team for your project and 
our team members will be committed 
to your master plan from start to finish. 
Our team is led by our project manager, 
Amy Martin, who has managed both 
master planning and infrastructure 
projects in the region. As the Southern 
California Planning and Water Resources 
Manager Amy is accustomed to providing 
an owner’s perspective through her 
previous experience and with her entire 
core planning team is located in Costa 
Mesa and Los Angeles, this allows the 
team to meet internally to discuss project 
progress, but also allows staff to meet 
with SAWCO on short notice to discuss 
findings. Our team also has the capability 
of screen sharing through WebEx, which 
allows experts in other offices to provide 
insight and feedback when needed. 

Additionally, our team is supported by an 
organization with deep resources in all 
aspects of the water industry that allows 
us to quickly mobilize industry experts 
for specialty topics that may arise during 
the project, ranging from water treatment 
technologists and asset management 
analysts to financial planning experts.

CLIENT/PROJECT

TEAM MEMBERS

G
RA

H
A

M

A
M

Y

M
AT

T

A
IM

EE

RY
A

N

A
LE

X

TO
M

LA County Division Water Master 
Plan, San Gabriel Valley Water 
Company

   

Fontana Division Water Master Plan, 
San Gabriel Valley Water Company   

Water System Master Plan, Antelope 
Valley-East Kern Water Agency  

Integrated Water Master Plan (water, 
wastewater, recycled water), City of 
Oceanside

    

Water System Master Plan, 
Cucamonga Valley Water District   

Water and Recycled Water Master 
Plan, City of Glendale    

Integrated Water Master Plan 
(water,wastewater, recycled water), 
City of Banning

   

Water and Wastewater Master 
Plans, City of Colton    

One Water LA 2040 Plan, City of Los 
Angeles    

Comprehensive Facilities Master 
Plan (water, wastewater, recycled 
water), Padre Dam Municipal Water 
District

  

Campus Wide Master Plan (water 
and recycled water), University of 
California, Irvine

   

Upland Master Plan and Update, City 
of Upland  

Intertie Project, Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency    

Staff Experience

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

7

PROJECT ORGANIZATION AND EXPERIENCE OF THE PROJECT TEAM

3   I    Project Organization and Experience 
of the Project Team



Our Team Is Ready to Hit the Ground Running
Our team’s successful working relationship translates into smooth project execution, building on each team member’s strengths, 
and a collaborative team spirit! We will be available to kick-off SAWCO’s project by March 2020 and look forward to collaborating with 
your team to deliver a master plan that you can use as a roadmap for the next decade. Key team leads were assigned to perform the 
core tasks listed in the RFP, which include a Planning Lead (Aimee Zhao) that will perform the supply risk assessment and assist 
with coordinating key deliverables for the preparation of the master plan report, a Lead Modeler (Ryan Hejka) that will develop 
modernized models of the domestic and irrigation systems that will be used to perform system analysis, an Asset Management 
Lead (Alex Bugbee) that will coordinate field activities for the condition assessment and provide recommendations for the 
replacement needs of infrastructure based on age and risk, and a Hydrogeologist (Tom Harder) that will review potential alternatives 
to improve production at the Six Basin wells. The core team will be supported by experts in GIS, structural analysis, pipeline risk 
assessments, and infrastructure rehabilitation. Brief biographies of our team members are provided below, followed by one-page 
resumes of key team members.

PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE | Graham Juby

Graham brings 36 years of proven experience in the planning and design for water and wastewater treatment facilities, 
which includes over 30 years managing projects in the Chino Basin and surrounding region. He is an expert in advanced 
treatment processes that provide cost effective and environmentally conscious solutions to a variety of water quality 
issues. In addition, he has led the development of similar planning projects with the core team assembled for this master 

plan. As a hands-on principal-in-charge, Graham will be responsible for providing technical input when needed, maintaining the project 
resource levels, overall QA/QC, and making sure SAWCO’s needs are met.

PROJECT MANAGER | Amy Martin

Amy Martin is Carollo’s Southern California Planning and Water Resources Manager and brings over 13 years of 
engineering project management experience in both the public and private sector. She joined Carollo in May 2014 and 
has lead the development of over 30 master plans and hydraulic modeling projects for projects throughout Southern 
California, which match the size and complexity of SAWCO’s master plan. Prior to joining Carollo, Amy managed large 

scale treatment and infrastructure projects ranging between $30 million to over $100 million at Inland Empire Utilities Agency. She 
was involved in projects from planning through design and construction. She is able to leverage her experience in the public sector 
when developing practical solutions for CIP development.  Her technical experience also includes recycled water infrastructure, wells, 
groundwater recharge, wastewater treatment plants, construction management, cost estimating, and permitting. 

QA/QC - Modeling | Matt Huang 

Matthew Huang has completed over 100 master planning and hydraulic modeling projects and is an expert in potable and 
recycled water distribution system modeling. He brings a broad base of experience, which includes water quality, water 
and wastewater treatment, water and sewer infrastructure, water resources, and wastewater system modeling and 
master planning. Matt also has a project management background that includes several large scale planning and design 

projects in ten states and seven foreign countries. 

QA/QC – Asset Management | Mike Fleury 

Mike Fleury, in his 47 years of experience, directed facility planning, preparation of studies and designs, value engineering 
and services during and after construction on a number of civil engineering projects, including new facilities, additions, 
condition assessments/rehabilitation of aqueducts and interceptors, renovations to existing wastewater treatment plants 
and water reclamation facilities, interceptor and transmission main systems, water storage and pumping facilities. He is 

considered a national expert in pipelines and related hydraulics having served on over 30 large value engineering studies across the 
United States.

Team Member

Master Plans  
and Hydraulic  

Modeling Studies

Amy Martin
18

Graham Juby
7

Matt Huang
143

Mike Fleury
8

Aimee Zhao
16

Ryan Hejka
22

Alex Bugbee
5

Jackie Silber
42

TOTAL 261 � 2016 & 2018 IEUA RW Intertie Feasibility Study 
(Phase 1 & Phase 2): MVWD, Pomona, and IEUA

 � 2017 CVWD Water System Master Plan 

 � 2018 FWC Water System Master Plan

 � City of Upland Master Plan

 � 2013 Ontario Recovery Technical Report

 � City of Chino Master Plan

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

CAROLLO  //  DOCUMENT  TYPE  //  DATE

CLIEN
T N

AM
E  //  PROJECT TITLE 

8
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

PROJECT ORGANIZATION AND EXPERIENCE OF THE PROJECT TEAM

PROJECT MANAGER
Amy Martin

PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE
Graham Juby

QA/QC
Matt Huang - Modeling
Mike Fleury - Asset Management

LEAD PLANNER
Aimee Zhao

SUPPORT STAFF

HYDROGEOLOGIST
Tom Harder 1

LEAD MODELER
Ryan Hejka

ASSET MANAGEMENT
Alex Bugbee

CONDITION ASSESSMENT
James Doering - Asset Management
John Briones - Electrical
Alex Bugbee - Mechanical

GIS
Jackie Silber

R&R (TUNNEL)
Mike Fleury

R&R (PIPELINES)
Andy Burton

SAWCo



 

 
 

\\IO-BD-1\BD-

   

Education 
PhD Engineering, 
University of Pretoria, 
South Africa, 1995 
BS Eng Hons Water 
Utilization Engineering, 
University of Pretoria, 
South Africa, 1992 
BS Hons Biomedical 
Engineering, University of 
Cape Town, South Africa, 
1985 
BS Chemical Engineering, 
University of Cape Town, 
South Africa, 1982 

Licenses 
Civil Engineer, California 

Professional Engineer, 
Texas, South Africa  

Professional 
Affiliations 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers 
American Water Works 
Association 
International Water 
Association 

South African Institute of 
Chemical Engineers 
Water Environment 
Federation 
Water Institute of 
Southern Africa (Fellow) 
 

Graham J.G. Juby, Ph.D., P.E. 
Dr. Graham Juby, a vice president with Carollo Engineers, has 36 years of proven ex-
perience in planning, testing, and process design for water and wastewater treatment 
facilities. He has focused on advanced treatment processes to provide cost-effective 
and environmentally conscious solutions to a variety of water quality issues. His expe-
rience includes water system planning and groundwater treatment with the applica-
tion of ozone, granular activated carbon (GAC), biological filtration, ion-exchange and 
disinfection. His experience also includes several fast track and alternative delivery 
projects.

 Project manager for the Design-Build 
Colored Water Treatment Project, in the role 
of the Owner's Engineer, for the Mesa Wa-
ter District, California. The project involved 
the preliminary design (approximately 30-
percent design) and preparation of design-
build bid documents and specifications for a 
new treatment facility to remove natural 
color from groundwater using ozone and 
BAC. The project included pre-qualification 
of design-build teams as well as pre-qualifi-
cation of major equipment manufacturers. 
The plant was commissioned in 2000. 
 Project manager for the review of de-
sign-build bid documentation for the 5.9-
mgd Carson Regional Water Recycling Plant 
for the West Basin Municipal Water District, 
California. The project was a design/build 
project for the production of high-quality 
water for industrial use from Title 22 feed 
water.  
 Technical lead for the Progressive De-
sign-Build Hi Desert Water District, Califor-
nia Wastewater Treatment Plant Project. 
Carollo was selected as the Owner’s Advisor 
for this $30 M progressive Design/Build 
project. Led the preparation of the approxi-
mately 5-percent design project technical 
requirements. Provided input and com-
ments to selected D/B Team’s 30, 50 and 
70-percent design submittals. Duties also in-
cluded leading the preparation of the Title 
22 Engineering Report to obtain approval 
from the California Division of Drinking Wa-
ter (DDW) for recharge of plant effluent. 
Project construction was completed in 2019. 
 Principal-in-charge for the Evaluation of 
PFOA and PFAS Removal for the City of Co-
rona, California. The City had detected per- 
and poly-fluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in 
some of their wells. The scope of work in-
cluded planning and on-site bench scale 

testing to determine the efficiency of re-
moval of perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and 
perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) with ion-
exchange resin and GAC. 
 Technical advisor for the ongoing PFAS 
Treatment Systems Planning Study for the 
Orange County Water District (OCWD), Cali-
fornia. This project involves planning and 
siting studies for PFAS treatment facilities for 
ten agencies that pump water from the OC 
Groundwater Basin, incorporating 66 im-
pacted wells. 

 Principal-in-charge for the 2019 Water 
System Master Plans for East Orange 
County Water District, California. The master 
planning effort included a 20-year outlook 
for both the wholesale and retail zones for 
the District. 

 Principal-in-charge for the 2014 Water 
System Master Plan for Mesa Water District, 
California. This involved demand projec-
tions, water supply analysis, hydraulic model 
update and calibration, extensive field con-
dition assessment, and development of an 
optimization model. In addition, 2 miles of 
non-destructive pipeline testing was done.  
 Principal-in-charge for the 2011 Storm-
water Master Plan for the City of Torrance, 
California. The project included develop-
ment of a Storm Water Quality Manage-
ment Plan with the capability to model vari-
ous land use and storm water Best Manage-
ment Practices.  
 Technical advisor for a master planning 
study for the City of Redlands, California. 
The project involved an evaluation of water 
sources and water demands for the City, as 
well as evaluation of the regulatory issues 
facing the operation of the Horace Hinckley 
surface water treatment plant.     



 

 
 

\\IO-BD-1\BD-

   

Education 
BS Civil Engineering, 
California State 
Polytechnic University, 
Pomona, 2007 

Professional 
Affiliations 
WateReuse Association 
Water Environment 
Federation 
 
 

Amy N. Martin  
Amy Martin joined Carollo in May 2014. She is Planning and Water Resources Man-
ager for Southern California and has over 13 years of engineering project manage-
ment experience in both the public and private sector. She has managed large-scale 
recycled water infrastructure projects, feasibility reviews, database development pro-
jects, and coordinated with multiple owners and agencies. In addition, she has man-
aged multi-disciplinary teams on master planning, hydraulic modeling, and asset 
management projects ranging in size and complexity. 

Comprehensive Master Planning 
 Assistant project manager and planning 
lead for the Cucamonga Valley Water Dis-
trict, California, 2017 Water Master Plan. This 
project included demand forecasting, sup-
ply planning, groundwater quality impacts 
to wells, and InfoWater hydraulic model up-
date and calibration using SCADA and pres-
sure logger data. Condition assessments 
were performed on key facilities and find-
ings were combined in a capital improve-
ment program (CIP) and water master plan 
report. 
 Assistant project manager and project 
engineer for the City of Glendale’s 2016 Wa-
ter Master Plan. This project includes pota-
ble and recycled water demand forecasting, 
water supply analysis, hydraulic model up-
dates for the water and recycled water sys-
tems using H2OMap. In addition, the infra-
structure upgrades for the existing and fu-
ture systems, including fire flow capacity up-
grades. Condition assessments were per-
formed at key facilities and an end of useful 
life was used to identify replacement needs. 
The findings were combined in a capital im-
provement program (CIP) and water master 
plan report. 
 Lead planner for the 2018 Water System 
Master Plan for the San Gabriel Valley Water 
Company (Fontana Water Company & LA 
County Division). This project consists of the 
preparation water demand projections, sup-
ply analysis, water quality and treatment 
recommendations, storage and pump sta-
tion analysis, update and calibration of a hy-
draulic models in WaterGEMS, and site as-
sessments for key facilities. The Capital Im-
provement Plan is supplemented by de-
tailed project justifications that will be pre-
sented to the California Public Utilities Com-
mission for the 2018-2022 General Rate 
Case. 

 Technical reviewer for the East Orange 
County Water District (EOCWD) 2015 Water 
Master Plans for the Wholesale and Retail 
Zones. This project includes water demand 
forecasting for EOCWD’s wholesale and re-
tail customers, hydraulic model update, hy-
draulic modeling analysis, emergency sys-
tem analysis, pipeline condition assessment, 
age-based pipeline replacement analysis, 
CIP development, and preparation of a 
comprehensive master plan report. The up-
date of the 2015 Draft Master Plans was 
completed in 2019 when final client com-
ments were received.  

Water Resources Planning 
 Project Manager and planning lead for 
the Phase 1 (2016) and Phase 2 (2018) Recy-
cled Water Feasibility Study to increase the 
region's water supply. Interconnections be-
tween the City of Pomona, Monte Vista Wa-
ter District, and Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency were evaluated to develop water 
supply alternatives that would provide re-
gional water supply benefits. As part of this 
evaluation, seasonal flow data from multiple 
supply sources with varying water quality 
was analyzed, regulatory permit impacts 
were reviewed, groundwater impacts were 
evaluated, and advanced treatment alterna-
tives were assessed. The final selected alter-
natives were analyzed utilizing InfoWater 
hydraulic models. 
 Water demand and flow forecasting task 
lead for the City of Los Angeles, California, 
One Water LA 2040 Plan. The Plan is a col-
laborative effort of the LA Sanitation (LA-
SAN) and LA Department of Water and 
Power (LADWP) that takes a holistic ap-
proach to consider all types of water as 
"One Water." The Plan will guide the City 
with strategic and multibillion dollar deci-
sions to make LA a more water resilient and 
sustainable City.  



\\IO-BD-1\BD-
 

Education 
MS Civil and 
Environmental 
Engineering, Stanford 
University, 1999 
BS Applied Ecology, 
University of California, 
Irvine, 1998 

Licenses 
Professional Engineer, 
Oregon, Washington 
Civil Engineer, California 

Professional 
Affiliations 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers 
American Water Works 
Association 

Matthew M. Huang, P.E. 
Matthew Huang is an expert on water and recycled water hydraulic modeling and
master planning, but also has a broad base of experience in water and recycled water 
planning, design and construction. His background includes many large planning and 
design projects, with projects in fourteen states and seven foreign countries. In addi-
tion, Mr. Huang has experience with a number of specialized computer programs, 
including InfoWater, H2OMAP, H2ONET, InfoSewer, InfoSWMM, InfoWorks WS, Wa-
terGEMS, GoldSim, WEAP, and ArcView GIS, as well as a number of database, pro-
gramming, scheduling, and spreadsheet programs. He is a member of AWWA’s Engi-
neering Modeling Applications Committee and is currently on a team developing a 
book on model calibration for AWWA.

 Project engineer for San Gabriel Valley
Water Company’s two water system master
plans, for their Los Angeles County Division 
and for the Fontana Water Company. Mr. 
Huang served as the hydraulic modeling
lead for this fast-paced project, completing
two water system master plans within a five-
month period. This project was in prepara-
tion for San Gabriel’s rate case to the CPUC, 
providing project justifications for use in the 
rate case.
 Senior hydraulic modeler for the 
Cucamonga Valley Water District's Water 
Master Plan, California. He performed the 
hydraulic model calibration and evaluation
of the water system. CVWD developed in
house their first all pipe model, and Mr. 
Huang was responsible for calibrating the 
model, and used the model to evaluate the
water system under existing and buildout
demand conditions. One of the most signifi-
cant parts of the modeling included a relia-
bility evaluation of the system, with key facil-
ities and pipelines out of service.
 Technical review for Water Master Plan
and Hydraulic Modeling Study for the City
of Colton, California. Carollo performed a 
hydraulic evaluation for the City of Colton.
Mr. Huang provided technical assistance on 
the hydraulic modeling, reservoir, and
booster pump sizing for the master plan.
 Project manager/technical lead for In-
land Empire Utilities Agency On-Call Recy-
cled Water Modeling, Chino, California. In
this three year contract, Mr. Huang is serv-
ing as the lead hydraulic modeler for all of
IEUA's recycled water hydraulic modeling
needs. He is responsible for responding to
client requests, determining hydraulic mod-
eling needs to be performed, and leading 

the team to perform the hydraulic modeling 
tasks. Tasks performed included model cali-
bration, sizing of new pipelines and pump 
stations, modifications to operational ap-
proaches, impacts of new development on 
the water system, and surge/transient eval-
uations.   
 Project manager and the technical lead
for the City of Chino Water and Recycled
Water Master Plan Update for the Edge-
water Development, California. This project
updated the City’s existing master plan to
include a proposed development located in
an area proposed to be annexed to the City 
of Chino. The project included hydraulic 
model updates and a development of a 
master plan.
 Task leader for the City of Ontario Water
and Recycled Water Master Plan, California. 
Evaluated the existing potable water system, 
as well as development of potable and re-
cycled water for a proposed development
with an estimated 100,000 population. Di-
rected a team performing the demand fore-
cast and projection, hydraulic model devel-
opment and calibration, and the hydraulic
system evaluation for the potable water
system.
 Technical lead for the Recycled Water
Master Plan for the City of Upland, Califor-
nia. His involvement included verification of 
existing recycled water demands, develop-
ment of a hydraulic model, and recommen-
dations for proposed recycled water system 
infrastructure including pipelines, reservoirs, 
booster stations, and off-site wastewater
treatment facilities. An economic evaluation
was performed to evaluate the most cost-
effective recycled water system, ending with 
a Capital Improvement Program.



 

 
 

\\IO-BD-1\BD-
 

 

Education 
BSCE Civil Engineering, 
University of Vermont, 
1972  

Licenses 
Civil Engineer, Nevada 

Professional Engineer, 
Texas, Florida, Colorado, 
Arizona, New Mexico 

Certification 
Certified, Confined Space 
Entry and Inspection  

Professional 
Affiliations 
American Public Works 
Association Member 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers Member 

American Academy of 
Environmental Engineers, 
Board Certified 
Environmental Engineer 
American Water Works 
Association Member 
California Water 
Environment Association 
Wastewater Collections 
Committee 
SAVE International 
Water Environment 
Federation (Reuse 
Committee Member) 
Western Coalition of Arid 
States 
 
 

Michael A. Fleury, P.E., BCEE 
Mike Fleury, in his 47 years of experience, directed facility planning, preparation of 
studies and designs, value engineering and services during and after construction on 
a number of civil engineering projects, including new facilities, additions, condition 
assessments/rehabilitation of aqueducts and interceptors, renovations to existing 
wastewater treatment plants and water reclamation facilities, interceptor and trans-
mission main systems, water storage and pumping facilities. He is considered a na-
tional expert in pipelines and related hydraulics having served on over 30 large value 
engineering studies across the United States. 

Condition Assessment/ 
Rehabilitation Design  
 Project manager for the condition as-
sessment and rehabilitation pre-design for 
26 miles of 21 to 84-inch aqueduct pipeline 
for the Weber Basin Water Conservancy 
District, Utah. Risk of failure was evaluated in 
terms of criticality and vulnerability. Multiple 
technologies for internal and external pipe 
inspection were evaluated and utilized to 
determine pipe condition and risk of failure. 
Internal inspection technologies utilized 
included non-tethered leak detection, high-
speed digital 3D video scanning, sonar, 
CCTV, in-pipe ground penetrating radar, 
and personnel-entry pipe inspection. Exter-
nal inspection included pH testing, alkalinity 
testing, chloride testing, sulfate testing, 
hammer sounding, electrical continuity test-
ing, and ultrasonic thickness testing. Pres-
sure and flow testing was also conducted to 
calibrate two existing Venturi flow meters 
and to validate and calibrate the hydraulic 
model. Carollo provided recommendations 
for pipeline rehabilitation and repair. 
 As a subconsultant to Halcrow Inc., Pro-
ject manager for the Enhanced and Alterna-
tive Methods and Technologies for Assess-
ment of the Los Angeles Aqueduct Project 
for LADWP. The project includes the internal 
review of the system infrastructure, and 
LADWP’S Capital and Operation and 
Maintenance Programs: External review of 
the inspection and remediation processes of 
other agencies, and alternative methods of 
system assessment. As part of this task, an 
aerial review and spot check visual inspec-
tion was performed on the first and second 
aqueducts from Los Angeles to the Owens 
Valley some 340 miles. In addition, a one-
day risk workshop was held to assess the 
eighty-one segments based on criticality 

and probability of failure. The workshop was 
beneficial in prioritizing the segments for 
pilot evaluations with sophisticated technol-
ogies that will be deployed while the aque-
ducts are in service or during a planned 
shutdown.  
 Pipeline and hydraulics value engineer-
ing team member on the $65 million Shaft 4 
connection between Catskill and Delaware 
Aqueducts preliminary design for the Office 
of Management and Budget, in conjunction 
with the New York City Department of Envi-
ronmental Protection. The project included 
a new connection to the gravity Catskill Aq-
ueduct to permit 275 mgd of water to be 
delivered from the higher pressure Dela-
ware Aqueduct. 
 Project manager for the Condition As-
sessment and Emergency Rehabilitation 
Design and Construction Project for Victor 
Valley Wastewater Reclamation Authority, 
Victorville, California. Carollo investigated 
30,000 linear feet of a 27-inch interceptor 
consisting of vitrified clay pipe (VCP) and 
steel pipe using CCT and sonar technology. 
The investigation revealed a failed lining 
within a steel pipe beneath a three-track 
railroad spur that was installed without a 
casing sleeve. Carollo prepared a fast-
tracked cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) design 
based on E-80 loading, and the project was 
successfully constructed with an ultraviolet 
(UV) cured CIPP installation. 
 Project manager for the Indian River, 
Florida, North County Force Main Condition 
Assessment. This project consisted of a 
Phase 1 condition assessment of the 8-mile 
24-inch North County Force Main, including 
ultrasonic thickness testing at air valve sites. 



 

 
 

\\IO-BD-1\BD-

   

Education 
MS Environmental 
Engineering, University of 
California, Irvine, 2014 
BS Earth and 
Environmental Sciences, 
University of California, 
Irvine, 2011 
 
 

Aimee Zhao  
Aimee Zhao joined Carollo in March 2015 as an environmental engineer. Her experi-
ence encompasses supply planning, hydraulic modeling, ArcGIS, capital improvement 
program planning, and master planning. Her project experience includes:

Master Planning & Supply Planning 
 Supply planning lead and staff engineer 
for the 2016 Water Master Plan for 
Cucamonga Valley Water District, California. 
This ongoing project includes potable water 
demand forecasting, Infowater hydraulic 
model updates, hydraulic model calibration 
using SCADA, and development of cus-
tomer specific diurnals. In addition, the in-
frastructure upgrades for the existing and 
future systems will be evaluated and the 
findings will be combined in a capital im-
provement program (CIP) and water master 
plan report. 
 Staff engineer and hydraulic modeler for 
the 2016 Water Master Plan for the City of 
Glendale, California. This project includes 
potable and recycled water demand fore-
casting, water supply analysis, hydraulic 
model updates for the water and recycled 
water systems using H2OMap. The findings 
were combined in a capital improvement 
program (CIP) and water master plan report. 
 Supply and demand forecasting lead for 
the 2018 Water Master Plan for San Gabriel 
Valley Water Company (Fontana Water 
Company and Los Angeles Division). The 
project includes potable water demand 
forecasting, Infowater hydraulic model de-
velopment and calibration, and supply anal-
ysis. Infrastructure upgrades for the existing 
and future system were evaluated and in-
cluded in a capital improvement program 
(CIP) and report. Project justifications were 
developed for the near-term (4-year) CIP 
and presented as part of the general rate 
case. 
 Project engineer for the Water and Re-
cycled Water Master plan for UC Irvine, Cali-
fornia. The project includes the creation of 
water system and recycled water system 
models, as well as a blueprint for additional 
facilities for UC Irvine to handle their pro-
jected growth and development on cam-
pus. This is the first water and recycled water 
master plan for UC Irvine. 

 Project Engineer for the East Orange 
County Water District (EOCWD) 2015 Water 
Master Plans for the Wholesale and Retail 
Zones. This project includes water demand 
forecasting for EOCWD’s wholesale and re-
tail customers, hydraulic model update, hy-
draulic modeling analysis, emergency sys-
tem analysis, pipeline condition assessment, 
age-based pipeline replacement analysis, 
CIP development, and preparation of a 
comprehensive master plan report. The up-
date of the 2015 Draft Master Plans was 
completed in 2019 when final client com-
ments were received.  
 Project engineer for on-call water sys-
tem modeling for the City of Santa Barbara, 
California. As part of this on-call contract, 
various modeling studies were conducted 
related to the new desalination plant. Each 
study was summarized in separate technical 
memoranda. Studies completed to date in-
clude: 1) Energy Optimization Study for vari-
ous production scenarios; 2) Extreme 
Drought Analysis with various supply op-
tions; and 3) Transmission Main analysis to 
serve Montecito Water District. 

Water Resources Planning 
 Planner for the Orange County Water 
District PFAS Planning Study (ongoing). This 
project involves coordination with local wa-
ter producers within the Orange County Ba-
sin to identify conceptual level treatment al-
ternatives with consideration to groundwa-
ter supply impacts.  

 Staff engineer and GIS lead for the 
Phase 1 (2016) and Phase 2 (2018) Recycled 
Water Feasibility Study to increase the re-
gion's water supply. Interconnections be-
tween the City of Pomona, Monte Vista Wa-
ter District, and Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency were evaluated to develop water 
supply alternatives that would provide re-
gional water supply benefits. The final se-
lected alternatives were analyzed utilizing 
InfoWater hydraulic models. 

 



 

 
 

\\IO-BD-1\BD-
 

   

Education 
BS Civil Engineering, 
California State 
Polytechnic University, 
Pomona, 2012 

Licenses 
Engineer-in-Training, 
California 

Software Expertise: 
InfoWater 
ArcGIS 
H2OMAP 
Mike Urban 
Water GEMs 
InfoSewer 

InfoSWMM 
AutoCAD 

Hydraulic 
Modeling/Master 
Planning 
Experience: 
30 Potable Water Models 
7 Recycled Water Models 
3 Stormwater Models 
1 Wastewater Model 
10 Model Training 
Seminars 

Ryan M. Hejka, E.I.T. 
Ryan Hejka is a civil engineer with seven years of professional experience. He is spe-
cialized in water and recycled water system hydraulic modeling and master planning 
projects and is skilled in the use of a wide variety of hydraulic modeling packages 
including InfoWater, H2OMAP, Mike Urban, and Water GEMs. He has analyzed or cali-
brated almost 50 hydraulic models. In addition, he has extensive experience with 
ArcGIS and proficient in multiple programming languages that he utilized to build 
several customized water optimization models and tools for water agencies. Most 
recently he has expanded his planning experience into design projects where he has 
engineered the design of reservoirs, pump stations, and pipelines. His experience in-
cludes:

Comprehensive Master Planning  
 Assistant project manager and hydraulic 
modeling lead for the City of Upland, Reser-
voir and PRV Replacement. This project in-
cluded demand forecasting, supply plan-
ning, H2OMAP hydraulic model update. 
Several alternative locations were modeled 
for a new PRV system as well as hydraulic 
analysis and planning for two separate res-
ervoir outages. 
 Lead modeler for the City of Glendale’s 
2016 Water Master Plan. This project in-
cludes potable and recycled water demand 
forecasting, water supply analysis, hydraulic 
model updates for the water and recycled 
water systems using H2OMap. In addition, 
the infrastructure upgrades for the existing 
and future systems, including fire flow ca-
pacity upgrades. Condition assessments 
were performed at key facilities and an end 
of useful life was used to identify replace-
ment needs. The findings were combined in 
a capital improvement program (CIP) and 
water master plan report. 
 Lead modeler for the 2018 City of Glen-
dale hydraulic model conversion and cali-
bration from H2OMAP to InfoWater. Ryan 
coordinated the data and filed testing as 
well as the calibration and conversion of the 
hydraulic model. Ryan has been assisting 
the City with training and model related 
questions over the past 4 years. 
 Lead modeler for the 2018 Water System 
Master Plan for the San Gabriel Valley Water 
Company (Fontana Division). Ryan updated 
and calibrated the Fontana Division hydrau-
lic models in WaterGEMS. He also led the 
development of the FoCapital Improvement 
Plan which used the developed hydraulic 
model to assist with project justifications  

 Task engineer for the Mass Balance 
Model for the One Water LA 2040 Plan, 
California. This project looks at the integra-
tion of all of the City’s water assets. He was 
responsible for the development of a cus-
tom mass balance planning model that 
tracks all major flows in the City of Los An-
geles which included a cost module and 
was utilized in the alternative’s analysis of 
the One Water LA 2040 Plan. 
 Staff engineer for the Water and Recy-
cled Water Master plan for UC Irvine, Cali-
fornia. The project includes the creation of 
water system and recycled water system 
models from AutoCAD maps, as well as a 
blueprint for additional facilities for UC Ir-
vine to handle their projected growth and 
development on campus.  
 Staff engineer for system-wide hydraulic 
model development for the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California. Carollo 
assisted in the development, calibration, and 
validation of four separate hydraulic models 
that collectively cover Metropolitan's entire 
conveyance system. The models were de-
veloped from existing GIS data in Mike Ur-
ban modeling software.  
 Staff engineer for the 2016 Water Master 
Plan for the City of Colton, California. This 
project included water demand forecasting, 
hydraulic model development and EPS cali-
bration using field fire flow testing. Existing 
and future system analysis was conducted 
to develop a CIP including a rehabilitation 
and replacement program. The findings 
were presented in a comprehensive water 
master plan report that was developed in 
conjunction with the 2016 Sewer Master 
Plan. 



\\IO-BD-1\BD-

Education 
BS Mining Engineering, 
Pennsylvania State 
University, 2009 

Licenses 
Engineer-in-Training, 
Pennsylvania 

Alexander T. Bugbee, E.I.T. 
Alexander Bugbee is a lead analyst in Carollo’s Financial Management Group with
eight years of experience asset management and utility rates and financing. His pri-
mary expertise includes assisting water and wastewater agencies develop asset man-
agement plans, rehabilitation and replacement programs, financial and econometric 
analyses, as well as compiling and analyzing the necessary background data. He has 
completed work for several dozen agencies, cities, and special districts throughout 
California and the western US. 

His combined experience in engineering and financial analyses benefits the project 
team by providing an asset management strategy that considers infrastructure needs 
along with financial capacity and feasibility to develop a truly implementable plan.  

 Site assessment lead and analyst for the 
Water and Recycled Water Master Plan for
the City of Glendale, California. He led an
assessment of selected water facilities in-
cluding pump stations, wells, treatment fa-
cilities, and reservoirs. He the utilized the re-
sults of the site assessments to develop an
asset rehabilitation and replacement pro-
gram, which he then incorporated into a 
funding and connection fee analysis aimed
at creating an implementable CIP strategy
based on a series of priority based project
phasing options.

 Site assessment lead and analyst for the 
Asset Management Plan for the Yorba Linda 
Water District, California. He coordinated
and led mechanical and structural condition 
assessments of the district’s water systems
and developed an asset registry, valuation,
and risk assessment. The final component of
the project incorporated the valuation and
risk assessment into a CIP plan and financial
feasibility analysis to test the impact of the
asset management plan on the district’s fi-
nances.

 Site assessment lead and asset manage-
ment analyst for the Waterworks Facilities
Assessment and Cost of Service Study for
the City of Simi Valley, California. He coordi-
nated and led mechanical and structural
condition assessments of the City’s water
utility that included wells, pump stations,
reservoirs, and treatment facilities. This in-
formation was used along with other rec-
ords to develop an asset condition registry,
a rehabilitation and replacement program, 
and a CIP which was later incorporated into
a cost of service analysis. 

 Site assessment lead and analyst for the 
Public Works Integrated Master Plan for the 
City of Oxnard, California. He coordinated
and led mechanical and structural condition 
assessments of the City’s water and
wastewater systems. The results of the con-
dition assessments were used to develop a
risk prioritzed master plan CIP for the water
and wastewater facilities. He later incorpo-
rated the CIP into a cost of service analysis
aimed at providing funding for the exten-
sive rehabilitation and replacement needs.

 Site assessment lead and analyst for the 
Pump Station Master Plan for the Union
Sanitary District, Union City, California. He 
coordinated and led mechanical, structural, 
and electrical condition assessments of the 
District’s high capacity wastewater pump 
station and force main system. The results 
of the physical assessments were used in
conjunction with a hydraulic evaluation to
develop an asset management and replace-
ment plan for the pump stations and forced
mains systems.

 Site assessment lead and asset Manage-
ment Analyst for the Water Master Plan Up-
date for the City of West Sacramento, Cali-
fornia. He led mechanical, structural, and
electrical assessment of the City’s 58 MGD
capacity surface water treatment plant. He 
the utilized the results of the site assess-
ments along with additional condition data 
for the City’s pump station and reservoir
sites to assist in the development of an asset 
rehabilitation and replacement program.



 

 
 

\\IO-BD-1\BD-

  

Education 
MGIS, Penn State 
University, 2017 
BA Geography, California 
State University, 
Northridge, 2001 
AA Geology, Pasadena 
City College, 1997 

Certifications 
Certified Geographic 
Information Systems 
Professional (GISP), 
Geographic Information 
Systems Certification 
Institute, 2012 

Jackie M. Silber, GISP 
Jackie Silber is a geographic information systems (GIS) lead with more than 19 years 
of professional experience in GIS and technical training. Her experience includes geo-
spatial GIS analysis for water resource planning, environmental remediation sampling, 
and demographic forecasting projects. Her GIS skills focus on geodatabase design 
and optimization, manipulation and conversion of projections, CAD and KML to GIS 
conversion, spatial analysis, automation of repetitive analysis using Model Builder and 
Python, and creation of cartographic figures. 

Relevant Project Experience  
 GIS specialist for the San Gabriel Valley 
Water Company Water System Master Plan 
Update, California. In addition to developing 
figures illustrating system deficiencies, Ms. 
Silber also developed a Python script to 
loop through an 11 million record table and 
sum the total water demands for every cus-
tomer. 
 GIS specialist for the City of Banning, 
California. As part of the Integrated Master 
Plan, Ms. Silber developed figures repre-
senting the existing recycled water system 
as well as the proposed non-potable reuse 
system.  

 GIS specialist for the University of Cali-
fornia, Irvine, Recycled Water System Analy-
sis and Capital Improvement Program. Ms. 
Silber worked with hydraulic modelers to il-
lustrate future system pressure deficiencies 
and pipeline velocities. 

 GIS specialist for the City of Medford, 
Oregon Sanitary Sewer Master Plan. To help 
the City anticipate future needs, Ms. Silber, 
developed figures illustrating the locations 
of high I/I due to sewer trunk line deficien-
cies. Also investigated existing and future 
land use changes per parcel as part of a 
wastewater capital charge per equivalent 
residential unit analysis. 
 GIS specialist for the Hillsborough 
County, Florida Capital Improvement Pro-
gram. As part of the on-call potential Septic 
Replacement/Water Line Extension Pro-
gram, Ms. Silber performed geospatial anal-
ysis to determine the number of septic par-
cels within wellhead protection and high 
hazard coastal areas. Additionally, produced 
figures of wastewater facilities and parcels 
served by current infrastructure.  
 GIS specialist for a Long-Range 
Wastewater Management Plan for the City 

of Renton, Washington. As part of the pipe 
risk approach, Ms. Silber developed an 
ArcGIS-based criticality and vulnerability 
model. The model identified and prioritized 
critical assets in close proximity to key infra-
structure or that are susceptible to failure. 
 GIS specialist for the Los Angeles County 
Waterworks District 29, California, Water 
System Master Plan. Compiled and devel-
oped a water infrastructure geodatabase 
and geocoded the water billing data to cor-
relate metered usage data with parcels. Us-
ing current land use and future zoning parcel 
data, analyzed water demands for private cus-
tomers. Also created pressure zones and allo-
cated commercial demands for fire flow in In-
foWater. 

 GIS specialist for the Stormwater Cap-
ture BMP Site Suitability Analysis for the Up-
per San Gabriel River Enhanced Watershed 
Management Program, California. Using a 
uniform grid, performed a multi-criteria de-
cision analysis of valued and binary con-
straints to identify potential stormwater 
BMP sites in the Watershed as part of the 
Los Angeles County MS4 Permit Compli-
ance. The constraints were scored and 
weighted to rank the locations. Iterative 
tasks such as classifying the locations were 
automated using python scripts. 

 GIS specialist for the Mission Creek and 
Garnet Hill Subbasins Water Management 
Plan for the Coachella Valley Water District, 
Desert Water Agency, and Mission Springs 
Water Districts, California. As part of a col-
laborative groundwater replenishment pro-
gram, analyzed population and other de-
mographic projections and mapped the wa-
tersheds and multi-habitat conservation ar-
eas. 



\\IO-BD-1\BD-

Education 
MS Civil Engineering, 
University of Pittsburgh, 
2015 
BS Biology, Allegheny 
College, 2010 

Licenses 
Professional Engineer, 
Pennsylvania 

LEED Accredited 
Professional Building 
Design + Construction 

Certification 
NASSCO Pipeline, 
Manhole, and Lateral 
Assessment and 
Certification Program 

Professional 
Affiliations 
American Society of Civil 
Engineers 
Pennsylvania Water 
Environment Association 

Water Environment 
Federation 

Andrew Z. Burton, P.E., LEED AP 
Andrew Burton is a lead analyst with Carollo Engineers’ Utility Advisory Services and
Strategic Management Group. He has more than 9 years of combined experience in the 
fields of engineering consulting and research. Andy’s work concentrations are in the areas 
of water and wastewater infrastructure asset management and data analytics. His exper-
tise includes asset register and hierarchy development, risk analyses, renewal modeling, 
GIS, and data visualization. He is one of Carollo’s condition assessment leads, responsible 
for efforts to assess facilities, collection systems, and plan for future work. Andy’s combi-
nation of experience in asset management, analytics, and planning helps to apply innova-
tive solutions to unique challenges.

 Technical lead for the San Gabriel Valley 
Water Company, California, Fontana Water Di-
vision Company Water System Master Plan 
Update. Andy led the development a of risk-
based prioritization model and capital im-
provement plan for a 700-mile water distribu-
tion and transmission pipeline network in San 
Bernardino County. The project included an 
existing demand analysis, development of 
peaking factors and future demand projec-
tions through year 2045, water supply analysis, 
water quality analysis, groundwater treatment 
recommendations, storage and pump station 
analysis, and field condition assessments for 
the system’s 38 plant sites. The update was 
completed within an aggressive 6-month
schedule to meet the California Public Utilities 
Commission compliance deadline.

 Technical lead for the San Gabriel Valley 
Water Company, California, Los Angeles 
County Division Water System Master Plan 
Update. Andy led the development of a risk-
based prioritization model and capital im-
provement plan for a 580-mile-long water dis-
tribution and transmission pipeline network in 
Los Angeles County. The project included an 
existing demand analysis, development of 
peaking factors and future demand projec-
tions through year 2045, water supply analysis, 
water quality analysis, groundwater treatment 
recommendations, storage and pump station 
analysis, and field condition assessments for 
the system’s 32 plant sites. The update was 
completed within an aggressive 6-month
schedule to meet the California Public Utilities 
Commission compliance deadline.

 Technical lead for the InfoAsset™ Planner 
Implementation, Cape Fear Public Utility Au-
thority, North Carolina. Andy is currently lead-
ing the data review and model setup for the 
water distribution and sewer pipeline replace-
ment and rehabilitation model for the Authori-
ty's sewer system. The project will include the
review of CCTV data and the integration into a 

geospatial modeling software to be used to 
assess the condition of the pipelines. He will be 
responsible for the setup of the model, pro-
ducing results, and training Authority staff on 
the use of the model. 

 Technical lead for the Asset Reliability As-
sessment and Financial Plan Project for the 
City of Simi Valley, California. Andy supported 
the development of the overall asset manage-
ment program for the City’s wastewater treat-
ment plant and collection system. The project 
included complete asset inventory, condition 
assessment of aboveground assets, geo-
graphic information system (GIS)-based anal-
yses of belowground assets, risk-based assess-
ments for probability and consequence of fail-
ure, asset valuation, rehabilitation and replace-
ment (R&R) capital improvement program de-
velopment, and a financial plan including pro-
posed rate adjustments.

 Lead analyst for the Asset Management 
Plan for Water Supply, Treatment, and Storage 
Facilities, Mount Pleasant Waterworks, South 
Carolina.  Under this service task order, Andy 
developed an asset inventory for the water 
supply, treatment, and storage facilities; incor-
porate condition assessment data for the as-
sets; and evaluate criticality and risk using an 
asset management approach that was be cus-
tomized based on the preferences of Mount 
Pleasant Waterworks.

 Project engineer for the Asset Manage-
ment Plan Project for the Yorba Linda Water 
District, California. Andy supported the devel-
opment of the overall asset management pro-
gram for the District’s complete water and 
sewer assets. The project included complete 
asset inventory, condition assessment of 
aboveground assets, geographic information 
system (GIS)-based analyses of belowground 
assets, risk assessments for probability and 
consequence of failure, rehabilitation and re-
placement (R&R) program development, and 
funding analyses.



 

 
 

\\IO-BD-1\BD-
 

 

Education 
MS Civil Engineering, 
University of California, 
Berkeley, 1994 
BS Civil Engineering, 
University of California, 
Irvine, 1993 

Licenses 
Structural Engineer, 
California, Oregon 
Professional Engineer, 
Colorado 

Civil/Structural Engineer, 
Washington 
Civil Engineer, California 

Professional 
Affiliations 
American Institute of 
Steel Construction 
Earthquake Engineering 
Research Institute 
 
 

James A. Doering, P.E., S.E. 
James Doering, a registered structural and civil engineer, is Carollo’s structural lead 
engineer in Southern California. He manages the production of construction docu-
ments for large and small projects. He has experience in structural analysis, design, 
seismic retrofit, rehabilitation, review, and assessment for a variety of structures, such 
as reservoirs, tanks, channels, basins, wastewater and water treatment facilities, pump 
stations, operations & maintenance facilities, and process buildings.

 Structural engineer for the Del Rio Tank 
Project for the City of Modesto, California. 
The project involved the design of a pump 
station and a 0.3-MG welded steel tank. 
Performance specifications and drawings 
were prepared for an AWWA D100 tank. 
 Structural engineer for the design of a 
project for the City of Sanger, California, that 
included a 0.75-MG AWWA D100-11, welded 
steel, potable water storage tank and sup-
porting pumping and well treatment facili-
ties. 

 Structural engineer for the Inlet Conduit 
and Rapid Mix Systems project for the Met-
ropolitan Water District of Southern Califor-
nia. The project included design of a 12-foot 
by 12-foot concrete conduit transition for 
water conveyance from a 144-inch diameter 
steel pipe to a 13-foot by 15-foot concrete 
conduit. 

 Structural engineer for the 3.1-million 
gallon stormwater tank at the San Diego 
International Airport (Lindbergh Field). The 
design-build project included a circular, 
buried, cast-in-place concrete tank support-
ed on auger-cast piles with secant pile shor-
ing. 
 Structural engineer for the Seismic Eval-
uation of Sunset Reservoir No. 1 for Pasade-
na Water and Power, California. The project 
involved the seismic/structural evaluation of 
a 5.6 million gallon, elliptical-shaped reser-
voir with hopper bottom and wood-framed 
roof originally constructed in 1888. Opera-
tional strategies, rehabilitation/retrofit, and 
replacement alternatives were considered.  
 Structural engineer for the Structural 
Evaluation of Peters Canyon Reservoir for 
East Orange County Water District in Or-
ange, California. The project involved the 
structural evaluation of a 6.0-MG, rectangu-
lar hopper-bottom cast-in-place concrete 
reservoir with a wood-framed roof. 

 Structural engineer for the Southern 
Delivery System Water Treatment Plant Raw 
Water Tank for the City of Colorado Springs, 
Colorado. The project involved the design 
of a 10-MG circular prestressed concrete 
tank that will store raw water for processing 
at the water treatment plant.  
 Structural engineer for the Industrial 
Tank 13 Project for the City of Modesto, 
California. The project involved the design 
of a pump station and a 4.0-MG prestressed 
concrete reservoir with a flat roof.  

 Structural engineer for the Reservoirs 
Assessment Project for the City of Redlands, 
California. The project involved the visual 
assessment and structural evaluation of four 
buried and partially buried concrete reser-
voirs. 
 Structural engineer for the 2016 Water 
Master Plan for Cucamonga Valley Water 
District in Rancho Cucamonga, California. 
Completed assessments of 10 steel water 
storage tanks and numerous pump stations 
and wells. Vulnerabilities were identified by 
conducting both site visits and performing 
cursory structural analyses. 
 Structural engineer for the 2014 Water-
works Facilities Assessment for the City of 
Simi Valley, California. Completed assess-
ments of more than 50 steel water storage 
tanks and numerous pump stations. Vulner-
abilities were identified by conducting both 
site visits and cursory structural analyses. 
 Structural engineer for the 2013 Historic 
Storm Drain Analysis Project for the City of 
Redlands, California. The project involved 
the visual assessment and structural evalua-
tion of 5 of the City’s buried con-
crete/cobblestone stormwater conduits, 
totaling in excess of 5,000 lineal feet. Rec-
ommendations were made, repair plans and 
specifications were subsequently prepared. 



 

 
 

\\IO-BD-1\BD-

  

Education 
BS Electrical Engineering, 
California State 
University, Sacramento, 
1986 

Licenses 
Electrical Engineer, 
California, Utah 

Professional 
Affiliations 
Institute of Electrical and 
Electronics Engineers  

- PES/IAS Orange 
County Joint Chapter, 
2012-2013 Chairman 

National Fire Protection 
Association 
International Society of 
Automation 
 

John G. Briones, P.E. 
John Briones, is a principal electrical and instrumentation & controls engineer with 
Carollo in the Orange County office. He has 32 years of experience in the design and 
construction management of power, instrumentation, control, communication, and 
security systems for water and wastewater facilities. He has designed projects to meet 
required state and national standards including California Code of Regulations (CCR) 
Title 8: Electrical Safety Orders, Hazardous Locations; CCR Title 24: Energy Efficiency 
Standards, and National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 820: Standard Fire Protec-
tion in Wastewater Treatment and Collection Facilities. His experience follows:

Planning 
 Lead electrical engineer for the San Elijo 
Asset Management Study for the San Elijo 
Joint Powers Authority, California. The study 
included a complete review of the electrical 
system configuration of the main 
wastewater facility as well as two off-site 
reservoir/pump station facilities. The study 
involved the identification of potential elec-
trical single points of failure, as well as up-
grade recommendations to improve power 
reliability. 

Pump Stations 
 Lead electrical design engineer for the 
Wasatch County Water Efficiency project for 
the Central Utah Water Conservancy Dis-
trict, Utah. The project involved the design 
of seven pump stations, including over 
2,400 horsepower of pump loads. In addi-
tion, the project included a radio telemetry 
system to allow remote monitoring of each 
pump station. 

Reservoirs 
 Lead electrical design engineer, con-
struction services, and field inspection for a 
water quality analysis and chemical feed 
system design for the Twin Oaks Reservoir 
for the Vallecitos Water District, California. 
The project included construction of two 
new 26-million-gallon reservoirs. A Disinfec-
tion/Control Building will be constructed to 
house sodium hypochlorite and aqua am-
monia. Provisions will also be made at the 
building for the future installation of hydro-
fluorosilic acid and corrosion inhibitor 
chemical feed systems. The design of the 
chlorine and aqua ammonia feed systems 
will consist of chlorine ton container han-
dling, chlorinators, scrubbers, two aqua am-
monia storage tanks, and four metering 
pumps for each chemical. This will result in a 

very flexible system that allows the District 
to operate under several disinfection strate-
gies including feed of one or both chemicals 
into incoming, exiting, and/or recirculation 
flow streams. 

Water Treatment 
 Project electrical engineer for the Impe-
rial Headgates Facility and Weir Pond Reha-
bilitation Project for the Orange County Wa-
ter District, California. The project will re-
place the existing river inlet trash rack 
screening system, including the upgrading 
of the existing Control and Generator Build-
ings. 

 Project electrical engineer and construc-
tion services for the Twin Lakes and Carlton 
Square Disinfection Facilities project for the 
Southern Nevada Water Authority, Nevada. 
The project added new chemical disinfec-
tion facilities at two separate sites. The de-
sign required the upgrading of the existing 
power systems and interfacing with the cli-
ent's supervisory control and data acquisi-
tion (SCADA) system. 

 Lead electrical design engineer for the 
Jensen Filtration Plant's Aqua Ammonia Re-
location project for the Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California. The project 
added a new aqua ammonia tank farm that 
included containment facilities for the tanks 
and for unloading chemical trucks. In addi-
tion, a new remote terminal unit (RTU) was 
added and integrated with the existing 
plant's computer system. He provided the 
project's design for power, controls, and in-
strumentation, including the development 
of the process and instrumentation dia-
grams (P&IDs). 

  



THOMAS E. HARDER 

Principal Hydrogeologist 

EDUCATION 

B.S., Geology.  California State
Polytechnic University -
Pomona, 1990

M.S., Geology with Honors. 
Emphasis in Hydrogeology, 
California State University – Los 
Angeles, 1995 

PROFESSIONAL 
REGISTRATIONS 

California Professional 
Geologist (No. 6512) 

Certified California 
Hydrogeologist (No. 588) 

PROFESSIONAL 
AFFILIATIONS 

National Ground Water 
Association 

Groundwater Resource 
Association of California 

Watereuse Association 

During his 30 years of professional experience, 
Mr. Harder has provided technical direction and 
management for some of the largest water resource 
projects in southern California, including the Chino 
Desalter Well Field Design and Construction, the Kern 
Water Bank, and the Mojave Water Agency’s Regional 
Recharge and Recovery Project.  His expertise spans a 
wide range of hydrogeological disciplines, including 
regional groundwater basin analysis, perennial yield (i.e. 
safe yield), artificial recharge, groundwater management, 
groundwater models, contaminant hydrogeology, and 
water wells. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

2008 to Present:  Principal Hydrogeologist, Thomas 
Harder & Co.; Anaheim, California 

1998 to 2008:  Senior Geohydrologist, Geoscience 
Support Services, Inc.; Claremont, California 

1997 to 1998:  Principal Hydrogeologist, Geosciences

Department Manager, Parsons Engineering Science; 
Pasadena, California 

1989 to 1997:  Senior Geologist, Harding Lawson 
Associates; Irvine, California 

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE PARTICIPATION 

2016 - Present:  Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California Regional Recycled Water Recharge Scientific 
Advisory Panel 

2011 to 2016:  Kern Fan Monitoring Committee – 
Groundwater Model Technical Advisory Subcommittee 

2010 to 2013:  Chino Basin Recharge Master Plan 
Steering Committee 

2009 to 2012:  Chino Basin Watermaster Appropriative 
Pool and Advisory Committee 

2003 to Present:  Big Bear Lake Department of Water 
Groundwater Management Technical Review Team 

2002: Chino Basin Subsidence Technical Committee 



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

9

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH

San Antonio Water Company

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING & 
APPROACH
San Antonio Water Company (SAWCO) has recognized 
the need to prepare a Comprehensive Master Plan (Plan) 
and Asset Management Program that provides strategic 
guidance and practical recommendations that address 
SAWCO’s water distribution and water supply needs 
through the planning year of 2030. This Plan needs to 
consider SAWCO’s aging infrastructure, capacity driven 
improvements, and risks associated with supply source 
outages (i.e. San Antonio Tunnel). The various Plan 
recommendations need to be integrated into a prioritized 
capital improvement plan (CIP) that fits within a practical 
budget and serves as a roadmap for years to come.

Based on discussions with SAWCO staff and the review 
of the existing hydraulic model and planning reports, 
individual distribution system needs have been identified 
in isolation with low confidence in the modeling tools 

used to perform the system analysis. Now it’s time to 
take a step back and look at the entire service area needs 
to define optimized solutions for capital investments 
using tools that provide confidence for defensible decision 
making. 

The map below illustrates just a few of the important 
questions and key objectives that need to be addressed 
with this project. 

In addition, a Workflow Plan, Schedule, and Detailed 
Scope of Work have been developed to demonstrate how 
the project tasks will be achieved by the end of 2020. In 
addition, a variety of optional task ideas to enhance the 
project have been identified, which are listed as Task 8 in 
the detailed scope of work. 

Our team is able to achieve the objectives outlined 
through the following success factors:

Modernize Hydraulic Models

Identify Supply Outage Risks

Prepare Forward Thinking Roadmap

Develop Asset Replacement Timeline

Integrate Supply Risks and Asset 
Replacement Needs

Review Future Growth

Identify Solutions for Six Basin Wells

Consider Catastrophic Impacts

Options to Remove Sediment from 
Tunnel

Review Interconnections with CVWD 
& Upland

Minimize Water Age in Reservoirs

Key Objectives of the Project

San Antonio Water Company

The purpose of this project is to take a comprehensive look at the entire service area needs 
to define optimized solutions for capital investments using tools that provide confidence for 
defensible decision making.

4   I   Project Understanding and Approach



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

10

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH

1. Local Team of Planning and Asset
Management Professionals. Our core team leaders
bring a long history of working within the local region.
We are able to leverage our recent knowledge from the
master plans completed for Cucamonga Valley Water
District and the City of Upland to hit the ground running
and meet the 2020 project completion date outlined in
the schedule. Our team also provides in-depth knowledge
in comprehensive master planning, hydraulic modeling,
and asset management. In addition, our team includes
Carollo’s Regional Infrastructure Lead (Michael Fleury) that
can provide a fresh perspective to the concerns relating
to the sedimentation buildup and reliability of the San
Antonio Tunnel, which is one of SAWCO’s primary supply
sources. Michael is an expert in rehabilitation design and
has successfully completed similar projects throughout
the United States.

2. Accurate Model Development and Calibration
for Defensible Decision Making. We have
reviewed the existing hydraulic model and understand
SAWCO’s desire to develop a modern tool that can
be used for defensible decision making. Our proven
model development and calibration process will be used
when preparing your domestic and irrigation models
using InfoWater Pro. The calibration process includes
1) Developing a calibration plan, which outlines field
gathering activities and data requirements to conduct EPS
calibration. 2) Performing a Macro-Calibration to compare
initial modeling results to typical system pressures
and water level fluctuations to confirm that results are
within right ballpark. 3) extended period simulation (EPS)
Calibration to adjust facility controls to obtain a model that
accurately mimics system operations over an extended
24-hour period.

3. Proper Alignment of QA/QC Milestones
Results in Sound Master Plans. Based on our
extensive experience in developing comprehensive
master plans, we know where tasks should be
coordinated to deliver a sound and consistent Plan
and CIP. This coordinated effort minimizes the risk of
substantial re-do work that could result in schedule
delays. In addition, all deliverables go through Carollo’s
document processing for grammar read-through. The QA/
QC technical milestone are identified in the proceeding
Workflow Plan and QA/QC table in Section 2.

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ
&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ
&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

&Ñ

BERKELEY

S 
C

IR
C

LE
 V

IE
W

S 
CI

RC
LE

 V
IE

W

BERKELEY

S 
CI

RC
LE

 V
IE

W

10"

12
"

3"

8"

1"

2"

6"

4"

0"

0"

12"

6"
12

"

3"

8"

8"

12"

12"

12"

0"

0"

8"

8"

0"

6"

12"

2"

6"

0"

6"

6"

2"

12"

12"

4"

4"

4"

2"

0"

6"

8"

0"

6"

4"

4"

0"

0"

2"

0"

10"

12
"

8"

12"

10"

10"

0"

8"

3"

12"

0"

2"

8"

8"

6"

8"

2"

0"

12"

P-1

F-1F-2

Calit2

Rowland Hall

Bren Hall

University Club

Engineering Gateway

Engineering Hall 3

Engineering Tower

Information and Computer Science

Engineering Computing Trailers

Rowland Hall

Legend
Test Hydrant Types

F-1
F-2
P-1

&Ñ Other Hydrants
Pipelines By Diameter

Unknown
1" - 4"
6" - 8"
10" - 12"
16"

O
0 200 400

Feet

HYDRANT FLOW
TEST 1 FORM

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA IRVINE
UCI CAMPUSWIDE PLAN

Vicinity Map

Accurate model calibration starts with a good Calibration Plan. We will 
prepare a detailed plan with site-specific maps to record field data and 
notes.

of Recycled Water Interconnections
Between City of Pomona, Monte Vista Water District,and Inland Empire Utilities Agency

RFP-KB-15-057    I     AUGUST 2015 

Feasibility Study

P  R  O  P  O  S  A  L

 

Richard Brady & Associates, Inc. 

Upland Reservoir Modeling 

Technical Memorandum 1 

UPLAND RESERVOIR OUTAGE 

ANALYSIS 

FINAL  |  April 2018 

���


����
�����

����
���	

���


�

���

��

�

�

�

�

�

�

	

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��

�

	

�

�


�



�

�

	

��

��	


�

��

��

��

��

��

��

���

��

���

���

�


��

�

1.3

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.0

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

Hour

P
e
a
k
in

g
F

a
c
to

r

ADD City Diurnal

ADD Average

Our team brings a long history of working together in the region 
and has an in-depth knowledge of local supply challenges.



W
O

RK
 E

FF
O

RT
BASIS OF PLANNING SYSTEM ANALYSIS ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPREHENSIVE CIP  

AND MASTER PLAN 
D

EL
IV

ER
A

B
LE

S
SA

W
CO

 R
O

LE

Task 1 – Project Management and 
Coordination

• Project Management/Coordination
• Monthly Invoices/Progress Reports
• Progress Meetings (6) and Conference

Calls (4)

Task 2 – Data Gathering and System 
Evaluation Criteria

• Data Request Lists and Updates
• Data Collection and Organization
• Review Evaluation Criteria

Deliverables

• Meeting Agenda and Notes
• Data Gathering Lists
• Schedule Updates, Invoices, and

Progress Reports

Meetings

• Kick-off Meeting

SAWCO’s Role

• Attend Kickoff Meeting
• Provide Requested Data
• Approve Evaluation Criteria

SAWCO’s Role

• Attend Meetings and Conference Calls
• Facilitate Fire Flow Field Day and Install 

Pressure Loggers
• Review Catastrophic Failure Supply and

Supply Reliability Scenarios
• Review Cost Assumption Development

SAWCO’s Role

• Attend Meetings and Conference Call
• Facilitate Condition Assessment Field Day
• Review Replacement Projects List and Cost
• Review Capital Replacement Prioritization

List

SAWCO’s Role

• Attend Meeting
• Review and Comment on Draft Report

Meetings

• Meeting 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5
• Conference Call 1 and 2

Meetings

• Meeting 1 and 2
• Conference Call 1

Meetings

• Meeting 6

Deliverables

• Meeting Agendas and Notes
• Tables Summarizing Capacity

Improvement Projects, Supply Risk
Assessment for Environmental Impacts,
Catastrophic Failures, and Supply
Reliability

Deliverables

• Meeting Agendas and Notes
• Tables Summarizing Replacement Projects,

Theoretical Budget, and Best Fit Budget
• Prioritized CIP Table

Deliverables

• Meeting Agenda and Notes
• Comprehensive CIP
• Draft and Final Reports

Task 3 – Capital Improvement 
Program

• Domestic Hydraulic Model Review,
Development, and Calibration

• Irrigation Hydraulic Model Review,
Development, and Calibration

• Domestic & Irrigation System Analysis
(Storage, Pump Station, and Hydraulics)

Task 6 – Source Water Loss-Risk 
Review

• Review Projected Environmental Impacts
• Catastrophic Failure Supply Scenarios
• Supply Reliability Scenarios

Task 4 – Capital Replacement 
Program

• Asset Register Development
• Condition Assessment

Task 5 – Master Plan and Facility 
Asset Management Program

• Capital Replacement Budget and Phase
Development

• Review and Rank Assets

Task 3 – Capital Improvement 
Program

• Cost Assumptions Development

Task 4 – Capital Replacement 
Program

• Replacement Projects List and Cost

Task 5 – Master Plan and Facility 
Asset Management Program

• Capital Replacement Prioritization
List and Replacement Program

Task 6 – Source Water Loss-Risk 
Review

• Cost Estimates for Supply Alternatives

Task 7 – Master Plan Report

• Comprehensive CIP Development
• Draft and Final Master Plan Report

M
EE

TI
N

GS

Quality Control 
Milestone

LEGEND

Work Plan

CAROLLO  //  DOCUMENT  TYPE  //  DATE

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

11
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH



Tasks
2020

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct NovMar Apr

Notice to Proceed
1 - Project Management and Coordination
2 - Data Gathering and System Evaluation Criteria
     2.1 - Existing Data Review
      2.2 - Evaluation Criteria
3 - Capital Improvement Program
     3.1 - Domestic Hydraulic Model Review and Development
     3.2 - Domestic Hydraulic Model Calibration
     3.3 - Irrigation System Hydraulic Model Review and Development
     3.4 - Irrigation System Hydraulic Model Calibration
     3.5 - Domestic and Irrigation System Analysis
     3.6 - Cost Assumptions Development
4 - Capital Replacement Program
     4.1 - Preliminary Asset Register
     4.2 - Replacement Projects List & Condition Assessment
     4.3 - Existing Replacement Costs
5 - Master Plan and Facility Asset Management Program
     5.1 - Theoretical Asset Management Budget
     5.2 - Develop a Best Fit Capital Replacement
     5.3 - Theoretical Versus Best Fit Capital Replacement Budget
     5.4 - Review and Ranking Process
     5.5 - Capital Replacement Prioritization List and Replacement Program
6 - Source Water Loss-Risk Review
     6.1 - Projected Environmental Impacts to Local Supply
     6.2 - Catastrophic Failure Supply Scenarios
     6.3 - Supply Reliability Scenarios
     6.4 - Cost Estimates for Supply Alternatives
7 - Report Preparation

NTP
Kick-off 1 2 1 3 2 4 5 6

Domestic System Irrigation System

Draft Final

Field Visits

SAWCO Review

Carollo TasksProject Meetings

Conference Calls Chapters and Report

Milestone Deliverables

LEGEND 

Schedule

CAROLLO  //  DOCUMENT  TYPE  //  DATE

SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

12
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

13

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH

DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK
The scope of services that are proposed align with the 
primary scope of work tasks listed in the RFP. Subtask 
numbering various from what is listed in the RFP. Task 7 
was added for report development and Task 8 was added 
for proposed optional scope enhancement tasks. Key 
approaches that either supplement the scope or describe 
our methodology and assumptions are provided under 
each respective task. We welcome the opportunity to 
discuss and negotiate this scope of work with you, if 
we are selected for this project.

Task 1 – Project Management & Coordination
Task 1.1 – Project Management & Coordination

This task consists of managing the project team to track 
time, budget, schedule work elements accomplished, 
work items planned for the next period, and budget 
needed to complete the project. This task also includes 
the preparation of monthly progress reports. The effort of 
this task is based on an eight-month project duration.

Task 1.2 – Quality Assurance/Quality Control

Carollo will perform QA/QC procedures and identify 
milestones and technical reviewer responsibilities for key 
deliverables throughout the project.

Task 1.3 – Progress Meetings & Conference Calls

Carollo will coordinate and attend up to six (6) in-person 
status meetings at SAWCO’s office. An agenda, notes, 
and action and decision log will be prepared for each 
meeting. In addition, Carollo will coordinate up to two (2) 
one hour conference calls via WebEx with SAWCO staff 
to discuss the project status and to address potential 
issues. The effort of this task is based on a seven-month 
project duration.

Deliverables for Task 1: Agendas, Meeting Notes, 
Action & Decision Log, and Monthly Progress Reports

Task 2 – Data Gathering & System Evaluation 
Criteria
Task 2.1 – Existing Data Review

A data collection list will be prepared to track the status of 
requests regarding information received from SAWCO’s 
staff, which will be provided at the kick-off meeting. Data 
that may be requested and reviewed consist of relevant 
planning documents and studies, facility operation 
and maintenance (O&M) records, existing condition 
assessment reports, GIS maps and databases, facility 
as-built drawings, and information provided by staff, to 

verify size, condition, and sizing parameters of the existing 
system.

Task 2.2 – Evaluation Criteria

The existing water system sizing and evaluation criteria 
will be reviewed and compared with industry standards 
to assess recommendations on revisions to these 
criteria. The criteria will be used for system analysis and 
infrastructure sizing. The criteria will consist of demand 
peaking factors, system pressures, pipeline velocities, 
pipeline head loss, fire flows, pump stations, and storage. 
Since the domestic and irrigation systems serve different 
purposes, a set of criteria will be provided for each system 
for the planning horizon (or Year 2030).

Deliverables for Task 2: Data Collection List and 
Evaluation Criteria Tables

Task 3 - Capital Improvement Program
Domestic Hydraulic Model
Task 3.1 – Domestic Hydraulic Model Review & 
Development

Carollo will use the 2020 GIS database to develop a 
pipeline network in the latest version of InfoWater Pro 
modeling software. Carollo will use the tools in InfoWater 
Pro to check connectivity and configuration of the 
pipelines imported into the hydraulic model. Topography 
data provided by SAWCO will be used to allocate ground 
elevations to model nodes. Additionally, the water supply 
source locations, reservoirs, booster pump stations, 
and PRVs will be modeled. Facility data will be copied 
from the existing model and verified with current data 
provided as part of Task 2. System controls will be input 
such that the model can run for a 24-hour extended period 
simulation (EPS).

Historical monthly billing records will be geocoded 
by meter location and allocated in the model. Diurnal 
curves will be developed based on existing field data 
for each pressure zone. If data is not available, then a 
standard curve will be used from a neighboring agency. 
Future demands for the 10-year planning horizon will be 
estimated based on discussions with SAWCO staff. For 
budgeting purposes, up to 24 hours have been included 
to update future demands. The model will include demand 
sets for Existing Average Day Demand (ADD), Existing 
Maximum Day Demand (MDD), Future ADD, and Future 
MDD. 

Task 3.2 – Domestic Hydraulic Model Calibration

An EPS model calibration will be performed, which will 
mimic system operations over an extended 24-hour 



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

14

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH

period.  Up to six (6) fire flow testing sites may be 
performed in a one day field visit. In lieu of a fire flow 
calibration, static pressure points can also be taken 
throughout the system using up to six (6) remote pressure 
loggers. SCADA output in 15-minute intervals or hourly 
intervals for reservoirs, pump stations, and inflows from 
supply connections. The model results will be compared 
with the field results, with calibration performed to 
AWWA M32 standards. A calibration plan will be prepared 
to summarize data needs and field activities.

Irrigation Hydraulic Model
Task 3.3 – Irrigation System Hydraulic Model Review & 
Development

The same scope of work listed under Task 3.1 will be used 
to complete the model review and development for the 
irrigation system. Our assumption is that the 2020 GIS 
database development will include the irrigation system. 
The only variation is the development of diurnal curves, 
which will include the top five (5) customers on the 
system. 

Task 3.4 – Irrigation System Hydraulic Model Calibration

The same scope listed under Task 3.2 will be used to 
complete the model calibration. In addition, the use of the 
pressure loggers will be discussed with SAWCO prior to 
project kick-off to confirm that there are available locations 
to install the devices. 

Capital Improvement Projects Based on Modeling Results

Task 3.5 – Domestic & Irrigation System Analysis

Storage & Pump Station Analysis

A storage and pump station mass balance (using a 
spreadsheet model) will be used to evaluate capacities 
within each zone under existing demand conditions for the 
domestic and irrigation system.  

Hydraulic System Analysis

The hydraulic model will be used to evaluate system 
pressures and pipeline velocities under the following 
conditions: ADD, Peak Hour Demand (PHD), and MDD 
with Fire Flow (domestic system only). The hydraulic 
model will be used to identify areas that do not meet the 
minimum pressure, velocity, or fire flow requirements. If 
any pressure, velocity, or fire deficiencies are identified, 
the model will be used to identify and size improvements 
to meet the criteria.  Carollo will first discuss the proposed 
recommendations with staff and then incorporate 
improvements in a separate hydraulic model scenario.  
For budgeting purposes, it is assumed that there will not 

be more than 10 fire flow improvement projects for the 
domestic system.

Task 3.6 – Cost Assumptions Development

Planning-level V unit construction costs for potable water 
infrastructure components will be developed. These unit 
costs will reflect the most current (year 2020) market 
conditions in the region. In addition, a table with typical 
contingency and mark-up cost factors will be prepared. 
The cost development and amortization assumptions will 
be discussed and finalized with the SAWCO staff prior to 
the development of the CIP. These cost assumptions will 
be used to develop costs for the capacity improvements 
identified under Task 3 and will be used for the proceeding 
tasks. Since the improvement projects identified may 
overlap with asset replacement and supply projects, 
project phasing will occur in the comprehensive CIP.

Deliverables for Task 3: Table summarizing capacity 
improvement projects and cost estimating assumptions

Task 4 - Capital Replacement Program
Task 4.1 – Preliminary Asset Register

Carollo will develop an asset register using the 2020 
GIS data, or other sources provided. An initial grouping 
of assets into preliminary classes tailored to SAWCO’s 
above ground and below ground infrastructure will be 
performed. It is anticipated that the preliminary register 
will include, but is not limited to, pipelines, PRVs, pump 
stations, reservoirs, and wells.

Task 4.2 – Replacement Projects List & Condition 
Assessment 

Carollo will utilize a comprehensive approach to identify 
replacement needs combining typical useful life estimates 
for each asset with asset condition, serviceability, and 
functionality to determine the Evaluated Remaining 
Useful Life (EvRUL) and Economic Remaining Useful 
Life (EcRUL). These key parameters will be used along 
with industry standard guidelines, Carollo’s internal 
discipline-specific experience, and institutional knowledge 
to determine the optimal renewal options (rehabilitate, 
replace, or retire) as well as project timing.  

A one (1) day condition assessment will be conducted at 
key facilities to gain a better understanding of the system 
and to identify possible existing deficiencies that may 
require future correction. The field visit will include a lead 
field inspector, structural engineer, and hydrogeologist. 
In addition, a cursory review of video inspections and 
documentation will be performed to provide potential 
solutions to remove sedimentation in the San Antonio 



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

15

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH

Tunnel and minimize sedimentation build up in the future. 
For budgeting purposes, up to 16 hours will be included 
to perform this analysis.  

Task 4.3 – Existing Replacement Costs

Prepare cost estimates for asset replacement projects 
using cost assumptions from Task 3.

Deliverables for Task 4: Table summarizing 
replacement projects and cost estimates

Task 5 – Master Plan and Facility Asset 
Management Program
Task 5.1 – Theoretical Asset Management Budget

A theoretical yearly asset management budget will be 
developed that considers timely system improvements 
and replacements. 

Task 5.2 – Develop a Best-Fit Capital Replacement

Carollo will work with SAWCO to phase projects within 
a budget that best-fits the spending limit for capital 
replacements using 2020 cost estimates.

Task 5.3 – Theoretical Versus Best-Fit Capital 
Replacement Budget

Quantify the difference between the theoretical versus 
the best-fit budget and provide a brief description to 
account for the difference.

Task 5.4 – Review & Ranking Process

Carollo will develop a vulnerability and criticality score for 
each asset in the asset register. The risk score for each 
asset will be calculated and assigned a risk category 
(e.g. low, medium, high). Using this information, Carollo 
will determine the assets having the greatest impact 
on SAWCO’s ability to meet its service obligation to 
its customers. Where applicable, this analysis will 
incorporate risk mitigation factors and system resiliency. 
This will be added to the risk register. This will help with 
prioritizing replacement/improvement projects.

Task 5.5 –Capital Replacement Prioritization List and 
Replacement Program

Using the information developed as part of Task 2, Task 3, 
and Task 4, a comprehensive 10-year capital improvement 
plan (CIP) and 5-year capital program project list will 
be developed. The projects will be summarized in 
tabular format by project ID, facility type, and by type of 
customers served (existing or future). We will prioritize 
all projects and develop a schedule to implement the 

improvements on an annual basis. The timing of CIP 
projects will be based on risk factors and other project 
triggers, such as capacity deficiencies. 

Maps depicting the recommended system improvement 
projects will be prepared. Improvements will be 
annotated with project IDs that correspond with the 
project IDs in the report and comprehensive CIP table.

Deliverables for Task 5: Table summarizing 
replacement projects, Theoretical Budget Table, Best-Fit 
Budget Table, and a Prioritized CIP Table

Task 6 – Source Water Loss-Risk Review
Task 6.1 – Projected Environmental Impacts to Local 
Supply

Using the most recent drought data, a determination of 
yield of the various water supplies will be identified in 
combination with projected environmental changes. A 
critical drought period will be selected with input from 
staff. This data will be used to predict supplies over the 
next twenty years.

Task 6.2 – Catastrophic Failure Supply Scenarios

Up to three (3) catastrophic supply scenarios will be 
performed to identify supply deficiencies.  Each scenario 
will identify the number of days that the system can 
operate without interruption under Minimum Day 
Demand (MinDD), ADD, and MDD conditions. Potential 
scenarios include the outage of the San Antonio Tunnel, 
outage of wells in the Cucamonga Basin due to water 
quality, and outage of key facilities during a wildfire.

Task 6.3 –Supply Reliability Alternatives

Up to four (4) supply alternative scenarios will be 
developed to promote supply reliability within the service 
area. The alternatives developed will be compared to 
the Stay-the-Course option. Alternatives may include 
improving the wells in Six Basins to maximize production, 
constructing an intertie with Cucamonga Valley Water 
District, constructed an imported water connection, 
and constructing new wells to provide redundancy. The 
alternatives developed will consider the impacts related 
to catastrophic supply outages identified under Task 6.2 
and potential failures due to aging assets (primarily wells) 
that are beyond their useful life. The four (4) alternatives 
will modeled to identify system impacts.

Task 6.4 – Cost Estimates for Supply Alternatives

Cost estimates will be prepared for the four (4) 
alternatives identified. The selected alternatives will be 
integrated into the comprehensive CIP.



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

16

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND APPROACH

Deliverables for Task 6: Tables summarizing the 
Supply Risk Assessment for Environmental Impacts, 
Catastrophic Failures, and Supply Reliability Projects with 
Cost Estimates

Task 7 – Report Preparation
Task 7.1 – Draft Report 

Carollo will compile the work conducted in previous 
tasks into master plan that provides clear rationale 
for identifying, justifying, prioritizing, and costing the 
recommended improvements. Carollo’s draft report will 
summarize the assumptions, analysis criteria, report 
findings, and recommendations of SAWCO’s system 
facilities evaluations. It is assumed that the data and word 
files from the 2017 Master Plan will be used to develop 
the Comprehensive Master Plan.

Anticipated chapters of the master plan include: 0) 
Executive Summary, 1) Introduction, 2) Land Use 
and Demands, 3) Existing System, 4) Evaluation 
Criteria, 5) Supply Analysis, 6) System Analysis, 7) 
Asset Management, 8) Capital Improvement Plan, and 
appropriate appendices.

Three hard copies and one electronic copy in Adobe 
Acrobat format of the Draft Master Plan Report will be 
submitted for review and comments.

Task 7.2 – Final Report 

SAWCO’s comments on the Draft Master Plan Report 
will be reviewed and incorporated into the Final Master 
Plan Report. Three (3) hard copies and one electronic 
copy will be provided in Adobe Acrobat format.

Task 8 – Optional Tasks
The scope of work and fee estimate for the optional tasks 
can be negotiated upon selection.

Task 8.1 – Develop Hydraulic Profiles

Develop hydraulic profile in AutoCAD and display 
individual pump units, pumping capacities, well 
production capacities, reservoir volumes, PRV settings, 
and other critical operational details to enhance the visual 
summary of SAWCO’s distribution and irrigation systems. 
This will be included as a figure in the Report.

Task 8.2 – Water Conservation Estimates

Historical customer billing data will be analyzed by 
customer class of existing customers and then estimate 
the impacts of additional water conservation measures 
(AB 1668 and SB 606) and other water conservation 

programs. A water conservation envelope will be created 
to depict the range of water conservation potential 
and how that impacts the overall demand forecast. The 
results can be integrated into the 2020 Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP) and compared with the 
projected supply impacts under Task 6.1.

Task 8.3 – Future Land Use Demand Projections

Update the demand projections based on the review of 
existing land use types within the service area. 

Task 8.4 – Temporary Flow Meters

Up to five (5) temporary flow meters will be installed 
to increase model accuracy. This may be beneficial 
on the irrigation system where atypical demands can 
significantly impact local hydraulics during peak usages.

Task 8.5 – Water Age Analysis

Modify the model for a long model run simulation 
(typically one month). A benchmark water age analysis 
will be performed to evaluate how water age can 
be improved through operational adjustments or 
improvement projects.

Task 8.6 – Dynamic CIP Tool

A dynamic planning tool will be developed, which 
provides a complete summary of all CIP projects. 
Proposed projects are each identified in separate 
worksheets, complete with a project summary, project 
need or trigger, cost, and phase. Individual project sheets 
will be rolled into a summary table.

Task 8.7 – San Antonio Tunnel and Associated Pipeline 
Condition Assessment 

A condition assessment of the tunnel and associated 
36-inch concrete pipe will be performed utilizing CCTV 
robotic inspection utilizing the access hatches. The tunnel 
may be a candidate for manned inspection, based on the 
results of the CCTV. Prior to manned inspection a safety 
plan will be developed for the required confined space 
entry.

Entry would be with a structural engineer, senior 
condition assessment expert, and SAWCO staff. Data 
that is obtained from the CCTV and manned entry will be 
assessed to provide a technical memorandum. Included 
in the technical memorandum will be recommendations 
going forward, to help provide viability of this system.

EXCEPTIONS TO RFP
We take no exceptions, but would like to add language 
reflected in our last contract.



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

17

PAST PROJECTS

WATER AND RECYCLED WATER MASTER PLAN & MODEL CALIBRATION
City of Glendale

The City of Glendale is located approximately 7 miles northeast of downtown Los 
Angeles. The water system serves approximately 250,000 residents within a service 
area of 31 square miles. The system is relatively complex, with the potable and 
recycled water systems consisting of 397 miles of water mains, 33 reservoirs, 30 
pump stations, 14 wells, 2 treatment plants, 12 chlorination facilities, and 6 water 
quality monitoring stations. Water is pumped in stages from reservoirs in the lower 
(south end) into the higher (north end) zones. The service area is divided into seven 
major pressure zones. Due to the wide variation in service elevations, pumping 
stations are needed to lift water from the lower zone to the next higher elevation. 

The City of Glendale Water and Power Department (GWP) retained Carollo to 
develop their 2016 Water and Recycled Water Master Plan, which built upon the initial 
hydraulic models that Carollo assisted in developing in 2009. The project included 
potable and recycled water demand forecasting, water supply analysis, hydraulic 
modeling, hydraulic system analysis, development of a pipeline replacement program, 
and a field condition assessment of critical water facilities. The findings of this project 
were used to develop a detailed CIP and master plan report with a 2040 planning 
horizon. A cursory financial rate impact study was also included as part of this project.

In 2018, GWP requested Carollo to convert the hydraulic model from H20Map into 
InfoWater. The model was then calibrated and training was provided to staff. An 
updated system analysis was performed and the results were compared to the 
analysis performed in the 2016 Master Plan.

CLIENT REFERENCE 

Raja Takidin, PE 

Senior Engineer 

P: 818.548.2107

Graciela Zapata, EIT 

Civil Engineering Associate  

P: 818.548.3972 

COMPLETION DATE 

2016

PROJECT TEAM MEMBERS 

Ryan Hejka (Hydraulic Modeler), 

Matt Huang (Lead Modeler), 

Amy Martin (Project Engineer) 

Aimee Zhao (Staff Engineer), 

Alex Bugbee (Asset Management)

PROJECT SIZE 

$250,900

HIGHLIGHTS

 � Hydraulic Model Update with new GIS, which involved removing several miles of abandoned pipeline in the 
model.

 � Comprehensive condition assessment and remaining useful life analysis was utilized to rank and prioritize 
projects in the CIP.

Relevant Experience :
  Hydraulic Modeling & 

Calibration
 System Analysis
 Supply Analysis
  Asset Age Analysis 

and Condition           
Assessment

  Comprehensive Master 
Plan & CIP

With consideration to 
GWP’s annual budget, 
a comprehensive and 
prioritized CIP was 
developed using a 
combination of results 
from hydraulic modeling 
analysis, supply analysis, 
and remaining useful life 
for aging infrastructure.

5   I   Past Projects



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

18

PAST PROJECTS

WATER MODEL CALIBRATION
Cucamonga Valley Water District

Cucamonga Valley Water District’s (CVWD’s) service area includes the City of 
Rancho Cucamonga, portions of the Cities of Upland, Ontario and Fontana, and 
some unincorporated areas of San Bernardino County. CVWD serves a population 
of approximately 200,000 customers within a 47 square mile area, which includes a 
complex distribution system with eight large pressure zones, five smaller subzones, 
22 pump stations, and 35 storage reservoirs. Since CVWD experienced a lot of new 
growth and demand changes over the last decade, an update to the master plan was 
requested. 

This master plan project included potable water demand forecasting, a supply 
analysis that analyzed the impacts of only using local supply sources, InfoWater 
hydraulic modeling updates and calibration, and identification of existing and future 
system deficiencies. A system reliability analysis was performed to identify areas 
that would benefit from redundancy, and recommendations for existing and future 
improvement projects with associated cost estimates were made. A comprehensive 
conditions assessment and the preparation of a report that summarized the results 
and recommendations was also included.

Upon completion of the master plan, CVWD retained Carollo to perform model 
training, review developer impacts due to changes in projected demands, and provide 
assistance for Proposition 68 Grant preparation. 

CLIENT REFERENCE 

Praseetha Krishnan  

Associate Engineer Cucamonga 

Valley Water District 

P: 909.987.2591

COMPLETION DATE 

2017

PROJECT TEAM MEMBERS 

Amy Martin (Assistant PM & 

Project Engineer), Aimee Zhao 

(Staff Engineer & Supply Analysis 

Lead), Matt Huang (Hydraulic 

Modeler), James Doering 

(Structural Analysis/ Condition 

Assessment), Jackie Silber (GIS)

PROJECT SIZE 

$200,000

HIGHLIGHTS

 � A supply analysis was performed to identify system impacts with and without the use of imported water.

 � The calibrated model was used to run reliability scenarios to identify areas within the system that would benefit 
from redundancy.

Relevant Experience :
  Hydraulic Model Update 

& Calibration
 System Analysis
 Supply Analysis
  Maximizing Existing 

Wells
 Condition Assessment
  Reliability/Outage 

Scenario Analysis
 Master Plan & CIP

Carollo will build upon local knowledge 
to identify potential intertie alternatives to 
improve supply reliability within SAWCO’s 
service area.



SAN
 AN

TON
IO W

ATER COM
PAN

Y  //  COM
PREHEN

SIVE SYSTEM
 M

ASTER PLAN
 AN

D ASSET M
AN

AGEM
EN

T PROGRAM

CAROLLO  //  PROPOSAL//  FEBRUARY
B:\Pursuits\Client20(OCO)\SAWCo\MPandAssetMgmtPrgm\Prop\Indd

19

PAST PROJECTS

CLIENT REFERENCE 

Anthony Manzano, PE 

Senior Project Manager 

Yorba Linda Water District 

P: 714.701.3000

COMPLETION DATE 

2017

PROJECT TEAM MEMBERS 

James Doering (Structural Field 

Assessments), Alex Bugbee 

(Asset Management)

PROJECT SIZE 

$112,000 

ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN (AMP)
Yorba Linda Water District

The District was transitioning out of a period of new facilities construction and into 
the long-term management of its existing water and wastewater infrastructure. The 
service area is mostly built out and projects to increase capacity and cost effectively 
strengthen system resiliency are being completed. The District’s focus was on 
replacing and rehabilitating its existing water and wastewater infrastructure in the 
most efficient way. With limited resources available for capital projects, this AMP 
update served to realign the District’s priorities for sustainable management of its 
infrastructure. With this 2017 AMP update, Carollo is again collaborating with District 
staff to build upon the foundation from the last AMP that our team developed in 2010. 
Using Innovyze® InfoMaster to conduct the analysis, Carollo leveraged existing asset 
records, identified gaps, and conducted field assessments with mobile data collection 
tools to determine the condition and remaining life of its entire asset portfolio. This 
information is being used in InfoMaster to develop a risk-based assessment that will 
produce a prioritized list of near-term projects and long-term funding needs to sustain 
the infrastructure.

HIGHLIGHTS

� Developed a strategy for optimizing life cycle costs, maintaining service levels, and meeting anticipated
regulatory requirements.

� Providing an asset inventory/risk assessment using a “best management” approach to produce an asset
classification system, condition assessment results, remaining useful life estimates, and risk scores.

Relevant Experience :
 Condition Assessment
 Asset Management





Agenda Date: March 17, 2020 

Agenda Item No. 6B 

Item Title: Request for Proposals, Professional Design & Project Management for Capital 
Projects 

Purpose: 

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Possible Special Meeting to Award Contract for 
Professional Design & Project Management Services for 2020 Capital Improvement Projects. 

Issue: 

Staff would like to call a special Board Meeting in late March to discuss and possibly award a 
contract for design services for the 2020 CIP Program. 

Manager’s Recommendation: 

Set a date and time of March 31, 2020 @ 5pm for a Special Board Meeting. 

Background:  

The Company has an aggressive Capital Improvement Program scheduled for 2020. A Request 
for Proposals was sent to 11 design firms in late February (attached). Proposals are due at the 
Company March 20th, 2020. 

To expedite design services for the 2020 CIP projects, staff is requesting a special Board meeting 
on March 31st to discuss and possibly award a professional services contract. 

Impact on the Budget:  

Minimal cost of director’s fees and staff overtime of about a half hour. 

Previous Actions:  

Seven Projects included in the 2020 Budget for $1,380,000 



San Antonio Water Company 

Incorporated October 25, 1882 
Serving the original Ontario Colony lands 

139 North Euclid Avenue ● Upland, California 91786 ● 909.982.4107 ● Fax 909.920.3047 ● Website: sawaterco.com 

A REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
TO PROVIDE CONSULTING SERVICES TO THE SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 

PROJECT TITLE: 

PROFESSIONAL DESIGN AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR MULTIPLE CAPITAL 
FACILITY PROJECTS 

RESPONSE DUE BEFORE 3:00 PM 

ON March 20, 2020 

Item 6B



SAWCo 2020 CIP RFP Page 1 of 7 

Introduction 

The San Antonio Water Company is soliciting proposals from qualified firms to assist in the design 
and construction of multiple capital facility projects for the 2020 calendar year.  

The Company has seven pipeline replacement projects with a combined budget of $1.38M 
scheduled for the 2020 calendar year: 

Project Priority 

• Reservoir 9 Pipeline Replacement ($488k budget) 1 
• Frankish Tunnel Pipeline Repair and Meter Install ($50k budget) 2 
• Cliff near Euclid Crescent and Cliff ($280k budget) 3 
• Glendale Road between Mountain and Park ($42K Budget) 4 
• Linda, North of 24th ($134k budget) 5 
• Primrose, North of 25th ($105k budget) 6 
• Viewpoint, Canyon View to Campus ($276k budget) 7 

Each project is more-fully described on its attached budgetary project sheet. The Company 
anticipates bidding each project separately at the time that project’s design is completed. At 
Consultant’s recommendation, the Company will consider combining select projects for bidding 
to achieve expediency or value. A key consideration of award will be the consultant’s ability to 
multitask design commitment and complete the projects in a timely fashion. Company will 
require a commitment from consultant to work expediently toward having all projects under 
individual construction contracts by December 31, 2020. 

The Company proposes to retain a single consultant to design replacement pipelines for the 
above projects, as well as construction management services, including bidding support and 
construction inspection. Lacking sufficient staff bandwidth, the Company is expecting ‘cradle to 
grave’ consulting services for the above project. Consultant’s Proposal shall include all seven 
projects. Individual project proposals will not be considered. 

All distribution and transmission mains shall be designed in accordance with CA-DDW 
Waterworks Standards. All material, appurtenances, installation and testing procedures shall 
comply with ASTM and/or AWWA standards, as well as the Company’s water system construction 
standards. 

General Company Information 

In 1882 Canadians George and William Chaffey purchased 8,000-acres of the Cucamonga Rancho, 
including the water rights, and established an irrigation colony which they named Ontario, in 
honor of their homeland. On October 25, 1882 they also established the San Antonio Water 
Company under the General Corporation Laws of the United States. Rancheria water rights 
established way back in the 1700’s transferred to the Company in support of the newly 



SAWCo 2020 CIP RFP Page 2 of 7 

established irrigation colony. The brother’s vision was to develop a Mutual Water Company 
whose members shared equally in the locally available water supply. 

The brothers sold irrigation colony land in 10-acre blocks, primarily intended for the booming 
citrus industry. Along with the land, the brothers sold shares in the Company, one share for each 
purchased acre.  Each shareholder was entitled to a portion of available local water, distributed 
equally by the company amongst all the shareholders. The Company was responsible for 
distributing water on a non-profit basis to the shareholders.  

Since 1882 the San Antonio Water Company has consistently provided water service to its 
shareholders. Although the local citrus industry has largely disappeared, the Company maintains 
delivery to current shareholders utilizing the same successful ‘per share’ distribution plan 
established over 135 years ago. 

The Company does not import any water. Instead we are dependent on our local San Antonio 
Canyon and Cucamonga Canyon watersheds and downstream groundwater basins.  

Currently, our shareholders include most residents of the unincorporated area of San Antonio 
Heights, the Cities of Upland and Ontario, the Monte Vista Water District, local quarries and the 
proud heritage of remaining grove irrigators. 

The Company provides water through two separate systems; domestic and irrigation. 

The domestic system receives the majority of its water through the San Antonio tunnel. The 
tunnel is built into the head of the San Antonio Canyon about 90 feet below the ground surface. 
The tunnel consists of 5,400 feet of 36” concrete pipe and 600 feet of a six-foot square shaft built 
into the bedrock below the alluvium. Portions of the shaft are supported by redwood beams. 
There are ten access hatches spaced about 600 feet apart. Groundwater percolating through the 
alluvium collects in the tunnel and, after chlorination, is channeled into the Company’s potable 
water system. Two wells supply the remainder of our domestic supply. Domestic water is 
distributed by six booster pump stations through 25 miles of pipeline to five reservoirs. 

The domestic water system provides service to the San Antonio Heights, also known as our Basic 
Service Area. Consisting primarily of large residential lots, the Heights is an unincorporated area 
of San Bernardino County approximately 2.6 square miles in size located immediately north of 
the City of Upland. The Company provides water to individual residential lots through 1,200 
domestic meters. 

The irrigation system primarily receives water from surface water diversions in the San Antonio 
Canyon. Additional irrigation water is supplied through seven wells located in three groundwater 
basins; Cucamonga Basin, Six Basins and Chino Basin. Irrigation water is distributed by three 
booster pump stations through 21 miles of pipeline to four reservoirs. 

The irrigation system provides service to the Company’s ‘extended’ service area. Shareholders in 
the extended service area include municipal and private companies. A majority of the distributed 
irrigation water is treated by municipal shareholders and then delivered to their customers as 



SAWCo 2020 CIP RFP Page 3 of 7 

domestic water. The remaining irrigation water is used for farming, landscaping and commercial 
use (quarry). 

Project Scope of Services 

Task 1 – Project Management 
Provide overall project management services including: 

• Preparing a proposed schedule for each project and an overall schedule for entirety of
consultant’s work related to this contract.

• Teleconferences and meetings at appropriate intervals to keep Company staff updated
on progress and address any needed management level decisions.

• Quality assurance/ quality control
• Present recommendations for Company selection regarding material selection,

scheduling, etc.

Task 2 – Preliminary Design Phase for each project 

• Prepare preliminary design phase documents consisting of final design criteria,
preliminary drawings, outline specifications and preliminary cost estimate.

• Provide necessary field surveys, topographic and utility mapping for design purposes.
Utility mapping will be based upon information obtained by consultant from utility
owners and field locates.

• Furnish one review copy of the preliminary design phase documents and any other
deliverables to Company

• Review and revise preliminary design phase documents based on Company comments.

Task 3 – Environmental Phase for each project 

• Review each project and make a recommendation to Company for appropriate CEQA
requirements. Because they are pipeline replacements within disturbed roadways,
Company anticipates ‘categorical exemptions’ for all projects.

• Prepare appropriate CEQA documentation and filings as necessary.

Task 4 – Final Design Phase for each project 

• Prepare final drawings, specifications and cost estimate indicating the scope, extent and
character of the work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. Consultant will field
locate, as necessary, existing utilities to determine crossing and connection points.

• As an agent of Company, consultant shall obtain permits or approvals from appropriate
governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or approve the final design of the
project. Traffic control and pavement restoration is overseen by either County of San
Bernardino or City of Upland, depending on each individual project location.



SAWCo 2020 CIP RFP Page 4 of 7 

• Represent the Company in consultations with such authorities and revise the drawings
and specification in response to directives from said authorities.

• Prepare and furnish bidding documents (plans, specifications and estimate) for review by
the Company, its legal counsel and regulatory agencies.

• After revising the bidding documents in accordance with comments and instructions from
Company, Consultant shall provide one reproducible copy and one electronic copy of all
documents in their native format (Word, AutoCAD, etc.), as well as one full document set
copy in Adobe Acrobat PDF format.

Task 5 – Bidding Phase for each project 

• Coordinate advertising and obtaining bids for the work and maintain a record of
prospective bidders to whom project documents have been issued.

• Coordinate any pre-bid conferences.
• Respond to Contractor’s Prebid Request for Information (RFI) through appropriate

bidding addenda as necessary to correct, clarify or change the bidding documents.
• Coordinate bid opening and review bids for acceptability of prime contractor,

subcontractors, supplies and other individuals and entities proposed by prospective
contractors.

• Review and advise the Company on the acceptability of substitute materials and
equipment proposed by contractor during the bidding or negotiating phase.

• Prepare a bid evaluation sheet showing each bidder and their respective line item bids,
along with a total proposed bid price for each bidder.

• Advise Company regarding which bidder was the ‘lowest responsible bidder’.
• After Company Board awards contract the Consultant shall coordinate construction

contract execution and assemble construction contract documents.

Task 6 – Construction Phase for each project 

• Provide appropriate field oversight (inspection services) of construction activity to ensure
contractor’s compliance with contract and permits.

• Provide appropriate material testing, including soil compaction testing, to ensure
contractor’s compliance with contract and permits.

• Issue necessary clarifications and interpretations of the contract documents as
appropriate to the orderly completion of contractor’s work.

• Review and organize any shop drawings, samples and other information which contractor
is required to submit to ensure conformance with contract documents and compatibility
with design.

• Respond to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI) through appropriate addenda as
necessary to correct, clarify or change the contract documents.

• Coordinate progress payments with contractor and forward a recommendation to
Company for processing, along with appropriate contractor paperwork.

• At the appropriate completion of work, Consultant shall prepare necessary paperwork to
close out project



SAWCo 2020 CIP RFP Page 5 of 7 

Proposal Schedule 

The Company anticipates the following timeline and key milestones for award of the project: 

Proposal Due Date March 20, 2020 
Board Award - @ special meeting March 31, 2020 
Consultant’s Notification April 1, 2020 

 Proposal Requirements 

The proposal shall not exceed 12 pages excluding resumes, cover letter, dividers, front and back 
covers. No other documents will be reviewed. Please do not submit additional material. 
Responses to this RFP shall be in the following order and shall include: 

Executive Summary (1 page maximum) 
Summarize the contents of your firm’s proposal in a clear and concise manner. 

Firm Background and Experience (2 pages maximum) 
Brief description of the firm and subconsultants, if any, including the size of the organization, 
location of offices and relevant capabilities and resources in relation to the project. This section 
should include: 

I. Experience with domestic water system design and construction services
II. Similar projects with other water companies or districts

III. Firm’s local experience
IV. Procedures and/or policies associated with or related to work quality and cost control
V. Management and organizational capabilities

VI. Verification of professional liability insurance for coverage of not less than $1,000,000.

Project Organization and Experience of the Project Team (2 pages maximum, not including 
resumes) 
Proposing firm shall identify the team to be assigned to the project, by name, including at a 
minimum the principal, project manager, key staff and any subconsultants. Proposing firm shall 
describe the project team’s qualifications and experience on projects related to this specific 
project. Proposing firm shall explain the project team’s experience regarding all tasks associated 
with the scope of work. This section should include: 

I. Describe proposed project organization, including identification and responsibilities of
key personnel, including sub-consultants. Include only one-page resumes.

II. Describe the experience of the Project Manager and the experience that the proposed
personnel have working on past projects as a team.

III. Describe project management approach to the work effort, locations where work will be
done, responsibilities for coordination with the Company, and lines of communication
necessary to maintain project on schedule.



SAWCo 2020 CIP RFP Page 6 of 7 

Project Understanding and Approach (4 pages maximum) 
Proposer shall demonstrate its preliminary understanding of the project by providing a clear and 
concise description of the project and major issues, based on the information provided in this 
RFP.  

Proposer shall clearly define the tasks and activities necessary to meet the objectives outlined in 
the scope of work of Task III. This section should include:  

I. A statement committing the necessary resources to work expediently toward having all
projects under construction contract by December 31, 2020.

II. Description of the tasks and activities, the methodology that will be used to accomplish
them.

III. Description of the products that would result from each task and activity.
IV. Identification of points of input and review with Company staff.
V. Proposed project schedule identifying key tasks, their expected duration, and milestone

dates. Schedule shall consider individual project priority and Company’s desire to get each
project bid and constructed as soon as possible.

VI. Proposers are invited to suggest additional (optional) work tasks that could be performed
in conjunction with or subsequent to the scope of work. Any such tasks are to be
described as optional and the benefits of performing such tasks shall be described.

Past Projects (3 pages maximum) 
Proposer shall provide project descriptions of up to three similar projects. Include the following 
information: 

I. Owner contact name and phone number
II. Project team members

III. Project size and description

Proposed Total Professional Fee and Fee Schedule Submitted Under Separate Sealed Cover 
Proposed fee shall not be the sole basis of award but will be used to evaluate the Consultant’s 
understanding of the Scope of Work. 

Include the hourly rates of all staff that will charge to the project. 

Fee schedule shall show design and construction effort broken down by specific capital project 
(7 projects total), then combined into a total proposed fee. Company expects to award a ‘time 
and material, not to exceed’ contract. 

Exceptions to this RFP 
The Consultant shall certify that it takes no exceptions to this RFP including, but not limited to, 
the Consultant Services Agreement (attached).  



SAWCo 2020 CIP RFP Page 7 of 7 

Evaluation Criteria 

The evaluation criteria and the respective weights that will be given to each criterion are as 
follows:  

a) 25% Understanding and approach to the work to be done
b) 25% Experience of firm with similar kinds of work
c) 20% Experience of staff for work to be done
d) 10% Overall clarity and presentation of Proposal
e) 5% Firm’s Local Experience
f) 15% Proposed Project Fee

Selection Process and Schedule 

The Company will enter into negotiations with the top ranked firm. At this time, the Company 
contemplates the use of a Time and Material Not to Exceed contract for the services requested. 
Negotiations will cover scope of work, contract terms and conditions, attendance requirements, 
and appropriateness of the proposed fee.  

After negotiating a proposed agreement that is fair and reasonable the General Manager will 
present the contract to the Company’s Board for authorization to execute a contract with the 
most responsive firm. 

Related Documents 

• Seven Budgetary Project Sheets (attached)
• Company standard Professional Service Agreement (attached)

Submittal Requirements 

One (1) executed original marked “ORIGINAL” in red ink and 6 copies of the Proposal shall be 
submitted. One single sealed Proposed Fee Estimate marked “FEE ESTIMATE – 2020 CIP” in red 
ink shall be submitted separate from the proposal. Emailed proposals will not be accepted. 
Submit one electronic copy of the proposal in PDF format. The Response shall be signed by an 
individual, partner, officer or officers authorized to execute legal documents on behalf of the 
Firm.  

The Response Proposal must be received no later than 3:00 p.m. local time, on or before March 
20th, 2020 at the office of:  

PROPOSAL – 2020 CIP 
San Antonio Canyon Water Company 
139 North Euclid Avenue 
Upland, CA 91786 
Attn: Brian Lee 



SAWCo 2020 CIP RFP Page 8 of 7 

Failure to comply with the requirements of this RFP may result in disqualification. Questions 
regarding this RFP shall be submitted in writing to blee@sawaterco.com.  



2020 CIP December 6, 2019 
/Volumes/Shared/Accounting-Finance/Budgets/FY2020 Budget/2020 CIP/ProjectWorkSheets.docx 

Project Title: Reservoir 9 Pipeline Replacement 
Total Budget: $488,000 
Engineering: $80,000 
Construction: $408,000 

Schedule: 
Design: April – July 2020 
Construction: October – December 2020 

Location: 

Justification:  
Replace pipeline on 25th Street and along backside of Burt Street homes to Reservoir #9. 
Abandon pipeline installed in backyard along Electric Avenue and Newman Street. The 
24” concrete pipeline was installed before 1976 and has exceeded its useful life. 
Identified by staff as a high maintenance root-bound pipeline. 



2020 CIP December 6, 2019 
/Volumes/Shared/Accounting-Finance/Budgets/FY2020 Budget/2020 CIP/ProjectWorkSheets.docx 

Project Title: Frankish Tunnel Pipeline Repair and Meter Install 
Total Budget: $50,000 
Engineering: $10,000 
Construction: $40,000 

Schedule: 
Design: June – July 2020 
Construction: September – October 2020 

Location: 

Justification: The metering arrangement at the Frankish Tunnel outflow is not set to the 
appropriate hydraulic grade and the Company is unable to meter all waterflow from the 
tunnel. Additionally, this location is a transfer point for spread water from the forebay into 
Basin 6A. To improve metering and accounting for all available water, staff would like to 
upgrade the tunnel outfall and install an additional meter.  



2020 CIP December 6, 2019 
/Volumes/Shared/Accounting-Finance/Budgets/FY2020 Budget/2020 CIP/ProjectWorkSheets.docx 

Project Title: Cliff near Euclid Crescent and Cliff 
Total Budget: $280,000 
Engineering: $56,000 
Construction: $224,000 

Schedule: 
Engineering: January – March 2020 
Bidding: March-April 2020 
Construction: May – August 2020 

Location: 

Justification: Upgrade small diameter pipeline in Cliff Road, from 25th Street to Euclid 
Crescent. Install new laterals to five homes on Cliff Drive, connecting them to the new 
upper zone pipeline. The existing FH does not meet available fire flow. Pipeline has 
exceeded its useful life. Identified in the 2017 Master Plan as a medium priority project. 



2020 CIP December 6, 2019 
/Volumes/Shared/Accounting-Finance/Budgets/FY2020 Budget/2020 CIP/ProjectWorkSheets.docx 

Project Title: Glendale Road between Mountain and Park 
Total Budget: $42,000 
Engineering: $8,000 
Construction: $34,000 

Schedule: 
Engineering: January - March 2020 
Construction: June – July 2020 

Location: 

Justification: There are currently two pipelines in Glendale Road; an old 2” and a new 6”. 
This project abandons the small diameter pipeline between Mountain Avenue and Park 
Boulevard. Connect existing 3 service laterals to existing 6” pipeline. Identified in the 2017 
Master Plan as a high priority project. 



2020 CIP December 6, 2019 
/Volumes/Shared/Accounting-Finance/Budgets/FY2020 Budget/2020 CIP/ProjectWorkSheets.docx 

Project Title: Linda, North of 24th 
Total Budget: $134,000 
Engineering: $22,000 
Construction: $112,000 

Schedule: 
Engineering: March-May 2020 
Bidding: May-June 2020 
Construction: August-November 2020 

Location: 

Justification: Replace pipeline on Linda Lane, north of W 24th Street and Lamplighter Lane, 
west of Sierra Drive. Abandon pipeline located in backyards between Linda and 
Lamplighter. Install flushing hydrants at end of Linda and Lamplighter. The existing 
pipeline was installed before 1976 and has exceeded its useful life. Identified in the 2017 
Master Plan as a low priority project. 



2020 CIP December 6, 2019 
/Volumes/Shared/Accounting-Finance/Budgets/FY2020 Budget/2020 CIP/ProjectWorkSheets.docx 

Project Title: Primrose, north of 25th 
Total Budget: $105,000 
Engineering: $18,000 
Construction: $87,000 

Schedule: 
Engineering: February - March 2020 
Bidding: District Forces 
Construction: May 2020 

Location: 

Justification: Replace pipeline on Primrose Lane, north of West 25th Street. The pipeline 
was installed before 1976 and has exceed its useful life. Also will relocate one service 
lateral from a backyard run into Mountain Avenue. Identified in the 2017 Master Plan as 
a low priority project. 



2020 CIP December 6, 2019 
/Volumes/Shared/Accounting-Finance/Budgets/FY2020 Budget/2020 CIP/ProjectWorkSheets.docx 

Project Title: Irrigation Pipeline Viewpoint, Canyon View Ave to Campus Ave 
Total Budget: $276,000 
Engineering: $46,000 
Construction: $230,000  

Schedule: 
Engineering: January - April 2020 
Construction: July – September 2020 

Location: 

Justification: 
Replace pipeline on Viewpoint St. between Canyon View Ave and Campus Ave. The 
pipeline was installed before 1976 and has exceeded its useful life. Identified by 
operations staff as a high maintenance pipeline. 



/Volumes/Shared/Projects/01.Active Projects/2020Projects/Contract/PSA.doc 
02/14/20 Page 1 of 6 

PSA – 2020 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

SAN ANTONIO WATER COMPANY 
AND 

X

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this X day of X, 2020, by and between San Antonio Water 
Company, a California Corporation, located in Upland, California, hereafter referred to as (“Client”) and X, 
a California Corporation, located in X, California, hereafter referred to as (“Consultant”).  This Agreement 
consists of the following terms and conditions, all exhibits and attachments, and any written and 
approved modifications hereto. 

RECITALS 

Whereas, Client requires professional engineering services to design and construct various capital 
improvement projects, and 

Whereas, Client and Consultant desire to enter into a contract for the provision of professional 
engineering services subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

Now therefore, in consideration of the promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto 
mutually agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services:
The scope of services to be provided by Consultant is as described in and attached hereto as
Attachment “A” and entitled “Scope of Services.”  The scope of services defines the specific work to
be performed and the resulting work product(s) to be delivered.  The corresponding schedule for
performance of the work will be presented at the initial “kick off” meeting.

During the term of this Agreement, Client may request subsequent and related engineering services
at its discretion.  Such services to be performed by Consultant shall be stated in a separate “Letter of
Authorization” setting forth the specific work to be performed, the resulting work product(s) to be
delivered, the corresponding schedule for performance of the work, the compensation terms for the
work to be performed, and signed by Client and Consultant.  The provisions of this Agreement shall
be incorporated into the Letter of Authorization by specific reference.

2. Professional Services Charges:
Client agrees to pay for services provided by Consultant each month, as charges accrue and
applicable invoices are received, in accordance with the Consultant’s current schedule of hourly
rates, as defined in and attached hereto as Attachment “B.”  Charges shall not exceed $X for the
services and deliverables referenced in Attachment “A” or any subsequent and related Letter of
Authorization without prior written approval by the Client and written concurrence by the
Consultant.  For other services, which may be requested by Client, compensation to Consultant shall
be as mutually negotiated in writing between both parties and set forth in a Letter of Authorization.
The Consultant’s current schedule of hourly rates would be the basis for negotiating such
compensation.  Any changes to the Consultant’s schedule of hourly rates must be submitted to



/Volumes/Shared/Projects/01.Active Projects/2020Projects/Contract/PSA.doc 
02/14/20 Page 2 of 6 

Client in written form prior to any negotiation for services to be billed at rate(s) other than those 
shown on Attachment “B”. 

3. Independent Contractor Status:
In performing its services under this Agreement, Consultant is an independent contractor to the
Client.  No other relationship exists between Consultant and Client.  Consultant and Client also agree
that Client has no contractual relationship with any Sub-Consultants who are engaged solely by
Consultant to perform supporting services and who shall be in all respects the responsibility of
Consultant.

4. Standard of Care:
Consultant’s services shall be conducted, within the limits prescribed by this Agreement, in a manner
consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same professions
currently practicing under similar conditions within the surrounding regional area of the State.  No
other guarantee, warranty, or representation, either express or implied, is included or intended
herein or in proposals, contracts or reports.  Client agrees to provide Consultant prompt written
notice of any defect or suspected defect in its services.

5. Delays:
Neither the Client nor Consultant shall be liable for delays in or failures to perform services caused
by circumstances beyond their reasonable control, including, but not limited to, acts of God, acts
and/or omissions by federal, state and local government authorities and regulatory agencies, strikes,
riots, civil unrest, war, lockouts, and accidents.  For delays in providing services hereunder, resulting
from actions or in actions of Client or third parties, Consultant may be given an appropriate time
extension and may be compensated for those delay related costs of labor, equipment and other
direct costs incurred by Consultant and clearly caused by circumstances beyond Consultant’s
control.

Client acknowledges that delays related to processing of properly and fully completed permit
applications, the subsequent approval of permits or required reviews by governmental agencies are
beyond the direct control of Consultant.  However, Consultant agrees to diligently pursue any such
required reviews and approvals for any item(s) of work within Consultant’s scope of services, but
makes no warranties and Client waives any claims against Consultant relating to the timeliness or
the success of approvals of permit applications or required agency reviews which are properly and
fully prepared and pursued under this Agreement.

6. Breach of Agreement:
If the Consultant defaults in the performance of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, It
shall have ten (10) calendar days after receipt of written notice of such default in which to cure the
default by rendering a satisfactory performance.  If Consultant fails to cure the default within the
specified time, the Client shall have the right, notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, to terminate this Agreement without further notice and without prejudice to any other
remedy to which it may be entitled.

7. Termination/Suspension of Services:
Either party may terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time upon fifteen- (15) calendar day’s
written notice.  Upon termination or suspension, the Client shall compensate Consultant for all
authorized services performed up to the date of termination or suspension.  Said compensation shall
include payment for completed tasks and payment of applicable hourly rates as indicated in
Attachment “B” for all uncompleted tasks.  Payment will be made within thirty calendar days of
receipt of an invoice for all authorized services performed and all expenses directly attributable



/Volumes/Shared/Projects/01.Active Projects/2020Projects/Contract/PSA.doc 
02/14/20  Page 3 of 6 

thereto, including, but not limited to, any previously acknowledged cancellation charges by Sub-
Consultants and/or contractors, if any.  In the event that the period of Client initiated suspension 
exceeds one hundred and eighty-two calendar days; the Consultant’s fee shall be equitably adjusted 
by mutual agreement prior to the resumption of services.  

  
8. Notice: 

Any notice or instrument required to be given or delivered by this Agreement may 
be given or delivered by depositing same in any United States Post Office, 
registered or certified, postage prepaid, addressed to: 
 
San Antonio Water Company X 
139 No. Euclid Avenue X   
Upland, CA. 91786 X 
(909) 982-4107 // Fax (909) 920-3047 X  

 
9. Ownership of Documents: 

Unless expressly agreed otherwise, Client is the owner of all final documents, including, but not 
limited to, reports, investigations, written analysis, plans and specifications and opinions of cost 
generated by Consultant within the scope of services.  Consultant is the owner of all other 
documents, including, but not limited to, all proposals, draft documents and other written 
communications generated within the scope of services.  Consultant may retain copies of all final 
documents owned by Client.  However, any reuse of the final documents by the Client for other than 
their specific intended purpose shall be at the sole risk of the Client and without liability or legal 
exposure to the Consultant. 
 
Except as provided in Section 10, “Confidentiality”, Consultant agrees that all project documents 
shall not be made available to any individual or organization, private or public, without the prior 
written consent of the Client. 

 
10. Confidentiality: 

Consultant and Client shall hold confidential all business or technical information obtained from the 
other or its affiliates under this Agreement and shall not disclose such information without the 
other’s written consent except to the extent required for (1) performance of services under this 
Agreement; (2) compliance with professional standards of conduct for preservation of the public 
safety, health and welfare; (3) compliance with any court order or other legitimate governmental 
directive; and/or (4) protection of the disclosing party against claims or liabilities arising from 
performance of services under this Agreement.  The parties’ obligations hereunder shall not apply to 
information in the public domain or information lawfully acquired on a non-confidential basis from 
others. 

 
11. Insurance: 

Consultant agrees to maintain Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile Liability plus Errors and 
Omissions policies against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise 
from or in connection with the performance of the services hereunder by the Consultant, its officers, 
employees, agents, invitees and subcontractors.  An insurer admitted to conduct business in the 
State with an A.M. Best & Co. rating of at least B+7 must issue these policies.  Insurance 
endorsements shall be furnished to the Client within seven (7) days following the execution of this 
Agreement by both parties.  Notwithstanding any inconsistent statement in the policy or any 
subsequent endorsement attached thereto, the protection offered by the Liability policy shall name 
the Client, its officers, directors, employees, and agents as additionally insured. 

 



/Volumes/Shared/Projects/01.Active Projects/2020Projects/Contract/PSA.doc 
02/14/20 Page 4 of 6 

The Consultant shall maintain the following limits of liability: 

• General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property
damage.

• Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
• Errors and Omissions: $ 1,000,000 in the aggregate.

The Client, its officers, directors, employees and agents shall not be responsible for any claims in law 
or equity occasioned by failure of the Consultant to comply with Section 3700 of the State Labor 
Code.  By execution of this Agreement, the Consultant certifies to the following: 

 “I am aware of and will comply with Section 3700 of the State Labor 
Code which requires every qualifying employer to be insured against 
liability of Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-insurance before 
commencing any services hereunder.” 

For any claims related to this Agreement, the Consultant’s insurance coverage, as evidenced by an 
endorsement to its policy, shall be primary insurance as respects the Client, its officers, directors, 
employees, and agents.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Client, its officers, 
directors, employees, and agents shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance. 

All such insurance shall bear an endorsement or shall have attached a rider whereby it is provided 
that, in the event of expiration or proposed cancellation of such policy, the Client shall be notified by 
registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, not less than thirty (30) calendar days 
before expiration or cancellation is to become effective.   

12. Limitation of Liability:
A. Neither the Client nor Consultant shall be liable for indirect or consequential damages, incurred

by either or by their subsidiaries or successors except as stated in Section 13A, applicable to
Consultant.

B. In addition to the limitations provided in Section 12A and notwithstanding any other provision
herein, Consultant’s liability shall be limited to bodily injury/death, property damage and
economic loss (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Loss”) caused by the negligence of
Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, invitees, and subcontractors hereunder.

13. Indemnity:
A. Consultant agrees to indemnify, and hold harmless Client, its officers, directors, employees and

agents, to the fullest extent permitted by law from and against any and all actual or alleged loss,
cost, damage, expense and liability (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs of
defense and/or settlement), for bodily injury/death, property damage and economic loss arising
from the negligent acts, errors or omissions or the willful misconduct of Consultant, its officers,
employees, agents, invitees or subcontractors in the performance of services rendered under this
Agreement.

B. Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, invitees,
and subcontractors to the fullest extent permitted by law from and against any and all actual or
alleged loss, cost, damage, expense and liability (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and other
costs of defense and/or settlement), for bodily injury/death, property damage and economic loss
arising from the negligent acts, errors or omissions or the willful misconduct of Client, its officers,



/Volumes/Shared/Projects/01.Active Projects/2020Projects/Contract/PSA.doc 
02/14/20 Page 5 of 6 

directors, employees, and agents, contractors or subcontractors in matters relative to this 
Agreement. 

14. Right of Entry and Property Responsibility:
Client shall grant, or cause to be granted at Client’s expense, free access to any property upon which
services are to be performed.  The Client shall notify the owners and possessors of such property,
whether they are lawfully or unlawfully in possession, that Client has granted Consultant free access
to such property.  Client shall secure permission and any permits necessary to allow Consultant free
access to such property at no charge to Consultant unless otherwise specifically agreed to in writing.

Consultant shall be responsible for its own activities at the property including the safety of its
employees, subcontractors, agents and invitees, but shall not assume control of or responsibility for
the property.

15. Severability:
Any provisions of this Agreement held in violation of any law or ordinance shall be deemed stricken
and all remaining provisions shall continue valid and binding upon the parties.  Client and Consultant
shall attempt, in good faith, to replace any invalid or unenforceable provisions of this Agreement
with provisions which are valid and enforceable, and which come as close as possible to expressing
the intention of the original provisions.

16. Assignments and Third-Party Beneficiaries:
This Agreement and all of the terms, conditions, and provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of
and be binding upon the parties hereto, and their respective successors and assigns; provided,
however, that no assignment of this Agreement shall be made without written consent of the
parties to this Agreement.  Any attempt by Consultant to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Client shall be void.

This Agreement shall not create any rights or benefits in any person or entity other than Client and
Consultant, nor is it intended to create any third-party beneficiaries to it.

17. Governing Law and Remedies:
Unless otherwise provided, this Agreement shall be performed and construed under the laws of the
State of California without regard to that State’s conflict of laws provision.  In the event of any claim,
dispute or other matter in question between the parties, Client and Consultant agree to submit the
matter to binding arbitration in accordance with the then-existing rules of the American Arbitration
Association.  Arbitration shall be held in westerly San Bernardino County, California unless otherwise
agreed to by the parties hereto.  Before the invocation of such arbitration, or promptly after the
invocation of such arbitration, if such invocation is reasonably needed to protect either party against
the running of a statute of limitations or similar defense, the parties shall meet to discuss, in good
faith, the possible resolution of the matter without formal proceeding.  Either party may ask for the
use of non-binding mediation with a third party or other alternative dispute resolution procedures,
which shall be pursued in good faith until either party determines them to be unlikely to produce a
resolution.

18. Attorneys’ Fees:
In the event of mediation, arbitration or litigation between Client and Consultant arising out of the
Agreement, each party shall be entitled to all reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees to the extent that
party prevails.



/Volumes/Shared/Projects/01.Active Projects/2020Projects/Contract/PSA.doc 
02/14/20 Page 6 of 6 

The signatories to this Agreement represent that they have the authority to execute this Agreement 
on behalf of the parties first named above.  

San Antonio Water Company: X: 
 
 
___________________________ ____________________________ 
Brian C. Lee X 
General Manager/CEO Principal in Charge        
     
__________________________ ___________________________ 
Date Date  



Agenda Date: March 17, 2020 

Agenda Item No. 6C 

Item Title: Share Requirement to Receive Will-serve Letter 

Purpose:  
Consider authorizing the General Manager discretion when reviewing share requirements and 
lot sizes prior to issuing Will-Serve letters. 

Issue: 
Should the Board give the General Manager some professional discretion when reviewing share 
requirements and lot size prior to issuing a Will-Serve letter? 

Manager’s Recommendation: 
Authorize the General Manager the discretion to issue will-serve letters for lots that are sized no 
more than an 1/8th of an acre over an equal number of shareholdings if, in the professional 
judgement of staff, up to an 1/8th acre portion of the lot is undevelopable and unlandscapable. 

Background: 
At its January 2020 Regular Meeting the Board reaffirmed, at staff’s recommendation, the quarter-
share per quarter-acre, or fraction thereof, requirement for development.  

Over the decades the Company has transitioned from a primarily agricultural water provider to a 
primarily residential water provider. By their nature, the residential lot sizes are smaller than 
agricultural lot sizes, potentially complicating the founding one acre – one share requirement. 
Since the January Board Meeting staff has held discussions regarding the unique layout of the 
San Antonio Heights and irregular lot configurations. There are situations where the entirety of 
the lot will not be available for either housing or landscaping. The most likely example would be 
a long driveway flag-lot. 

To assist in administrative review, staff is requesting the discretion to issue will-serve letters for 
lots that are sized no more than a 1/8th of an acre over an equal number of shareholdings if, in 
the professional judgement of staff, up to an 1/8th acre portion of the lot is undevelopable and 
unlandscapable.   

Impact on the Budget: 
None 

Previous Actions:  
January 2020– Board reaffirmed the quarter-share per quarter-acre, or fraction thereof, 
requirement for development. 


	02 March 2020 Board Agenda.pdf
	03 BoD Min 02-18-2020.pdf
	C. Investment Policy – Mr. Lee stated the draft investment policy is included in the Board meeting packet. The AFC has reviewed and revised the policy with the included being the final draft of the policy.
	Director Sanchez advised the policy includes the process the Company will follow and the responsibilities of certain positions in the Company. It describes the priorities with investing and how they will be achieved. These policies will be up for annu...
	Director Sanchez moved and Director Goss seconded to approve the proposed investment policy regarding financial investments. Motion carried unanimously.

	04 PROC Minutes 11-26-2019.pdf
	05 Income Statement-Jan 2020.pdf
	06 Balance Sheet -Jan 2020.pdf
	07 Form 100 California Tax Return 2019 San Antonio Water.pdf
	CA Return Summary
	CA Form 100-ES, Page 1
	CA Form 8453-C
	CA Form 8453-C Disclosure
	CA Form 3586
	CA Form 100, Page 1
	CA Form 100, Page 2
	CA Form 100, Page 3
	CA Form 100, Page 4
	CA Form 100, Page 5
	CA Form 100, Page 6
	CA Schedule P, Page 1
	CA Schedule P, Page 2
	CA Form 3885
	CA ACE Worksheet
	CA Required Statements
	CA Required Statements
	CA Required Statements
	CA Required Statements
	CA Required Statements
	CA Two Year Comparison Worksheet, Page 1
	CA Two Year Comparison Worksheet, Page 2

	08 Form 990 Federal Tax Return 2019 San Antonio Water.pdf
	990 Return Summary
	Form 8879-EO - Form 990
	Form 990, Page 1
	Form 990, Page 2
	Form 990, Page 3
	Form 990, Page 4
	Form 990, Page 5
	Form 990, Page 6
	Form 990, Page 7
	Form 990, Page 8 - Unit 1
	Form 990, Page 9
	Form 990, Page 10
	Form 990, Page 11
	Form 990, Page 12
	Schedule D, Page 1
	Schedule D, Page 2
	Schedule D, Page 3
	Schedule D, Page 4
	Schedule D, Page 5
	Schedule J, Page 1
	Schedule J, Page 2 - Unit 1
	Schedule J, Page 3 - Unit 1
	Schedule O, Page 1
	Schedule O, Page 2 - Unit 1
	Schedule O, Page 2 - Unit 2
	Two Year Report
	Historical Projection Worksheet
	Not Required Statements
	Not Required Statements

	09 Investment Report-Jan 2020.pdf
	Jan

	10 4E 2020.PRDRPTwGRAPHS.pdf
	11 4G.PromIssRpt0317.pdf
	12 4H.memo.projectupdates.pdf
	U Agenda Item No. 4H
	UUpdates:
	U1507 – Office Relocation
	Project is on hold pending review of City facilities
	U1602 – Holly Drive Reservoir, Phase 1 & 2
	Phase I was completed in 2019. Phase 2 plans and specifications are being finalized for public bidding. Anticipate bid opening and award recommendation in April 2020.
	U1701- Reservoir 7 Roof Repair
	Project was completed in January 2020. Final invoicing and project close-out should be completed by end of March.
	U1807 – Campus Avenue Pipeline
	The majority of the project was completed by January 2020. Awaiting pavement slurry seal. Final invoicing and project close-out should be completed by end of March.
	U1901 – Automated Meter Reading (AMR)
	Staff continues to evaluate industry options.
	U1902 – Cucamonga Crosswalls Mitigation
	First of five years of mitigation will occur Spring 2020
	U1904 – Geographical Information System (GIS)
	First review of GIS completed. Staff is providing additional data for input. Field implementation and training should occur in Spring of 2020
	U1905 – 2020 Master Plan
	Statement of Proposals received on February 11, 2020. Award at March 17, 2020 Board Meeting.
	U2020 Capital Improvement Plan Projects
	Seven projects included in the 2020 budget have been combined into one professional services proposal for design and construction management. Proposal has been sent to multiple consultants and staff anticipates an award at a special Board Meeting on M...

	13 Letter re Wildermuth Environmental's potential use of data.pdf
	14 Letter to CMWM Chino Basin Safe Yield 1-23-20.pdf
	15 Letter to Watermaster from CVWD 2-20-20.pdf
	16 Item 6A.memo.masterplan.pdf
	UPurposeU:
	UIssue:
	Develop a comprehensive plan for future Capital Improvement Projects.
	UManager’s RecommendationU:
	UBackgroundU:
	UPrevious ActionsU:

	17 2020.masterplan.rfp.pdf
	18 WSC proposal for CSMP and AMP to SAWCo.pdf
	Cover Letter
	Executive Summary
	Firm Background and Experience
	Project Organization and Experience of Project Team
	Project Understanding and Approach
	Past Projects
	Appendix A: Resumes

	19 Carollo_MPandAssetMgmtPrgrm-Prop.pdf
	Cover
	Executive Summary
	Firm Background and Experience
	Project Organization and Experienceof the Project Team
	Graham J.G. Juby, Ph.D., P.E.
	Amy N. Martin
	Matthew M. Huang, P.E.
	Michael A. Fleury, P.E., BCEE
	Aimee Zhao
	Ryan M. Hejka, E.I.T.
	Alexander T. Bugbee, E.I.T.
	Jackie M. Silber, GISP
	Andrew Z. Burton, P.E., LEED AP
	James A. Doering, P.E., S.E.
	John G. Briones, P.E.
	Thomas E. Harder

	Project Understanding and Approach
	Past Projects


	20 Item 6B.memo.CIPrfp.pdf
	UPurposeU:
	UIssue:
	Staff would like to call a special Board Meeting in late March to discuss and possibly award a contract for design services for the 2020 CIP Program.
	UManager’s RecommendationU:
	UBackgroundU:
	UPrevious ActionsU:

	21 Item 6B attachment 2020.pipelines.rfp.pdf
	22 Item 6C.memo.sharesproperty.pdf
	Agenda Item No. 6C
	Item Title: Share Requirement to Receive Will-serve Letter
	Purpose:
	Consider authorizing the General Manager discretion when reviewing share requirements and lot sizes prior to issuing Will-Serve letters.
	Issue:
	Should the Board give the General Manager some professional discretion when reviewing share requirements and lot size prior to issuing a Will-Serve letter?
	Manager’s Recommendation:
	Authorize the General Manager the discretion to issue will-serve letters for lots that are sized no more than an 1/8th of an acre over an equal number of shareholdings if, in the professional judgement of staff, up to an 1/8th acre portion of the lot ...
	Background:
	At its January 2020 Regular Meeting the Board reaffirmed, at staff’s recommendation, the quarter-share per quarter-acre, or fraction thereof, requirement for development.
	Over the decades the Company has transitioned from a primarily agricultural water provider to a primarily residential water provider. By their nature, the residential lot sizes are smaller than agricultural lot sizes, potentially complicating the foun...
	To assist in administrative review, staff is requesting the discretion to issue will-serve letters for lots that are sized no more than a 1/8th of an acre over an equal number of shareholdings if, in the professional judgement of staff, up to an 1/8th...
	Impact on the Budget:
	None
	Previous Actions:
	January 2020– Board reaffirmed the quarter-share per quarter-acre, or fraction thereof, requirement for development.



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




